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Corporate Profile and Strategy
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Samsonite International S.A. (the
“Company”), together with its
consolidated subsidiaries (the
“Group”), is the world’s largest travel
luggage company, with a heritage
dating back more than 100 years.
The Group is principally engaged in
the design, manufacture, sourcing
and distribution of luggage, business
and computer bags, outdoor and
casual bags, and travel accessories
throughout the world, primarily under

Leverage Brands

2

the Samsonite®, American Tourister®,
High Sierra® and Hartmann® brand
names as well as other owned and
licensed brand names. The Group’s
core brand, Samsonite, is one of
the most well-known travel luggage
brands in the world.

Samsonite International S.A.
Annual Report 2013

Continue to gain market share by
leveraging the strength of the Group’s
brands, Samsonite, American Tourister,
High Sierra and Hartmann.

BREMMEN BEXRXEERBIHEE - American
Tourister ~ High Sierra % Hartmann B & 11 » #E#E K
M1 4E °

Improve Efficiency

Continually improve the efficiency and
effectiveness of the Group’s supply chain
and global distribution network.

HENE BEYEFEEEAER R HBE0N
AR o




Samsonite
International S.A.’'s

Strategy

Innovate

Introduce new and innovative product
designs, adapted to the needs of
consumers in different markets, while
staying true to the Group’s core values of
lightness, strength and functionality.

AF S AMERAFERDH DA TA S0
BT ARERARENROEE — 85 HAR

Invest in R&D

Increase the Group’s investment in
research & development and marketing
broadly in line with sales growth.

REEMAE BNAKEEMBEREHEIENRE
AHEREERDER

The Company aims to increase

shareholder value through sustainable
revenue and earnings growth and free
cash flow generation. In order to achieve
this objective, the Group has adopted the
following principal strategies:

BB AR RRRE
ARREEBEBAUFERE BNERURARREREBRARRE
B DEIRER  ARECRAUT TRFR

Diversify Product
Offerings

Allocate more resources to the
product categories that present the
greatest opportunity for the Group to
diversify its product offerings and
gain market share.

Emsnlt 7EEZERETR/AAEETR
BrRERAGRBEATSHBEARFRENER
hl -

Grow

Focus on achieving growth
organically, and at the same time
making acquisitions that have a
compelling strategic and financial
rationale.

EBER FINBRER - FREHRE R
FHEARS HHKEEIEE
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Financial Highlights
MEHE

For the year ended

Net sales increased to a
record level of US$2,037.8
million, reflecting a 15.0%

December 31,2013, Operating profit increase from the previous
the Group’s: increased by year. Excluding foreign
HZE2013412 831 Bt US$39.6 million, currency effects, net sales
£ AEEM or 16.4%, year-on- increased by 16.1%.
year. SEFERT2,037 8ABETNHRE
1SR A IR F B R396 BEFEHRI150% - MERER S 5E
g;tgg? ales BEXETH164% ° TFREIER16.1% ©

19.0%

Adjusted Net Income
P EE =T ON

213.2%

Adjusted Net Income? increased
by US$22.0 million, or 13.2%,
year-on-year.

RRBEFBRAREFRRDOBBEELR
13.2% °

Adjusted EBITDA?
increased by

Profit for the year
increased by
US$30.8 million,
or 18.5%, year-
on-yeatr.

FREFRFELR308
BBEETR185% °

Adjusted EBITDA
#EFHEEBITDA

A17.9%

On March 18, 2014, the Company’s
Board of Directors recommended
that a cash distribution in the
amount of US$80.0 million, or
approximately US$0.057 per share,
be made to the Company’s
shareholders, a 113.3% increase
from the US$37.5 million
distribution paid in 2013.

2014538180 AR A EEEEZQALQT
BREELSOEEERA TR LM0057ETMHRE
9K B2013F RMAMI7SEEETDIRER
113.3%

Samsonite International S.A.
Annual Report 2013

US$51.2 million,
or 17.9%, to
US$337.7 million.

#2 3 £ EBITDA? 12 & 51.2

Adjusted EBITDA margin?
increased to 16.6% from
16.2%.

4 B EBITDA A F H162% R &

BEBETH17.9% £337.7 16.6% o
BEXT -

The Group generated

US$193.0 million of cash from
operating activities during 2013
compared to US$203.0 million
during 2012. As of December 31,
2013, the Group had cash and cash
equivalents of US$225.3 million and
financial debt of US$15.5 million
(excluding deferred financing costs
of US$1.9 million), providing the
Group with a net cash position of
US$209.8 million.

AEBR20BFEELETHMBRE193.088
£ M2012FR15203.08EETT ° R2013F12
A318 AXENRERELEENHR253E88
En 2RMEEARISSEBET (MKRELZRERK
TIOBEBER)  MAKENFRLA2008EHE

EV

Profit attributable
to the equity
holders increased
by US$27.6
million, or 18.6%,

year-on-year.

BRAERHE AEGRERTRIZ
FER-RV6ABETS
18.6% °




HBE12R318LEE

Year ended December 31, BEE S
LBEBETZS  SRBUSRD Percentage
Expressed in millions of US Dollars, except per share data 2012 change
Net sales HEFH 1,771.7 15.0%
Operating profit REHEF 241.7 16.4%
Profit for the year FR=A 166.6 18.5%
Profit attributable to the equity holders IRAESE AEMEF 148.4 18.6%
Adjusted Net Income' fetk S N 167.2 13.2%
Adjusted EBITDA? LEAELEBITDA? 286.5 17.9%
Adjusted EBITDA margin? RFREBITDAR =2 16.2%
Basic and diluted earnings per share BREAREERER 0.105 19.0%
(Expressed in US Dollars per share) (UBRETZ7)
Adjusted basic and diluted earnings per share* #&EBESRENK #EEF* 0.119 12.6%
(Expressed in US Dollars per share) (UEBRETZ5)

Notes ffzE

T Adjusted Net Income, a non-IFRS measure, eliminates the effect of a number of non-recurring costs and charges and certain other non-
cash charges that impact the Group’s reported profit for the year. See “Management Discussion and Analysis — Adjusted Net Income” for
a reconciliation from the Group’s profit for the year to Adjusted Net Income.
RRBFUARFIFRSHBARTR AN EFALREBRREFNE THRSEERARBEAURE THMFRSHEANTE - BRAREEFREREE
AEZRANYER - F2H [EEEREDN — LAZFRA L

2 Adjusted EBITDA, a non-IFRS measure, eliminates the effect of a number of non-recurring costs and charges and certain other non-cash
charges. The Group believes Adjusted EBITDA is useful in gaining a more complete understanding of its operational performance and of
the underlying trends of its business. See “Management Discussion and Analysis — Adjusted EBITDA"” for a reconciliation from the Group’s
profit for the year to Adjusted EBITDA.
TR EBITDA BRI IFRS ISR T A - MRS TIHEEERAREAURE THMEFRSBANTE  AEEBESHEBIDABANESE 7 RELEE
BEREZEBNERIES - BRAKEF NRF SR BITDAWE R - F2H [ EEEHEI T — KFAEEBITDAL

3 Adjusted EBITDA margin, a non-IFRS measure, is calculated by dividing Adjusted EBITDA by net sales.

KRR EBITDARBRAIE IFRS AT TR T A - LUKHTIEE EBITDA BRASHE B BT BTG -

Adjusted earnings per share, a non-IFRS measure, is calculated by dividing Adjusted Net Income by the weighted average number of shares

outstanding during the period.

KRESRBARFIFRSHBITETE - LUSHEFZRABRAIANBTEIMIINET IR U EFHE -

Net Sales Asia North America Europe Latin America Net Sales Travel Casual Business Accessoties  Other
M db M BM HTEMN R R % B Hity
Growth by ... Growth By e
Region 215.6%' 224.6%' 29.2%' 211.7%' :deUCt 212.8%" 288.8%' 2#3.3%' 28.2%" 23.1%'
= ategor
ﬁ;;?ﬁgz 2013 $768.4 $621.7 $515.2 $123.6 Dg y p 2013 $1,515.9 $205.9 SIO3Y5 $85.7 $36.9
= 2012 $6842  $499.9  $466.4  §112.6 B BHI A 2012 $1,357.1  $109.7  $189.6  $79.7 $35.7
US$(m) HEFRER US$(m)
=(EH) =(EH)
800 — 1600 —
700—
600 — 1200—
500 —
400— 800—
300—
200— 400—
@2 2013 100— @ 2013 . )
- 2012 ’ - 2012 7 7 _
Note Kz
T Excluding foreign currency effects.
MERE R L -

FEBEBRERAR 5
ZO—Z=HEH
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Chairman’s Statement
R

This is the fourth consecutive year that the adjusted EBITDA

of the business has increased in excess of 15.0%, and it is also
pleasing to see sales pass through the US$2 billion level for the
first time. In fact, since the transformation programme of the
Group began in 2009, sales have almost doubled and adjusted

EBITDA has increased by almost six times.

FBHEFHEEBITDAEBEE N FIBIREB15.0%  RMTFMARBHERBAREK
20BFERKF - BE L BAKEENR2009FHMBITERTBILUR  HEBRE L HIER

—1{Z > MEAZBITDAEREIRAE -

This is the fourth consecutive year that the adjusted EBITDA of the business
has increased in excess of 15.0%, and it is also pleasing to see sales pass
through the US$2 billion level for the first time. In fact, since the transformation
programme of the Group began in 2009, sales have almost doubled and
adjusted EBITDA has increased by almost six times. Two factors continue to
support the growth of our business: firstly, there is no sign of any let up in
the global appetite for travel and tourism, especially in developing markets.
Secondly, the Group has consistently invested in its brands and products around
the world. With our roots in international travel it perhaps should come as no
surprise that Samsonite has subsidiaries operating in over 40 countries, but
perhaps what is most telling is how long the business has been established
in the world's largest and growing markets. Founded in Denver in 1910, the
Group began operations in Europe in 1963, and has operated in Japan for
almost 50 years, China for over 15 years, India for almost 20 years, and Mexico
for approximately 50 years. This long experience of adapting our commercial
policies to local needs sets us apart from many other companies operating in
the global consumer space. These solid historical foundations, and the wide
global spread of our business, help to moderate the impact of forces that
buffet individual markets occasionally, for example currency movements, natural
disasters, and changes in political climate. In 2012, for example, we had to
contend with a weak Euro; in 2013 it was the depreciation of many Asian
currencies that had an impact on the US dollar value of sales and profits.
Underlining the broad base of Samsonite, in a year that growth in China slowed,
we were able to expand our US business by almost a quarter. | have no doubt
that the sources of growth will again shift in 2014, but remain confident that
in aggregate we can continue to maintain a consistent pace of development.

The main features of our 2013 results are as follows: the Company’s total net
sales increased by 15.0% from the previous year to a record US$2,037.8 million.
Excluding foreign currency effects, net sales increased by 16.1%. Reported
profit increased by 18.5% to US$197.4 million, and profit attributable to

Samsonite International S.A.
Annual Report 2013

RMERNETARBTDAEE £ N ELIFRB
15.0% @ HATFIAR BB EREIREW20RE
TKF - BEL » BARKER2009FHHETE
BFBIUR HEBLABEE—Z MEHAR
EBITDABERE A - MIBEZFERFRME
BMIEE B ERERTREENER (£
HERREPTS) OEREIMHRNTR - X
REF-HERERASHUHEZEREREHR
B o ERBMUERRERRE  FEENHE
AREHEBIOBERETE AT - MEMRE
RBRARFEIERNTENEERREREDLIK
A o REBM1910FEFAHEIL - A 1963 F1ER
MBEARER - W1E AARKLEFS0F - FEENS
F - ER20ERBATHNS0F - KAREE
BURMMEEMEENRPLRERMEAER
SHMSERRHEEBN DR PHAMSL o 1t
ERENELREURKFERZRWERER
ENEHEEENTESNIE (WEKEE -
BAKERBUARENE) HFE - BHIFH - R
R0 F BERERBHECT ; MR2013FR
SENERREHUE T ENEEER RS
BEE - REE  PEIERBUR  HERMINAR
HERBMNEEEBENS 22— REHFE
WREER - KRARE » BRIFBER2014FH
REE S EARAHRFRBEHERSEENE
BREKMATRED

FM2013F£ENEINT : RKRATMNEEFE
BEERAFIRR15.0% » £12,037.8EEETMNRE
BHE  MBRERFE  HEFHEER161%-
HREANER185% 219748 B X - MRE



equity holders increased by 18.6% to US$176.1 million. Adjusted Net Income,

which takes into account certain non-operating and one-off costs and gives
a clearer picture of the underlying performance of the business, increased by
13.2% to US$189.2 million.

Another key performance indicator of the Group’s overall profitability is
adjusted EBITDA, and this increased by 17.9% to US$337.7 million. On the
same basis, the adjusted EBITDA margin on sales advanced further from 16.2%
to a best ever 16.6%.

The Group generated US$193.0 million of cash from operating activities, slightly
down on US$203.0 million in 2012 after a substantial contribution to our US
pension plan of US$33.2 million, of which US$20.0 million was discretionary.
The Group ended 2013 in a net cash position of US$209.8 million.

Earnings per share on an adjusted and diluted basis increased from US$0.119
to US$0.134, an increase of 12.6%. The Board has previously indicated its
intention to follow a progressive dividend policy. We now have full confidence
in the sustainable cash flow generation of the business and have therefore
decided to recommend an increase in the proportion of cash flow paid out to
shareholders. For 2014, the Board recommends a cash distribution of US$80.0
million, or approximately US$0.057 per share, an increase of 113.3% from
the US$37.5 million distribution paid in 2013.

As part of the Group’s approved long-term incentive arrangements, the
Board of Directors granted share options to certain directors and employees
on January 7, 2014. The share options entitle the recipients to subscribe
to an aggregate of 12,266,199 new ordinary shares. Our Share Award
Scheme assists the Group in attracting skilled and experienced personnel
and incentivises them to remain with the Group and to achieve the very best
financial results over the medium term.

BEAEBMGEFAERIS6%EIT6.IEE X
TC o FEAE T IRELE R — MR A I A R R
EBHBARENEHZFRAEEIZ2%E
189.2HBET °

REERBERAEINE —ETERBEEHL
FEEBITDA » R 179% E337.7HBET %
HRIE%E - HEENWLRZBITDARERE—S
H16.2% IR EEREEMN16.6% °

BERMOEERRS T BEE REMAN33.28
BER (AF2008BEZBREHER) & K&
SEELEKEEHMBREINBIEEEL B
2025203 0B BEREMAD - REEBZE
2013F ILME RS H2098FEET ©

REAERRBEELETENSREFIH19
ETERI26%E013M4ET - EEFBAER
THEEFERERSHCR - RMBFHER T
BEEHRSRTREL  AMRAEEZEMER
RRNHNBESLE - R20145  ESSEEE
HB00EBERHAEBRAN00S7TEANRE S
K B2013F RN M37SEEERTDRER
113.3% °

EAHREECHERMRBRHN —H2 &2
BR2014F1A7EMETESREERLER
& o BIRFER FRRARES 112,266,199 5
ERERAEF - KR EBTEBAES
W BRENERHAL  BEHSEELE
WA EAREVS BB 54 -
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Chairman’s Statement £E#H&

The mark of a successful strategy is one that remains consistent over time,
without being unduly inflexible. We believe the track record of the business
reflects our adherence to the principle of “glocalisation”, that is, seeking to
derive full advantage of global scale, whilst at the same time adapting our

commercial policies and practice to local markets. To operate in this manner,
it is essential to have a strong foundation of systems and logistics that allows
for proper control whilst supporting flexibility in front end delivery. Our
management philosophy is to decentralise operations as much as possible,
and to create full accountability for performance at the country level. As | have
explained in previous reports, our regions operate as stand-alone businesses,
responsible for end-to-end management from factory gate to customer
purchase. From market to market, customers, channels and products vary,
but the brand values of Samsonite, American Tourister, Hartmann and High
Sierra remain consistent, backed by common global quality standards. Our
customers can be sure of the same quality wherever in the world they buy our
products, and this underpins the trust they place in our brands.

Although we operate our business in three regions, the senior management of
the Company cooperates closely in matters of common interest. For example,
there is a free market of ideas in the business, and marketing teams constantly
exchange information on new product development, market intelligence and
advertising material. Products that are successful in one region, often find their
way very quickly into other regions, with appropriate modifications. Although
marketing materials tend to be adapted to local conditions, a considerable
amount of material is used on a worldwide basis. On sourcing, regions co-
operate closely when dealing with some of our partner suppliers. The central
services of the Group - legal, financial and IT, all have team members who
are part of each region’s management structure, and this ensures that the
centre is responsive to local needs. One of the key strengths of our business

Samsonite International S.A.
Annual Report 2013

HERARE - BMXTABIER—EARYE
BRI - BRPIEEEBTERMEMABE2
BRAMAL | FRA] > BVER TS FAE IR ER
B MERKRESHmSAZRRMPNEER
EREH - B HREE > HEEBERE T
ERMFERETEESEE  RRRMHEE
MATRRM - RPN EBRTERRTHIRE
E UWEBEREENRRELZEBES -
HUMAARBENRESFHHE REANBE
UBYFACEER  BELRERFPBEEN
HHRER c FTRAMSNES - RERERY
B AR M35 B American Tourister »
Hartmann R High Sierra ¥ & BB 1 £ B & 5
BERETER-—H BFFTRLOEHAZ
FBERMNERYBEERRE  #MEEHK
ZURMRENEET -

HARMI ZEHBREXY  BALASH
EEERARNEEEGE - flm BMEX
BIEAXBRER  SEHEEEBRHERM
B mERRREEMNREEIERE - RE
—WERNNWEREEEBRRBE TAER
Hitth BN - @BELHMBETEE LS
B EREMBD2RER - BREMS - &
wEAREMETAEBHHERRZNER
BEfF o REBNPRRE —EB BERE
AR HHEARATHEEBEEBHEBAK
B BREEPAEOEELTE - RMEH
MRz -REDED EERINER B



is the back office: well-functioning systems, efficient logistics and a legal and
intellectual property protection department that defends our brands from the
inevitable range of brand and patent infringement issues.

Our business depends for success on having the very best and the most
exciting products for our customers. We have therefore invested more than
ever before in our design offices in Italy, Belgium, Hong Kong, Chicago
and Boston. The challenge for our company is to come up with genuinely
innovative concepts and materials. To this end, our designers and development
engineers collaborate with university research departments and attend many
industry fairs in search of new developments in plastics and fabrics that may
have some application to travel goods. We now also have an expanding
manufacturing footprint in hard-side luggage, having doubled the size of our
facility in Hungary, and further invested in our plants in Belgium and India.
This in-house production engineering expertise is important for the long run
development of proprietary technology and product research. Having reviewed
our products around the world this year, | have been struck by the sheer range
of design ideas, and the breadth of the colour palette. We are constantly
striving to inject some excitement into our products, whether Samsonite,
American Tourister, High Sierra or Hartmann, and there is a long line-up of
new product introductions for 2014.

The world of luggage is certainly a more colourful place today than a few
years ago. Consumers are taking a much deeper interest in the category, and
demand more than a simple black bag. The carry-on has become an essential
piece of kit for the modern traveller and like all items in constant use, is to
some extent, an expression of the taste of the owner. In addition, regulations
on what is permitted inside the aircraft cabin are constantly changing and
standards vary from one airline to another. Responding to these changing
needs is a challenge, but our products remain some of the lightest, most
appealing and offer the highest volumes within given size constraints. The
business category is also changing fast. Apart from the increasing casualization
of the workplace that is blurring the distinction between backpacks and
business bags, the technology is shifting rapidly. The tablet and smartphone
are rapidly taking the place of many laptops, which in turn are becoming
smaller, thinner and lighter.

As little as five years ago, the Samsonite brand accounted for over 75.0%
of the Group’s sales. Now this figure is down to 69.4% and the American
Tourister brand has become our main engine of growth in Asia, and takes
21.1% of our business worldwide. The acquisitions of Hartmann and High
Sierra have further diversified our brand portfolio, and I am pleased to report
that the regions are well advanced in their plans to launch these essentially US
brands in Asia and Europe. We are investing in these new product segments
and | believe there is further capacity to expand our stable of brands. We also
believe there are plenty of opportunities for our eponymous Samsonite brand.
In 2013, sales of the brand were up 9.7% in constant currency terms, the
same rate as the previous year, and in Europe and the US, the vast majority
of our business is still under the Samsonite banner.

MORR —EEEEARERERERM R
BRERMANEEEZHEUBRORERENEE

BREZE -

BEEBWRIIBARATFRUEERRS
ABEMNER - Bt RMBURZEAR -
AEE BB EMIRBELTENRFAHOEE
HHEUEEANKRE - AATHBENBRE
HEFAFMBSRME - Btm s - &MY
AR B TR EABNIFRIBAEHE
WHEZETEREE UG AL AR ki
EmNEREANNTEE - RABEBTITE
BABEETETHRNEERE ROTINERE
BAR—F WE—SRERLLFIGREDENK
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RHENREZREZHEE - LRARFER
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RREFHN FEERBEREEHEEER
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Chairman’s Statement £E#H&

In 2012, the weak Euro depressed our results in US dollars; in 2013 it was
the turn of the Asian currencies to weaken substantially. Comparing average
rates for 2013 with those of 2012, the Australian dollar was down 7.2%,
the Indian rupee down 8.4%, the Indonesian rupiah down 9.9% and the
Japanese yen down 16.9%. Collectively, foreign currency movements reduced
Group turnover by US$18.4 million, or 1.1%, a much smaller impact than the
year before. 2013 was a great year for our North American business: with
acquisitions, turnover was up a remarkable 24.4%, and even without the
benefit of the first year’s trading of the Hartmann and High Sierra brands,
sales were up 14.0%. However, taking into account tougher conditions in
China, our Asian business also recorded a very healthy 15.6% sales growth in
constant currency terms, underlining the broad base of the region and lack of
dependency on any single market. We were also very pleased with results in
Europe, which almost managed double-digit sales growth in constant currency
terms, despite the continuing challenges in Spain and Italy.

Looking at individual regional performances, Asia remains an important
driver of our business: it remains our largest region (37.7% of sales) and has
consistently delivered very rapid growth —in 2013 it was 15.6% as noted
above. The American Tourister brand is the main driver of our business in Asia,
accounting for three quarters of our sales growth in the region and increasing
by 26.6% in constant currency terms. We believe there are many further
opportunities to expand this truly international brand positioned at more
accessible price points, offering eye-catching and colourful products. We were
also pleased with the progress of the Samsonite Red brand. Launched in South
Korea, and aimed at a younger more fashion-conscious consumer, this brand
is now showing signs of becoming an international name. Sales increased
79.5% to just under US$30.0 million and we are confident of taking this
beyond US$50.0 million in 2014. In local currency terms, almost all markets in
Asia achieved double digit growth, the highlights being: South Korea 27.9%,
Hong Kong 18.2%, Thailand 17.3%, Indonesia 27.1%, India 18.3%, Japan
18.6% and Australia 14.1%. Of particular note is the performance of South
Korea, a large and mature market, and in which our growth has been broadly
based across e-commerce, TV shopping and retail. It was pleasing to see the
recovery of India, as we moved the business away from promotional activities,
and sales increased in Japan in local currency, as we continue to expand our
points of sale. After several years of stellar growth in China, 2013 has been
more subdued with sales up only 5.3% in local currency. Clearly the slackening
in the overall growth rate and official policy on gift-related purchases, have
had an impact on demand. Also, our business was affected by non-repetition
of several one-off B2B deals in 2012. However, e-commerce is growing rapidly,
and our own stores have performed well. We have plenty of new product and
brand initiatives in China, and remain confident that this market will continue
to lead the region in terms of growth and profit contribution.

Our business in the US has enjoyed another spectacular year with the
business expanding by almost a quarter. In a mature market, sales excluding
acquisitions were up 14.0%. The reason for this performance, far ahead
of the market overall, has been the sell-through of our products in our key
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The mark of a successful strategy is

one that remains consistent over time,
without being unduly inflexible. We believe
the track record of the business reflects
our adherence to the principle of
“localisation”, that is, seeking to derive
full advantage of global scale, whilst at
the same time adapting our commercial
policies and practice to local markets.

RERBRE - FMXARBENR — AR RB R o
RAEEREBERRREMBE [ 2R | HRA - BISX
AANAEHRRENED  MAKEEELHSHBRMAN

B EBUR R AEH -

wholesale customers, along with an excellent service level. These two factors
have encouraged more listings and, working together with our retail partners,
we have developed more successful product lines tailored to the needs of our
customers. In common with other regions across the world, the internet is
becoming a major part of the retail landscape, with sales more than doubling.
The travel category was the main driver of our business, up 15.3% and within
this segment, sales of hard-side cases were up 32.9%. With High Sierra, casual
sales were up 171.1%, 17.6% without. Three High Sierra retail stores have
opened, and we have finished the complete overhaul of the Hartmann range,
in addition to planning the retail development of the brand in 2014. Market
reaction to the product line-up of both brands has been very encouraging.
Overall, sales in the retail channel increased 14.0% in 2013, and we have
plans to further expand our retail network in 2014.

We were pleased with sales and EBITDA performance in Europe this year: sales
increased 9.2%, excluding foreign currency effects, and there were plenty of
good country results. In local currency terms, Germany, our largest market in
the region, was up 11.9%, France 9.0%, the UK 27.8% and Russia 27.9%. Our
biggest success has been in the hard-side category, increasing by 11%. The newly
updated Cosmolite model in the Curv family did well and the new S'Cure line
took polypropylene cases to a new level and is the clear leader in the market. It
was also encouraging to see the growth in the business category with sales up
13.7%, and a very positive reaction to recent product launches. During the year
we completed a major expansion programme at our plant in Hungary, more than
doubling capacity of Curv production, and the new warehouse in Oudenaarde,
Belgium will be completed in March 2014 on time and below budget. This
investment will replace third party warehousing with a considerable cost saving
and gain in efficiency. Although Spain and Italy remain difficult markets there
were signs at the end of the year that the worst may be over, and that we can
look forward to a stronger performance from these countries in 2014.
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LITE-LOCKED

We completed some important initiatives in our Latin American business
in 2014. Overall performance was satisfactory, with sales up 11.7%,
excluding currency effects. On the negative side, our business in Argentina
continues to contract as we retrench our retail operations in response to
import controls. However, elsewhere we are building the foundation for
higher levels of growth in the future. Chile remains the lynchpin of the
region, recording sales growth of 15.7% in local currency. The Xtrem
back-to-school backpack business was strong again, and we are seeing
encouraging results from the new women'’s handbag initiative under the
Secret brand. Domestic sales in Mexico were up 10.2% and with our
strong brand positioning, this should be a big market opportunity over
the next few years. During the year we opened our own sales subsidiaries
in Colombia, Peru and Panama, which will improve our market position.
Similarly, we have also moved our Brazilian business from a distributor
model to a direct import and sales structure, which will hopefully shift
our sales up several gears. Early indications are positive.

The US$266.1 million increase in net sales for the year was mainly the result
of growth in the travel segment that was up 12.8%, excluding currency
effects. However, there were good performances in other categories, and
this has helped to spread our business more evenly. For example, the share
of casual products has increased from 6.2% to 10.1% of total net sales,
and the share of travel has reduced from 76.6% to 74.4%. The apparent
weak performance in business products, up only 3.3% excluding currency
effects does not tell the whole story. In fact, sales were up 13.2% in North
America and 13.7% in Europe. A small decline of 3.1% in Asia is due mainly
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to the timing of product launches, but also as a result of the shift of many
business products from bags to backpacks. As mentioned, above the line
between the business and casual segments is becoming more blurred. It
is also worth noting the performance of accessories in 2013, up 8.2% in
local currency terms. We have taken back another important license in
Europe, and with the improvement to our product ranges, we see good
prospects for this broad category in 2014.

As | have explained in previous reports, it remains a key strategy of our Group
to be the biggest investor in brand marketing, and in 2013 we continued
this approach. The Group spent US$129.2 million on marketing in the year,
up 10.2% on the previous year. In terms of percentage of sales, this was
down slightly, from 6.6% to 6.3%, but this is explained by several factors.
Firstly, performance has been strong in the US, where spend rates are lower.
Secondly, we are becoming more efficient in our allocation of resources; and
thirdly, it was possible to buy media at more competitive rates for much of
2013. Social media and online investment are becoming a more important
part of our marketing effort as we communicate more effectively with the
new generation of consumers.

There is no doubt that the era of very low-cost goods sourced from highly
labour-intensive factories in Asia, is now drawing to a close. Labour costs
in our factories are rising, and the RMB has been slowly gaining on the US
dollar further pushing up prices. However, these are trends that affect all
manufacturing industries, and our strategies must adapt to new circumstances.
In the first place commodity markets have been subdued, and materials still
account for the overwhelming proportion of our input costs. Secondly, we
are always looking for ways to manufacture products with less labour, as are
our manufacturing partners. We also keep a very close eye on relative costs in
different source countries across the world as well as on the costs of freight,
warehousing and so on. However, it is unlikely that there will be any change
to the location of most of our supplier partners in the next few years, owing to
well-entrenched supply infrastructure of key components. In overall terms, we
expect to maintain a similar level of gross margins for the foreseeable future.

Capital expenditure in 2013 was considerably higher than in previous years:
US$57.2 million compared with US$37.9 million last year. The main reasons
for this increased spend were the construction of the new warehouse in
Belgium, the expansion of the plant in Hungary and further investment in
new retail stores. Although there will be occasional lumpy investments in
plant and equipment, we expect spending to be somewhat below 2013
levels in future years.

The Group generated US$193.0 million from operating activities during the
year. This was US$10.0 million below last year, but is after a substantial pension
funding contribution in the US of US$33.2 million, of which US$20.0 million
was discretionary. We are approaching closer to the point where this scheme,
consisting mainly of legacy liabilities, will be fully funded at which time we
can review our options.
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It is too early to tell what 2014 may have in store for our business. However,
in general, there should be a more positive macro-economic climate than last
year. We expect the market for travel and tourism to expand ahead of GDP
in most countries. There are signs that the trading environment in China is
stabilising, and we expect overall trading conditions in Europe to be the best
since 2010. We cannot expect to maintain the organic growth levels seen in
North America over the past few years, and have planned accordingly. Yet | am
confident that many other markets will perform well, and the main reason for
the consistency of our performance remains the diverse nature of our business
in terms of products and markets. Whilst we have a sizeable lead over many
of our competitors, our success is not taken for granted, and we constantly
challenge ourselves as a management team to find better ways of doing
things. With the growth initiatives we have in-house and the opportunities
we have to leverage our distribution strengths with brands we can acquire, |
am confident that Samsonite has plenty of further room for expansion.

It is important that our company has a proper plan for management succession,
and we are always thinking about the next generation of managers who will
lead our company to future success. We are fortunate to have a very stable
and talented group of executives across the world, and one of the outstanding
members of our team is Ramesh Tainwala, who has led the Asian region to
enormous success in the past few years. | have asked Ramesh to take on the
role of Chief Operating Officer, responsible for running day-to-day operations,
while allowing me to focus on directing the Group’s strategy and building a
stronger relationship with our shareholders and the investment community at
large. There is no better person to fill this role, and both of us look forward to
working together to achieve even more for our business, in which, | should
mention, we are both heavily invested. Congratulations, too, go to Leo Suh,
who will be promoted from successfully running our South Korean business, to
take over a large part of our Asian business. Finally, | would like to thank all of
our people who work so hard for our company, in so many different functions
and a wide array of countries and time zones. Samsonite is a real global
community, and | believe this will serve us very well in our future endeavours.

174 k’\ ////ff-/

Timothy Charles Parker
Chairman
March 18, 2014
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Management Discussion and Analysis &2 @1 mEDHT

Samsonite International S.A. (the “Company”), together with its consolidated
subsidiaries (the “Group”), is the world’s largest travel luggage company, with
a heritage dating back more than 100 years. The Group is principally engaged
in the design, manufacture, sourcing and distribution of luggage, business and
computer bags, outdoor and casual bags, and travel accessories throughout
the world, primarily under the Samsonite®, American Tourister®, High Sierra®
and Hartmann® brand names as well as other owned and licensed brand
names. The Group’s core brand, Samsonite, is one of the most well-known
travel luggage brands in the world.

The Group sells its products through a variety of wholesale distribution
channels, through its company operated retail stores and through e-commerce.
Its principal luggage wholesale distribution customers are department and
specialty retail stores, mass merchants, catalog showrooms and warehouse
clubs. The Group sells its products in Asia, North America, Europe and Latin
America. As of December 31, 2013, the Group’s products were sold at more
than 46,000 points of sale in over 100 countries.

Management discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with the
Group's audited financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS"”) as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board. Certain comparative amounts have
been reclassified to conform to the presentation adopted in the current year.
None of the changes impacts the Group’s previously reported consolidated net
sales, gross profit, operating profit, income tax expense, profit for the year,
earnings per share, net cash generated from operating activities, investing
activities or financing activities, or the statement of financial position.

Net Sales

The following table sets forth a breakdown of net sales by region for the years
ended December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, both in absolute terms
and as a percentage of total net sales.

HEBERBRLR ([ADF] ERHEASH
BAEBAIKNEE] RERERWRET
TRAT BERI00FEARESE - KEFTE
LAFTFEE® ~ American Tourister® ~ High Sierra® &
Hartmann® @A R Bt BB RERENTIE -
RERETBRERT  HE  KBROBETE
- BHEREME - FIMERKEEURIKREE
Bt - AEBENR OB FTEREZREEEN
MR TEMEmEZ— ©
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BZEN2B3ALFE

Year ended December 31, 20135 BE2012F LE Y
2013 2012 2013 vs 2012
& (4> BRE 2
SHEFRE SHERE Bt BiCRD) BED L
FXxT BAL FEx BAL % increase % increase (decrease)
US$'000 % of net sales US$'000 % of net sales (decrease) excl. foreign currency effects
Net sales by region:

R EE D HEHE R ¢
Asia T 768,363 684,154 38.6% 12.3% 15.6%
North America 3t M 621,741 499,924 28.2% 24.4% 24.6%
Europe EUM 515,177 465,383 26.3% 10.7% 9.2%
Latin America 31T M 123,580 112,556 6.4% 9.8% 11.7%
Corporate 1% 8,951 9,709 0.5% (7.8)% (7.8)%
Net sales $HE&F58 2,037,812 1,771,726 100.0% 15.0% 16.1%
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Excluding foreign currency effects, net sales increased by 16.1%. US Dollar
reported net sales increased by US$266.1 million, or 15.0%, to US$2,037.8
million for the year ended December 31, 2013, from US$1,771.7 million for
the year ended December 31, 2012
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Brands am hg

The following table sets forth a breakdown of net sales by brand for the years ~ T&REFIEZ 201351231 BR2012F12 431
ended December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, both in absolute terms B ILFERBEE S M EFEAA - UELHE
and as a percentage of total net sales. RAGHEFRETEA DLLIER -

|
BZE12B31ALEE

Year ended December 31, 20135 B2012E L 8%
2013 2012 2013 vs 2012
& (R4 TBREE 55 &1
SHEFE SHEHE B BiCRD) BED L
FEx Bat FEx Bt % increase % increase (decrease)
US$'000 % of net sales US$'000 % of net sales (decrease) excl. foreign currency effects
Net sales by brand:

RmiEE D WIHERE ¢
Samsonite #F5E 1,413,703 69.4% 1,295,706 73.1% 9.1% 9.7%
American Tourister 429,309 21.1% 354,563 20.0% 21.1% 23.4%
High Sierra' / Hartmann? 87,488 4.3% 29,623 1.7% 195.3% 196.9%
Other Hfth? 107,312 5.2% 91,834 5.2% 16.9% 19.0%
Net sales $HE&F58 2,037,812 100.0% 1,771,726 100.0% 15.0% 16.1%

Notes HKfzE

T The High Sierra brand was acquired on July 31, 2012. Prior to the acquisition, Samsonite Australia was a distributor of High Sierra products. Net sales
under this distribution arrangement were US$2.1 million during the portion of the year ended December 31, 2012 that preceded the acquisition.
ARATR201247 A 31 B UREE High Sierra i1 ° Samsonite Australia RURBEATE High Sierra EE G2 857 © RIBLED SR BMNBEEFENEZ 2012512 831 A LL FEWEATD B
BR2I1BBET

2 The Hartmann brand was acquired on August 2, 2012.
ARATA201258 A2 B UREE Hartmann G

3 Other includes local brands Saxoline, Xtrem and others.
HABIEA M G Saxoline » Xtrem REALGAE

| | |
Neltj Saleiby B\Irand Samsonite American High Sierra/  Other
BmEE D HHEFHE FEE Tourister Hartmann Hity

\'

2012

Excluding foreign currency effects, net sales of the Samsonite brand increased HMBRERSE  FEERENEEZHLER
by 9.7%. US Dollar reported net sales of the Samsonite brand increased by — 9.7% ° BZ2013%F 12831 B L FEUETHIR
US$118.0 million, or 9.1%, for the year ended December 31, 2013 compared ~ W EERIGHEFEREFEMIISOEEE
to the previous year. The Samsonite brand comprised 69.4% of the net sales  7T589.1% ° # A EREEEREE2013FHEF
of the Group during 2013 compared to 73.1% in 2012 as the Group further ~ %869.4% * M2012E81573.1% » AAREEE—
diversified its brand portfolio. Net sales of the American Tourister brand $LEHRMASFH - KETEBEE,
increased by 23.4% on a constant currency basis. US Dollar reported net  American Tourister R IE HISH & FEEIL R 23.4%
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sales of the American Tourister brand increased by US$74.7 million, or 21.1%,
for the year ended December 31, 2013 compared to the previous year. Asia
accounted for US$63.1 million, or 84.5%, of the US$74.7 million increase in
American Tourister brand sales for the year. These increases were attributable
to expanded product offerings and further penetration of existing markets,
which were all supported by the Group’s targeted advertising activities. The
High Sierra and Hartmann brands contributed net sales of US$72.0 million
and US$15.5 million, respectively, as the Group continues to execute on its
integration strategy and further geographical expansion of these brands.

Product Categories

The Group sells products in four principal product categories: travel, business,
casual and accessories. The travel category is the Group’s largest category and
has been its traditional strength. The following table sets forth a breakdown
of net sales by product category for the years ended December 31, 2013
and December 31, 2012, both in absolute terms and as a percentage of
total net sales.

BE203F12A3MBLEFEUEXZ THBRHY
American Tourister i RS E FREBREFEBR
TATEBETH21.1% ° ER » MG American
Tourister A& 74 TEH B ETHERIERER63.1H
ERHBA5% o WERRTIMNAEBRAE
RERIRINRSERETS - W EASHEMEN
BEEEEEXFT % & o High Sera
Hartmann M5 RIS SHEFE2.08BER
155BBET  WRAEEFEETREARE
RE—SRRZERERI M

EmiERl
AEEHENERRENBEFTEERE @ ik
I B REREMY o REERALEERA
ERER  BHEFHRE - TRIAIEZE2013F
12B318K2012F 1231 A L EERERER
B MHEFERM  UBHERGHEETEL
EE LB o

BZE12B31HLEFE
Year ended December 31,

20135FEE2012F bR
2013 2012 2013 vs 2012
%0 (R4 MBREE 5 S EH
HERE SHEFE P EB(RD)BED L
FTXR Bk Fxx Btk % increase % increase (decrease)
US$'000 % of net sales US$'000 % of net sales (decrease) excl. foreign currency effects
Net sales by product category:
RERER D NEEFHE
Travel fiiEz 1,515,852 1,357,054 76.6% 11.7% 12.8%
Casual R 205,871 109,743 6.2% 87.6% 88.8%
Business %% 193,474 189,561 10.7% 2.1% 3.3%
Accessories Bt 85,745 79,662 4.5% 7.6% 8.2%
Other HAth 36,870 35,706 2.0% 3.3% 3.1%
Net sales $HEF28 2,037,812 1,771,726 100.0% 15.0% 16.1%
I— I I I I
Net Sales by Produ\s:t Category Travel Casual Business Accessories  Other
RERERNEDHHETHE hisid 1B L4 it Hity
HEEEBRERAA

—O—=%
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The US$266.1 million increase in net sales for the year ended December
31, 2013 compared to the previous year was largely driven by an increase
in net sales in the travel product category, which increased by 12.8%
excluding foreign currency effects. Country-specific product designs, locally
relevant marketing strategies and expanded points of sale continue to
be the key factors contributing to the Group’s sales growth in the travel
category. Net sales in the casual product category increased by 88.8%
on a constant currency basis. This increase was attributable to the full
year impact of the Group’s 2012 acquisition of High Sierra, the strategic
focus on expanding the Group’s casual product offerings and the success
of the Samsonite Red brand in Asia. Excluding net sales attributable to
High Sierra, net sales in the casual product category increased by US$44.6
million, or 45.3%. Excluding foreign currency effects, net sales in the
business product category increased by 3.3%, driven by a 13.2% increase
in North America and a 13.7% increase in Europe due to new product
introductions and expanded product placement. These increases were
marginally offset by a 3.1% decrease in constant currency net sales in the
business category in Asia due largely to high end products such as the
Samsonite Business Leather line facing challenges in China as a result of
the current austerity measures and the non-repetition of several one-off
business-to-business deals in 2012. Excluding foreign currency effects,
net sales in the accessories product category increased by 8.2% for the
year ended December 31, 2013 compared to the previous year, reflecting
expanded product offerings in this category. Net sales in the other product
category increased by 3.1% on a constant currency basis for the year ended
December 31, 2013 compared to the previous year.

Samsonite International S.A.
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Distribution Channels

The Group sells products through two primary distribution channels:
wholesale and retail. The following table sets forth a breakdown of net
sales by distribution channel for the years ended December 31, 2013 and
December 31, 2012, both in absolute terms and as a percentage of total
net sales.

DEHERE
AEEEAMEETESHRENEER  HBER
TE - TREFBE2013F12831BR20125F
NANBLEERSHREZINHEFESR
# UERHEREHEFEAET AR

BZ12A318LEE
Year ended December 31,

20134220124 b 8

2013 2012 2013 vs 2012
o CRi ) MBRE R &M
HERHE HERE Aot #ICHD) B2t
T AL S BAL % increase % increase (decrease)
US$'000 % of net sales US$'000 % of net sales (decrease) excl. foreign currency effects
Net sales by distribution channel:
ROERBE D NIEEFHE ¢
Wholesale #t 2 1,614,733 1,425,537 80.5% 13.3% 14.3%
Retail =& 414,128 336,417 19.0% 23.1% 24.2%
Other Ht' 8,951 9,772 0.5% (8.4)% (8.4)%
Net sales $5& /558 2,037,812 1,771,726 100.0% 15.0% 16.1%
Note FizE
T Other primarily consists of licensing income.
HipF ZEFERERA -
| — —
Net Sales by Distribution Channel  \y jesale Retail Other
ROEREEDNHERTE Has e Hit

2013 2012

During the year ended December 31, 2013, the Group expanded its points
of sale by approximately 1,000 to a total of more than 46,000 points of
sale worldwide as of December 31, 2013. Almost half of the points of sale
added during 2013 were in Asia.

Excluding foreign currency effects, net sales in the wholesale channel
increased by 14.3% for the year ended December 31, 2013 compared to
the previous year. US Dollar reported net sales in the wholesale channel
increased by US$189.2 million, or 13.3%. On a constant currency basis,
net sales in the retail channel increased by 24.2% over the same period.
US Dollar reported net sales in the retail channel increased by US$81.4
million, or 23.1%. On a same-store, constant currency basis, net sales in
the retail channel increased by 7.8%. During 2013, approximately 5% of
the Group’s net sales were derived from its direct-to-consumer e-commerce
business, which is included within the retail channel, and net sales to
e-tailers, which are included within the wholesale channel.

HZE2013F12831BLLEE AEEERY
1,0001E$5E2E - B20135F 128318 £2HE
HEEBIBA6,0001E S B o H2013F MM
SEE B — AP o

MGRE XSS BF2013F12831 B LFEH#
BRBHEFEREFIER143% - UETER
Mt EEHEFHEEME2EEETR
133% - RETEWEE  TEREHETFER
EEWR242% - LETEHRNWSEREHET
AN 1 AR BETH23.1% o RIBEEFHEE
EWMEE TEREBEHEFELERTS% R
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R - TEMEENNETE GTARERER)
FRES ©

HEBABRARAF

—O—=%

F i

21



Management Discussion and Analysis &2 @1 mEDHT

ASIA
it P

Excluding foreign currency effects, net sales increased by 15.6%. US Dollar
reported net sales for the Asian region increased by US$84.2 million, or 12.3%,
to US$768.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2013, from US$684.2
million for the year ended December 31, 2012.

The Group’s sales growth in Asia continues to be largely driven by the
American Tourister brand, which accounted for US$63.1 million, or 75.0%,
of the increase in net sales for the Asian region for the year ended December
31, 2013 compared to the previous year. Excluding foreign currency effects,
net sales of the American Tourister brand in the Asian region increased by
26.6%. American Tourister comprised 43.1% of the net sales in the Asian
region during 2013 compared to 39.2% for the previous year as the brand
further penetrated the market at more accessible price points. Net sales of
the Samsonite brand continued to grow in Asia, increasing by 8.0% from
the previous year on a constant currency basis and accounted for 55.1% of
net sales in the region during 2013. Net sales of the High Sierra brand were
US$5.5 million in Asia during 2013. The development of High Sierra branded
products specifically designed for the preferences of consumers in the region
is well underway.

Net sales in the travel product category increased by US$54.9 million, or
10.6%, and by 14.0% excluding foreign currency effects for the year ended
December 31, 2013 compared to the previous year. Net sales in the casual
product category increased by US$31.3 million, or 83.4%, and by 88.1%
on a constant currency basis year-on-year, driven by the success of the

Net Sales Growth

7 84.25%%

- Casual Net Sales
T o
HETEEE — K 2 15.6 k
US$m) £ (B E)

900 —

288.1%

800 —
Net Sales Growth
700 —
- Travel
HEFRHIER — ikiE 600 —
! 500 —
214.0%
400 —
Net Sales Growth 300 —
- Accessories o

HEFRIBR — B

215.4% :

Note K&t
T Excluding foreign currency effects.
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Samsonite Red brand. Net sales in the business product category decreased
by US$5.9 million, or 5.6%, and by 3.1% excluding foreign currency effects
compared to the previous year due largely to high end products such as
the Samsonite Business Leather line facing challenges in China as a result
of the current austerity measures and the non-repetition of several one-off
business-to-business deals in 2012. Net sales in the accessories product
category increased by US$2.4 million, or 12.8%, and by 15.4% on a constant
currency basis compared to the previous year.

Net sales in the wholesale channel increased by US$51.2 million, or 8.6%,
for the year ended December 31, 2013 compared to the previous year and
by 11.6% excluding foreign currency effects. Net sales in the retail channel
increased by US$33.0 million, or 37.5%, and by 42.3% on a constant currency
basis, over the same period. On a same-store, constant currency basis, net
sales in the retail channel increased by 9.7%. Almost 500 points of sale were

added in Asia during 2013, for a total of just under 6,900 points of sale in
Asia at December 31, 2013.

M
Firstyred

BBERERHEE TR EF RIS IBEET
H5.6% @ MBREXZEBRD31%  TBEAS
REMR WHFFEBERERI) ATERAER
WBERR 2012F 2Rt EEBEERE TE
HRMZHERY - RO ERERHEFERE
FRER2AABETR128% ' REETEREE
BR154% °

BZE2013F 12831 BILEFEMBREHEFHE
REFERSI2ABES86%  MBRERS
ZER16% ZERBHEEFEREAFER
3B0EBERHIIS% REEEMEERRE
423% o AEREHETEREE  TEREH
EFFAELRIT% ° H20135 » £ T8 M H 83T
SO00ESHE S, » SR M AV E A 2013
12 A31 B#36,90018 °

POPULAR WITH YOUNG,
FASHION-CONSCIOUS
CONSUMERS

K

FREREREEAEEERN

Sams$nite

R&eD



24

Management Discussion and Analysis &2 @1 mEDHT

Along with additional product offerings and points of sale expansion, the
success of the Group’s business in the Asian region has been bolstered by
its continued focus on country-specific product and marketing strategies to
drive increased awareness of and demand for the Group’s products. On a
constant currency basis, net sales increased in all countries in the Asian region
for the year ended December 31, 2013 compared to the previous year. China
continues to lead the Asian region in total net sales, contributing 25.0% of the
region’s net sales. Net sales in China increased by 5.3% on a constant currency
basis as the country’s economic growth continued to moderate. India posted
strong constant currency net sales growth, despite continued challenging
macroeconomic conditions, due to the success of new product introductions
designed to appeal to consumers who have become more value-conscious.
South Korea continues to experience robust sales growth driven by the success
of the American Tourister and Samsonite Red brands. Japan recorded robust
constant currency sales growth of 18.6%, however US Dollar reported net
sales are down by 2.8% year-on-year due to unfavourable exchange rates. Net
sales in Hong Kong, which includes Macau, increased by a notable US$10.3
million, or 18.2%.

The following table sets forth a breakdown of net sales within the Asian
region by geographic location for the years ended December 31, 2013 and
December 31, 2012, both in absolute terms and as a percentage of total
regional net sales.

RIEMERBEREBEZHERN AEBTENE
EBRNRD T ERAEET DN EUBERAR
WERREHEKR  UESRALEEERNE
ERMER - REEEWEE  BE2013F128
AL FETNEMERREEFEIRAFIZ
e PEISHE FHEABHEBLEINER 4
PEHEETFHES % BEFRALELRREF
EWER RETEEMEE PEHESFHEER
53% - BENEREEH T RRENRELK
RBE HHARRDELOSETEBENEES
FENHER WOESBEYNETEMHE
EFHEER - BB ERAmerican Tourister &
Samsonite Red & & B B T T 8% 15 38 S SH E 2R 1T
R AABERYEEEBHEREER18.6%
R AETRRNEEFEETFIERmIZRE
H2.8% o BB (BIFRM) HEFHELER
103EBERTH18.2% °

TREIEZE2013F128318 &20125128
MBI FEERME MBS DR N EHEEF
M UBHERGEHEE FRAHEE O
S8R o

HE2AIALEE
Year ended December 31, 2013F822012F Hr 8
2013 2012 2013 vs 2012
20 GRi) HEREE 5 S/ B
HEFE HEFH B i 0RL) Bt

FEr Bkt Fxx
US$000 % of net sales US$'000

BA % increase % increase (decrease)
% net sales (decrease) excl. foreign currency effects

Net sales by geographic location':
BRI B B HSHEFEE -

China FE 192,187 178,035 26.0% 7.9% 5.3%
South Korea g% 161,182 122,921 18.0% 31.1% 27.9%
India ENE 110,526 102,329 15.0% 8.0% 18.3%
Hong Kong 82 66,765 56,473 8.3% 18.2% 18.2%
Japan B4 64,172 66,013 9.6% (2.8)% 18.6%
Australia B 42,666 40,678 5.9% 4.9% 14.1%
Other Efth 130,865 117,705 17.2% 11.2% 13.4%
Net sales $HE 5458 768,363 684,154 100.0% 12.3% 15.6%
Notes Kz

T The geographic location of the Group’s net sales reflects the country from which its products were sold and does not necessarily indicate the

country in which its end consumers were actually located.

FEEHEFENGHVESARREEERNER - UF—ERHLIREEEERMENER -
2 Includes Macau.
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NORTH AMERICA

Excluding foreign currency effects, net sales for the North American region
increased by 24.6% for the year ended December 31, 2013 from the previous
year. US Dollar reported net sales for the North American region increased
by US$121.8 million, or 24.4%, to US$621.7 million for the year ended
December 31, 2013, from US$499.9 million for the year ended December
31, 2012. Excluding net sales attributable to the High Sierra and Hartmann
brands, which were acquired in the second half of 2012, net sales increased
by US$66.6 million, or 14.0%.

Net sales of the Samsonite brand increased by US$51.9 million, or 12.7%,
and net sales of the American Tourister brand increased by US$7.7 million, or
13.6%, for the year ended December 31, 2013 compared to the previous year.
Net sales of the High Sierra and Hartmann brands contributed incremental net
sales of US$47.8 million and US$7.5 million, respectively, for the year ended
December 31, 2013 due to the full year impact of the acquisitions.

Net sales in the travel product category increased by US$63.2 million, or
15.3%, year-on-year. Net sales in the casual product category increased by
US$55.1 million, or 171.1%, largely due to the full year inclusion of the High
Sierra brand. Excluding amounts attributable to High Sierra, net sales in the
casual product category increased by 17.6%. Net sales in the business product
category increased by US$4.8 million, or 13.0%, for the year ended December
31, 2013 compared to the previous year.
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Net sales in the wholesale channel increased by US$105.6 million, or 27.5%,
for the year ended December 31, 2013 compared to the previous year. Net
sales in the retail channel increased US$16.2 million, or 14.0%, year-on-year.
Net sales growth in the retail channel was largely driven by sales made through
the Group’s direct-to-consumer e-commerce website, which increased by
101.9% year-on-year, as well as the addition of ten net new stores opened in
2013. On a same-store, constant currency basis, net sales in the retail channel
increased by 0.9% as the retail store locations in less affluent areas continued
to be impacted by the slow economic recovery.

The overall increase in North America net sales was due to the Group’s
continued focus on marketing and selling regionally developed products,
which has enabled the Group to bring to market products that are designed
to appeal to the tastes and preferences of North American consumers, as well
as the addition of the High Sierra and Hartmann brands. Strong consumer
demand for the Group’s products has enabled it to continue to gain additional
product placement with its wholesale customers.

The following table sets forth a breakdown of net sales within the North
American region by geographic location for the years ended December 31,
2013 and December 31, 2012, both in absolute terms and as a percentage
of total regional net sales.

HE2013F12831BLFEMBREHETFE
BREAFIEMI0SABERTR27.5% c TERE
HEFERFERI2EBETH140% - TE
RENHEFEERTIESERAEEEERD
HEENETHERUMESHERFER
101.9% %8 - LAR 20135 F 8 56 1+’
i3 o B RIRABREBENSEEFES LK
EREREFE  WIZEREHEEEREE T
EREHEFHEER0I%

EENHEFRRBERTTDRRAEERFES
TEEREEENHBRNER  SAKERET
SRS EENEEERRREFNERNU
NI High Sierra & Hartmann SRIEFTE - HEE
HEASEERNESEREHEEESHBER
1BMETE -

TREFEE2013F12831BR2012F 12831
At FERBEAEE D NN EHEEF
B LBREREHEHEFELEASL
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BZ1283101LEE
Year ended December 31,

2013

HERR
T BAk FEx
US$'000 % of net sales US$'000

% of net sales

2013FE2012F b8

2012 2013 vs 2012
G 2>) HERE R &M

SHEFR Bk MR Bt
Baotk % increase % increase (decrease)

(decrease) excl. foreign currency effects

Net sales by geographic location':
R BB A HHEEFE

United States 589,618 94.8% 469,773 94.0% 25.5% 25.5%
Canada m& X 32,123 5.2% 30,151 6.0% 6.5% 10.2%
Net sales $H%EH%0 621,741 100.0% 499,924 100.0% 24.4% 24.6%

Note FizE

T The geographic location of the Group’s net sales reflects the country from which its products were sold and does not necessarily indicate the

country in which its end consumers were actually located.
AEBHEFENBINEL HRREEERNER - LT -ERLHEEEERMENESR
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Excluding foreign currency effects, net sales for the European region
increased by 9.2%. US Dollar reported net sales for the European region
increased by US$49.8 million, or 10.7%, to US$515.2 million for the year
ended December 31, 2013, from US$465.4 million for the year ended
December 31, 2012.

Excluding Italy and Spain, net sales for the European region increased by
12.5%, or 11.4% excluding foreign currency effects. The Group’s business in
ltaly and Spain showed early signs of stabilizing in the second half of 2013,
although trading conditions remain difficult due to the ongoing economic
challenges in Southern European countries.

Local currency sales growth has been strong in several markets due to the
positive sell-through of new product introductions, including new product
lines manufactured using the Curv material and other lines of polypropylene
suitcases, as demand for hardside luggage continues to grow in the region.
Germany, the Group’s leading market in Europe representing 14.4% of total
net sales in the region, achieved 11.9% constant currency sales growth during
the period. The United Kingdom and France posted strong constant currency
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net sales growth of 27.8% and 9.0%, respectively, over the previous year. The
Group continued to penetrate the emerging markets of Russia, South Africa
and Turkey with year-on-year constant currency net sales growth of 27.9%,
26.6% and 22.5%, respectively.

Net sales of the Samsonite and American Tourister brands increased by
US$44.0 million, or 10.2%, and US$3.8 million, or 15.4%, respectively, for
the year ended December 31, 2013 compared to the previous year. Excluding
foreign currency effects, net sales of the Samsonite and American Tourister
brands increased by 8.6% and 14.3%, respectively. Net sales of the American
Tourister brand amounted to US$28.1 million, representing 5.4% of net sales
in the European region for 2013.

Net sales in the travel product category increased by US$36.6 million, or
9.7%, and by 8.4% on a constant currency basis year-on-year. Net sales in the
casual product category increased by US$2.4 million, or 19.2%, and by 16.8%
excluding foreign currency effects. Net sales in the business product category
increased by US$5.3 million, or 15.9%, and by 13.7% on a constant currency
basis for the year ended December 31, 2013 due to successful launches of
new product lines throughout the year. Net sales in the accessories product
category increased by US$3.0 million, or 10.3%, and by 7.9% excluding
foreign currency effects.

Net sales in the wholesale channel increased by US$22.7 million, or 6.2%,
for the year ended December 31, 2013 compared to the previous year and
by 4.7% excluding foreign currency effects. Net sales in the retail channel
increased by US$27.1 million, or 27.6%, and by 26.0% on a constant currency
basis, over the same period. On a same-store, constant currency basis, net
sales in the retail channel for the European region increased by 15.3% as the
Group benefitted from certain promotional sales during the year.
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The following table sets forth a breakdown of net sales within the European
region by geographic location for the years ended December 31, 2013 and
December 31, 2012, both in absolute terms and as a percentage of total

TREYEZ20135F128318 R20125F 128
SR EERMEMES I NE N EHEEF
FERA - UBHERGEHERREAER ST

regional net sales. SR o
BZ12A310LEE
Year ended December 31, 20134 ER20125F Eb
% 2012 2013 vs 2012
120 (RL2 ‘) MBRE R &M
SHEFE EE:) M CHD) B AL
FErx Bt % increase % increase (decrease)
US$'000 % of net sales (decrease) excl. foreign currency effects

Net sales by geographic location':
it BE D WHEFE"

Germany 2E] 64,502 13.9% 15.2% 11.9%
France JAEl 59,580 12.8% 12.5% 9.0%
Belgium EbFIB% 2 58,164 12.5% 3.7% 0.6%
ltaly AR 52,383 11.3% 3.2% 0.2%
Russia & HT 35,931 7.7% 24.3% 27.9%
Spain Fa¥EEF 39,075 8.4% 3.1% (0.3)%
United Kingdom Z£E] 30,754 6.6% 25.9% 27.8%
Other Hfih 124,994 26.8% 8.6% 8.6%
Net sales $HE& F58 W/W 465,383 100.0% 10.7% 9.2%

Notes Ffz

T The geographic location of the Group’s net sales reflects the country from which its products were sold and does not necessarily indicate the
country in which its end consumers were actually located.

FEEHEFENHENBESFRREEERNER - LF—

ERKHEEERBAENER

2 Net sales in Belgium were US$21.6 million and US$25.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively.
Remaining sales consisted of direct shipments to distributors, customers and agents in other countries.
HE2013F12A31HKR20125F 12831 ALLFE - ELAFNHEFEI IR 6ABETR 25 1 BEER - HTHHECRERBETHAERND 8 - FFRARER -
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EENRED T

LATIN AMERICA
hi TSR

Excluding foreign currency effects, net sales increased by 11.7%. US Dollar
reported net sales for the Latin American region increased by US$11.0
million, or 9.8%, to US$123.6 million for the year ended December 31,
2013, from US$112.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2012.

For the year ended December 31, 2013, net sales in Chile improved by 15.7%
year-on-year, excluding foreign currency effects. The double-digit net sales
growth in Chile was due in large part to the strength of luggage sales and
robust consumer purchases of backpacks for the back-to-school season, as
well as the development of the new women’s handbag brand Secret. Net
sales in Mexico were relatively flat year-on-year due to the loss of export
sales to Colombia, Panama and Peru where the Group implemented a direct
import and sales model during the year. Domestic net sales in Mexico grew by
10.2% on a constant currency basis and the sales made in Colombia, Panama
and Peru are now reflected within the “Other” geographic location in the
table below. Brazil posted year-on-year constant currency net sales growth
of 8.4% despite being temporarily impacted as the Group shifted from a
distributor model to a direct import and sales model. Net sales in Argentina
continued to be negatively impacted by import restrictions imposed by the
local government and significant currency pressure. Excluding Argentina, net
sales for the Latin American region increased by 14.5% excluding foreign
currency effects.

Net sales of the Samsonite and American Tourister brands increased by
US$2.1 million, or 4.0%, and US$0.2 million, or 3.4%, respectively, for the
year ended December 31, 2013 compared to the previous year. Excluding
foreign currency effects, net sales of the Samsonite and American Tourister

Net Sales Growth 2 '| '| 0 ;?%g

- Chile Net Sales
HETENE B Rt 2 11.7%
US$(m) £ (HE)

$123.6

Net Sales Growth

- Mexico Domestic
HEFHEER — 2MFAL

120 —

Net Sales Growth 60 =
- Brazil
EEFHEEIR —BA 30 —

Note iz
T Excluding foreign currency effects.
WHRESHE -

MERE RS - HEFHIER11.7% o UETH
ﬁ%ﬁT%%ME%%&ﬁmﬁimuﬁnﬁ
BIELEFEMNEEETEMI0BEEET
H9.8% EHE2013F12831B L FEM1236
E-ES

MBRERSZE  BHE2013F 128310 LEEE
ﬂ%%@%&ﬁEMBJ%°EﬂW§ﬁﬁﬁﬁ
FEERTEHRTEREERY BB ETER
ERTZAEBRAESE  URBERTLIFRRE
Secret T3l - BT S EFRIZFARAE FE > It
DHERAEERFRESRILE BE2ERUE
BREREORHEEES  EHERTFHAZZ
ZHBNEERD Y - RETEREE 8
FEABEFELER102%  MATHRLEE B
EERMEEHNHEEREARTRIH ] —
RitEARM - BEDARAEBHEHEER
PEFEEENRFEEEAMENSFE H
BEEEEHEFRNRELR 4% - MREH
EFEFESIEHBNERMEORIREXR
EMBHEETE - MRMARE - 1T EME
SHE B RETEIPRE R &R IE N 14.5% ©
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Tourister fR IESHE F R D BIBR A FEL M2 1 BB =X
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&, #FEE K American Tourister AR SEEREE D
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RFEEBITDA
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brands increased by 6.6% and 2.4%, respectively. The Group began selling
the High Sierra brand in Latin America during 2013 with net sales of US$1.1
million. The introduction of a line of women’s handbags under the Secret
brand name has shown early signs of success with net sales of US$9.3
million during 2013.

Net sales in the travel product category increased by US$4.1 million, or
8.0%, and by 11.0% excluding foreign currency effects year-on-year. Net
sales in the casual product category increased by US$7.3 million, or 26.8%,
and by 25.8% on a constant currency basis due to strong sales of the Xtrem
brand during the back-to-school season in Chile, as well as strong sales
of the Samsonite and Xtrem brands in Mexico. Net sales in the business
product category were relatively flat year-on-year. Net sales in the accessories
product category increased by US$1.4 million, or 10.0%, and by 14.1% on
a constant currency basis.

Net sales in the wholesale channel increased by US$9.7 million, or 12.4%,
for the year ended December 31, 2013 compared to the previous year and
by 14.1% excluding foreign currency effects. Net sales in the retail channel
increased by US$1.4 million, or 4.1%, and by 6.5% on a constant currency
basis, over the same period. On a same-store, constant currency basis, net
sales in the retail channel increased by 5.0%.

The following table sets forth a breakdown of net sales within the Latin
American region by geographic location for the years ended December 31,
2013 and December 31, 2012, both in absolute terms and as a percentage
of total regional net sales.

BZE12A31BLFE

BIER6.6% R2.4% » REMM2013FERBRAL
ENEE High Sierra g > HEFHRB11HE

ETT o 1E Secret RABIE T HEHE N Z T FRERIH

ERY  R2013EMHEFREARAI3EEET ©

REERENHEFERFERIIBEERR
8.0% -+ MPRIE R /LR 11.0% o KA Xtrem f
BREANFEEZTNEADEEURTFTER
Xtrem IR BAFHETHE - hkBERER
HEFRHIEM/IEEERTR268% ' REEE
BEELEINN25.8% - BHKERERHEFERT
HHFE - BEERENESTFHELEMIEE
ETH10.0%  HEEEREEELMN4.1% o

YW XF - BE2013F 12831 EEEHEER
BEHEFEEMIOTEEERS124% @ MIKRE

FEEMAL 1% TEREHEFEREF
BRI1AABERS41% REIEEKEE
BR6.5% - ZIEREHEEERELE
TERBHEFHEIERS0% °

TRHEIEZE2013F12831B R
202F 1231 B IEEE RN
BED KNI T M E S E FRERA
M BEHER G B E R R
EEEDLEHIER o

Year ended December 31, 2013F 8120124 Hh B
2013 2012 2013 vs 2012
120 ORi4>) HEREE 5 S8
HETE HEFE Aot 2 (R4 B2t
FTXR HALE FXx P4 % increase % increase (decrease)
US$'000 % of net sales US$'000 % of net sales (decrease) excl. foreign currency effects

Net sales by geographic location':

R B B 5 S E R

Chile &7 62,577 54,998 48.9% 13.8% 15.7%
Mexico £ 3 35,475 34,240 30.4% 3.6% 0.5%
Brazil B7&° 9,762 9,628 8.6% 1.4% 8.4%
Argentina PR #E 6,704 9,823 8.7% (31.8)% (17.7)%
Other E A’ 9,062 3,867 3.4% 134.4% 136.8%
Net sales $HE& 558 123,580 112,556 100.0% 9.8% 11.7%

Notes Ffs

T The geographic location of the Group’s net sales reflects the country from which its products were sold and does not necessarily indicate the

country in which its end consumers were actually located.
AEEHSFRENBAVESFRREEERNER - AR —ERRITHBEEERMENESR

2 The net sales figure for Brazil includes sales made to third party distributors in Brazil.
BRENEEFRMEEENREEHEZ S D HEBEHNHE -

3 The net sales figure for the “Other” geographic location includes sales made in Colombia, Panama, Peru and through the Group’s distribution
center in Uruguay but does not include net sales attributable to sales made in Brazil to third party distributors.
[Efs | -t ENHEFEREEENFHLE - BEERREFHNEERFISEBESHENIHPMELNHE - BTEEREENE=H 2 HEFLNHEREN

SHETE -

HEBABRARAF

—O—=%
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Cost of Sales and Gross Profit

Cost of sales increased by US$128.8 million, or 15.7%, to US$949.5 million
(representing 46.6% of net sales) for the year ended December 31, 2013
from US$820.7 million (representing 46.3% of net sales) for the year ended
December 31, 2012. Cost of sales increased in line with increased net sales.
The slight increase in cost of sales as a percentage of net sales was primarily
due to strong sales growth in the wholesale channel in the United States,
which has lower gross margins, creating downward pressure on consolidated
gross margins.

Gross profit increased by US$137.3 million, or 14.4%, to US$1,088.3 million
for the year ended December 31, 2013, from US$951.0 million for the year
ended December 31, 2012. Gross profit margin decreased from 53.7% for
the year ended December 31, 2012 to 53.4% for the year ended December
31, 2013. This decrease was attributable to the factors noted above.

Distribution Expenses

Distribution expenses increased by US$74.1 million, or 15.9%, to US$540.6
million (representing 26.5% of net sales) for the year ended December 31,
2013, from US$466.5 million (representing 26.3% of net sales) for the year
ended December 31, 2012. This increase, which was reflected in additional
freight to customers, commissions, rent and increased personnel expenses,
was primarily due to the increase in sales volume in 2013. Distribution
expenses as a percentage of net sales remained relatively consistent year-
on-year.

Marketing Expenses

The Group spent US$129.2 million (representing 6.3% of net sales) on
marketing for the year ended December 31, 2013 compared to US$117.2
million (representing 6.6% of net sales) for the year ended December 31,
2012, an increase of US$12.0 million, or 10.2%. Marketing expenses
as a percentage of net sales decreased slightly to 6.3% for year ended
December 31, 2013 from 6.6% the previous year due to strong sales
growth and some efficiencies in advertising spend. During 2013, the Group
continued to employ targeted and focused advertising and promotional
campaigns. The Group believes the success of its advertising campaigns is
evident in its net sales growth, and remains committed to enhance brand
and product awareness and drive additional net sales growth through
focused marketing activities.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses increased by US$11.9 million, or 9.9%,
to US$133.1 million (representing 6.5% of net sales) for the year ended
December 31, 2013 from US$121.1 million (representing 6.8% of net sales)
for the year ended December 31, 2012. Although general and administrative
expenses increased in absolute terms, such expenses decreased as a percentage
of net sales by 30 basis points as the Group maintained tight control of its
fixed cost base and leveraged it against strong sales growth. General and
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administrative expenses for 2013 included US$7.0 million of share-based
compensation expense which was not present in the previous year. Excluding
the share-based compensation expense, general and administrative expenses
increased by 4.0% year-on-year and decreased by 60 basis points as a
percentage of net sales.

Other Expenses

The Group recognized net other expenses of US$4.2 million and US$4.4 million
for the years ended December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively.
Other expenses for 2013 include US$ 1.8 million of assumed pension costs and
US$1.1 million of costs related to acquisition efforts. Other expenses for 2012
include acquisition costs of US$6.4 million, which are primarily comprised of
costs associated with due diligence and integration activities, severance, and
professional and legal fees for the acquisitions of High Sierra and Hartmann
that were completed during 2012.

ams&nite
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Operating Profit

The Group’s operating profit was US$281.3 million for the year ended
December 31, 2013, an increase of US$39.6 million, or 16.4%, from operating
profit of US$241.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2012.

Net Finance Costs

Net finance costs decreased by US$6.1 million, or 35.7%, to US$11.0 million
for the year ended December 31, 2013 from US$17.0 million for the year
ended December 31, 2012. This decrease was primarily attributable to a
US$2.9 million reduction in foreign exchange losses and a US$2.6 million
decrease in the expense recognized for the change in fair value of put options
related to agreements with certain holders of non-controlling interests.

Profit before Income Tax

Profit before income tax increased by US$45.6 million, or 20.3%, to US$270.3
million for the year ended December 31, 2013 from US$224.7 million for the
year ended December 31, 2012.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense increased by US$14.8 million, or 25.6%, to US$72.9
million for the year ended December 31, 2013 from US$58.1 million for the
year ended December 31, 2012.

The Group’s consolidated effective tax rate for operations was 27.0% and
25.8% for the years ended December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012,
respectively. The effective tax rate is calculated using a weighted average
income tax rate from those jurisdictions in which the Group is subject to tax,
adjusted for permanent book/tax differences, tax incentives, changes in tax
reserves and the recognition of previously unrecognized deferred tax assets.
The increase in the Group’s effective tax rate is attributable to the global mix in
profitability in various high and low tax jurisdictions, for example the increased
profit contribution from the United States in 2013, which is a relatively higher
tax jurisdiction.

Profit for the Year

Profit for the year of US$197.4 million for the year ended December 31,
2013 increased by US$30.8 million, or 18.5%, from US$166.6 million for
the year ended December 31, 2012. Profit attributable to the equity holders
increased by US$27.6 million, or 18.6%, from US$148.4 million for the year
ended December 31, 2012 to US$176.1 million for the year ended December
31, 2013.

Adjusted Net Income, a non-IFRS measure, increased by US$22.0 million,
or 13.2%, to US$189.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2013
from US$167.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2012. See the
reconciliation of profit for the year to Adjusted Net Income below for a
detailed discussion of the Group’s results excluding certain non-recurring
costs and charges and other non-cash charges that impacted reported profit
for the year.

Samsonite International S.A.
Annual Report 2013

iR
AEELEENAEZ20125 128318 LFEE
M TEBETIEMICAEBETR164%EE
Z2013F12A31HILFE281388ET ©

MBERFE
BRERFEREE20NENANBLEE
170EBEURP6IBEBERTIINERE
203F 12A31BLEEEN0EBET © LikiE
FEHRMEBERI2IBEEZIRNEHE
ETHERERSEANGRNRGHEATE
BEEANRAL R 26 BBETHHK

Fris i aiaf
FRERAENBEZ2012FEN2ANELEEE
24 TEBETEMASEERTHN203%EE
Z2013F12A31AILFEE2703HEET ©

Fifafip
FEHBAXAEZE2012F12A31HILFE58.1
BEETEMASHEEETR25.6% ZHZE2013
F12A31ALFENIHEERT °

H Z2013F 128318 R2012F12A318 £ F
B REEEENGEEERBRIE270% K
25.8% o BT RIRA LB EMATIER AR
BT IIFRERETE » KA MERE/

MB=RE HEEE BHEFEEZDRERBE
RERNELRBEEERE - REBNERH
REMIBERESESHEREHRAZEEN
2BRBAEEHEESFE > FlIB RS EEE
B2 —XER2013F AR S /IE M o

FERiEF

HZ2013F12A31 A ELFEFRNEFNE19748
En BEE201NE12A3181LEE 16668

BXETEM308EEETH185% - REFEA

S REANBEBZE2012F12831 BIEFE 14848

BXEx o B276BEER18.6% EEZE2013

F12A31BLFEE1761BEBET °

EARFWA (—EFEIRSHEFTETR) BE
Z202F12A31BLLFE16728BER » &N
NROBEEERHI32%EEHZE2013F12831H
IHFE1892HEEN - BRREEEEMIRS
EFRPREFINE FIRLSEERAREAUK
Hitn kR ERANFRTW  B2HATUIRE
AR BT R U A RVETER ©



Basic and diluted earnings per share (“EPS”) increased by 19.0% to
US$0.125 for the year ended December 31, 2013 from US$0.105 for the
year ended December 31, 2012. Adjusted basic and diluted EPS, a non-IFRS
measure, increased to US$0.134 for the year ended December 31, 2013
from US$0.119 for the year ended December 31, 2012. The weighted
average number of shares utilized in the basic EPS calculation remained
unchanged year-on-year. The weighted average number of shares utilized
in the diluted EPS calculation was the same as the number of shares
utilized in the basic EPS calculation as all potentially dilutive instruments
were anti-dilutive.

Adjusted EBITDA

Adjusted EBITDA, which is a non-IFRS measure, increased by US$51.2 million,
or 17.9%, to US$337.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2013 from
US$286.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2012. Adjusted EBITDA
margin increased to 16.6% from 16.2% as the Group maintained tight control
of its fixed cost base while experiencing strong sales growth.

The following table presents the reconciliation from the Group’s profit for
the year to Adjusted EBITDA for the years ended December 31, 2013 and
December 31, 2012.

BREAREERAN ((SREF]) BEZE2012
F12A31BEEE0105ETIEM9.0% EEHE
2013F 12831 HIEEE0.1255E T © KAEER
BEARBERR (—EEIFRSHKAETR) A
BZE2012F12A31AEFE0N9ETEMEE
Z£20135F12A31HILFE0.134%E T - ARNETE
BRERBRNMET IR FESZTE - B
RATEEESET AN A REEER  BUtAR
STEESREHERAINMETGRAEANTES
REAZFNREAER -

AT EBITDA

KR EBITDAR— B IFRSHIISETET A » BHE
£2012F12A31BILFE286.5BEET » 1M
S1I2BBETHI179% ZEHE2013F12831H
IHFE3377HEER - HRAREERSEREE
FIEBEERA » WHEEHEEER - FILEH
ZEBITDARBRH16.2% EFHE16.6% ©

TREFEZE2013F12A31BR20125F12 831
Bt EFEAEEERGRELTR BITDALER -

BZE12B31HLEFE
Year ended December 31,

UFET25

Expressed in thousands of US Dollars

Profit for the year FREF

Plus (Minus): nCRL)
Income tax expense FriSBiF X
Finance costs BB
Finance income 5 30N
Depreciation e
Amortization ey

EBITDA EBITDA

Plus (Minus): nCRL) -
Share-based compensation expense LR 213 2 HBe 2
Other adjustments' HhFEE

Adjusted EBITDA KA EBITDA

Note FizE

T Other adjustments primarily comprised of ‘Other expense’ per the consolidated income statement.

HitBAEEZEFE @R [Hibs] -

2013 2012
197,421 166,627
72,915 58,073
11,808 18,229
(852) (1,187)
36,821 31,770
8,363 8,491
326,476 282,003
7,036 =
4,218 4,518
337,730 286,521
HEEEBRERAA
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The following tables present a reconciliation from profit for the year to ~ T&RHIEZ2013F12831AR2012F12H31
Adjusted EBITDA on a regional basis for the years ended December 31,2013 HALEFERMEEEZJIMNFREMNELHAZ
and December 31, 2012. EBITDA¥IER o

HZE2013F12831HILEE
Year ended December 31, 2013

LFETL5! =M =M BA BT EM b1 3 L
Expressed in thousands of US Dollars Asia | North America Europe | Latin America Corporate Total

Profit for the year FREF 58,197 27,304 50,243 12,558 49,119 197,421
Plus (Minus): R -
Income tax expense FTEHimX 19,889 21,374 11,080 2,759 17,813 72,915
Finance costs BB R 4,862 353 1,511 (1,752) 6,834 11,808
Finance income BFSUR A (264) (3) (254) (3) (328) (852)
Depreciation e 13,433 4,539 14,397 2,257 2,195 36,821
Amortization b5 4,207 610 1,582 1,930 34 8,363
EBITDA EBITDA 100,324 54,177 78,559 17,749 75,667 326,476
Plus (Minus): 0 CRL) -
Share-based compensation LR AT Y 901 1,449 1,310 179 3,197 7,036
expense Ern b
Other adjustments! Hbze 53,347 45,011 9,910 (169) (103,881) 4,218
Adjusted EBITDA 4L FAEEEBITDA 154,572 100,637 89,779 17,759 (25,017) 337,730
Note HizE

1 Other adjustments primarily comprised of ‘Other expense’ per the consolidated income statement. Regional results include intercompany royalty income/expense.

HZE2012F12A31ALLEE
Year ended December 31, 2012

UFETL5 =M 16 ZEM BOM WTEM % &%
Expressed in thousands of US Dollars Asia North America Europe Latin America Corporate Total
Profit for the year FREF 64,469 23,732 32,750 10,774 34,902 166,627
Plus (Minus): nCRL)
Income tax expense FriSBR X
(benefit) (3E%) 20,136 14,398 9,889 (1,732) 15,382 58,073
Finance costs BKEA 3,553 344 648 1,951 11,733 18,229
Finance income E I ON 211) (16) (188) (25) (747) (1,187)
Depreciation e 10,436 3,396 12,985 2,162 2,791 31,770
Amortization 1 eH 4,207 400 1,943 1,930 11 8,491
EBITDA EBITDA 102,590 42,254 58,027 15,060 64,072 282,003
Plus (Minus): nGRL) -
Share-based compensation LA 3 2 {SHY
expense FrENBa sz - - - - - -
Other adjustments! Hhze 31,051 37,862 21,484 2,143 (88,022) 4,518
Adjusted EBITDA #ZFIREEBITDA 133,641 80,116 79,511 17,203 (23,950) 286,521
Note FfizE

1 Other adjustments primarily comprised of ‘Other expense’ per the consolidated income statement. Regional results include intercompany royalty income/expense.
HitAE I ZEEGARERTH [ HEMR% | - tEXERFEQADIHNENBRN/BEX
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The Group has presented Adjusted EBITDA because it believes that, when
viewed with its results of operations as prepared in accordance with IFRS
and with the reconciliation to profit for the year, Adjusted EBITDA provides
additional information that is useful in gaining a more complete understanding
of its operational performance and of the trends impacting its business.
Adjusted EBITDA is an important metric the Group uses to evaluate its
operating performance and cash generation.

Adjusted EBITDA is a non-IFRS financial measure and as calculated herein may
not be comparable to similarly named measures used by other companies and
should not be considered as a measure comparable to profit for the year in the
Group’s consolidated income statement. Adjusted EBITDA has limitations as an
analytical tool and should not be considered in isolation from, or as a substitute
for, an analysis of the Group's results of operations as reported under IFRS.

REBEZHEHZBTDAZRAEAE - EBRE
HEsE 8 (RIBIFRSHERREFRRFIETE
BR) B KRR BTDABREEZER  BRAR
ERETHREALERBRYEHERNIBY - £
A EBITDA RN B AR 8% RV K BEUR
SH-EETBEZEE -

AN st B A4S 8% EBITDA 5 —TE 3F IFRS B1 75
STEIA SRS mEREM A R FERBELUS
Mt B T EETHE - BRERS—BIEAE
BARERERTFERNFILBNTELR - £
ZEBTDAEA—EL M TEBEBMRME » FER
ABURRREREERIBIFRS FIR2HEEE
BT ©

Adjusted EBITDA by Region E mh America Europe m\ America
Rib @ EI 5 KR FEEBITDA i S| B RTEM
5% 5%
25% 42, 26% 43%
28% 26%
2013 2012

HEBABRARAF
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#
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Adjusted Net Income

Adjusted Net Income, which is a non-IFRS measure, increased by US$22.0
million, or 13.2%, to US$189.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2013
from US$167.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2012.

The following table presents the reconciliation from the Group’s profit for the
year to Adjusted Net Income for the years ended December 31, 2013 and
December 31, 2012.

EREFA
ERABFWAL—EFIRSHEAETR  BE
F2012F12A31HLLFEE1672BEETEM
NROFEEXERTHI32% ZEEHZE2013F12831H
IHEEI1892HEBET ©

TREFEZE20135F128318 K%2012F12 831
BILEE  RNEEF AR LA FRALR o

UTFETL25
Expressed in thousands of US Dollars

BE12ABLEE
Year ended December 31,

FREF
IR R AR R A

Profit for the year
Profit attributable to non-controlling interests

Profit attributable to the equity holders IRAEISE A ERER

Plus (Minus): 0 CGR) -
Expenses related to acquisition activities s E BN AERE R S
Change in fair value of put options RONHIREN AT ERE
Amortization of intangible assets' B EERE
Tax adjustments TIEFAR

Adjusted Net Income? ERERRN

2013 2012
197,421 166,627
(PAPCEZ)) (18,188)
176,087 148,439

1,093 6,417
6,312 8,908
8,363 8,491
(2,648) (5,041)
189,207 167,214

Notes Kz

T Amortization of intangible assets above represents charges related to the amortization of other intangible assets with finite useful lives that were recognized
in conjunction business combinations and that do not relate to assets invested in on an ongoing basis.
P E A REIEEEEER S M —HRINEREAF RN BN EENBHEENMEY - EESERENEESRR -

2 Represents Adjusted Net Income attributable to the equity holders of the Group.
EAREERIERE ABGSHEZRA -

The Group has presented Adjusted Net Income because it believes this measure
helps to give securities analysts, investors and other interested parties a better
understanding of the Group’s underlying financial performance. By presenting
Adjusted Net Income, the Group eliminates the effect of a number of non-
recurring costs and charges and certain other non-cash charges that impact
its reported profit for the year.

Adjusted Net Income is a non-IFRS financial measure, and as calculated herein
may not be comparable to similarly named measures used by other companies
and should not be considered as a measure comparable to profit for the year
in the Group’s consolidated income statement. Adjusted Net Income has
limitations as an analytical tool and should not be considered in isolation
from, or as a substitute for, an analysis of the Group’s results of operations
as reported under IFRS.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management policies is to
safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern, to provide returns for
shareholders, and to fund capital expenditures, normal operating expenses,
working capital needs, and the payment of obligations. The Group’s primary
sources of liquidity are its cash flows from operating activities, invested cash,
available lines of credit and, subject to shareholder approval, the Company’s
ability to issue additional shares. The Group believes that its existing cash and
estimated cash flows, along with current working capital, will be adequate
to meet the operating and capital requirements of the Group for at least the
next twelve months.

The Group’s generated cash from operating activities was US$193.0 million
for the year ended December 31, 2013, a decrease of US$10.0 million from
net cash generated from operating activities of US$203.0 million for the year
ended December 31, 2012. Cash flows from operating activities for the year
ended December 31, 2013 includes US$33.2 million of contributions to the
Group’s U.S. pension plan, of which US$20.0 million was a supplemental
voluntary contribution. The Group’s net U.S. pension benefit obligation has
been reduced to US$14.3 million at December 31, 2013 from US$54.7 million
at December 31, 2012.

For the year ended December 31, 2013, net cash used in investing activities
was US$53.9 million, a decrease of US$125.2 million compared to the previous
year. This decrease was due to the acquisitions of High Sierra and Hartmann for
a net cash consideration of US$142.0 million during 2012, partially offset by an
increase in the purchase of property, plant and equipment to US$57.2 million
for the year ended December 31, 2013 from US$37.9 million for the previous
year, which was largely attributable to expenditures in connection with the
construction of a new warehouse in Belgium, new retail store locations and
a new manufacturing plant in Hungary.

Net cash used in financing activities was US$64.7 million for the year ended
December 31, 2013, an increase of US$48.1 million compared to the previous
year. During 2013, the Group repaid in full the remaining outstanding balance
on the Revolving Facility used to partially fund the acquisitions of Hartmann
and High Sierra in 2012. The Company paid a distribution of US$37.5 million
to shareholders from its ad hoc distributable reserve during the year ended
December 31, 2013, representing a 25.0% increase from the US$30.0 million
distributed during the previous year.

RBEEREAFER

FEBEAEEIRNTERBARFHIFER
2R ARREMRER - REARR - —RE
ERXREEESTERTESRINER - &
EERBESHNIERRALLTHINRETR
B2 REFAD TAGEERKDABRITHR
(FRRIERTUEER) WD - ARERRE -
HEARERMHARERE  MERDEEE
& BRUEAGAEERRED T EANEE

BE2013F12A31BLEFEE  AEBEBLEEE
BELHES193.088BE 5 MEZE2012F12A
BMNELFENKSE TR ERESFER203.08
BEn FEAI100BERT  BE2013F12
A31BLFERALETHNRSREEEHR
SENEERKESTEAELENHAS2BEEE
T HP200EBERSBREFHRER - A%
EMEEERRSBREEFEB2012F12831
HS47EBETTRAL Z£20135F12831H1438
E S

BZE2013F12A310ILFE  RETBHMAR
SFHEASBIEBET  BEAFRD125258
5o WRRTIIAR2012FLUER S AE142.0
BB ETURES High Sierra & Hartmann FT2k » 382
ATEREZELTIRHAE HTEEHAERE
FRFRERNZESBENE  BERBER
AFWN37IOABEREMEEZ2013F12A31
AIEFES7 2 BTN

HZE2013F12A31HLEE  MEZHFAR
SFERMTEBEL  REFEMIBIBEE
T o PA20135F » AEEBRHEEANARE2012
& Hartmann % High Sierra FIUR BB IBIRIEE 5 &
EMREREENREZENRE - BI22013F 128
31ALEFE  AARBHSR TR RFEEDR
RIRI375BBETDRK  BEAFHMAIRAIZ0.0
BEXTIEM25.0% °
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FIRELITE !

Indebtedness
The following table sets forth the carrying amount of the Group’s loans and
borrowings as of December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012.

af&
TREIAREBMMA2013F128318 R20124F
12831 BNERRERNIREE -

R12A8318

eI =L As of December 31,
Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2012
Revolving Credit Facility RREERE - 25,000
Finance lease obligations RS ERIE 53 97
Other lines of credit Hiti= 8% 15,482 10,297
Total loans and borrowings ERRERETE 15,535 35,394
Less deferred financing costs R R E A AN (1,858) (3,096)
Total loans and borrowings less deferred BRI AR SRR R E A AR

financing costs 13,677 32,298

The Group had US$225.3 million in cash and cash equivalents at December
31, 2013, compared to US$151.4 million at December 31, 2012.

The Group maintains a revolving credit facility (the “Revolving Facility”) in the
amount of US$300.0 million. The facility can be increased by an additional
US$100.0 million, subject to lender approval. The Revolving Facility has an
initial term of three years from its effective date of July 2, 2012, with a one
year extension at the request of the Group and the option of the lenders.
The interest rate on borrowings under the Revolving Facility is the aggregate
of (i) (a) LIBOR (or EURIBOR in the case of borrowings made in Euro) or (b)

Samsonite International S.A.
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the prime rate of the lender and (ii) a margin to be determined based on
the Group’s leverage ratio. The Revolving Facility carries a commitment fee
of 0.175% per annum on any unutilized amounts, as well as an agency fee.
The Revolving Facility is secured by certain assets in the United States and
Europe, as well as the Group’s intellectual property. The Revolving Facility also
contains financial covenants related to interest coverage and leverage ratios,
and operating covenants that, among other things, limit the Group’s ability
to incur additional debt, create liens on its assets, and participate in certain
mergers, acquisitions, liquidations, asset sales or investments. The Group was
in compliance with the financial covenants as of December 31, 2013. At
December 31, 2013, US$294.4 million was available to be borrowed on the
Revolving Facility as a result of the utilization of US$5.6 million of the facility
for outstanding letters of credit extended to certain creditors. At December
31, 2012, US$269.0 million was available to be borrowed on the Revolving
Facility as a result of US$25.0 million of outstanding borrowings and the
utilization of US$6.0 million of the facility for outstanding letters of credit
extended to certain creditors.

Certain members of the Group maintain credit lines with various third party
lenders in the regions in which they operate. These local credit lines provide
working capital for the day-to-day business operations of such subsidiaries,
including overdraft, bank guarantee, and trade finance and factoring
facilities. The majority of these credit lines are uncommitted facilities. The
total aggregate amount outstanding under the local facilities was US$15.5
million and US$10.3 million at December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012,
respectively.

BEFE (BB UBTEENER > AT
BERTRERE) H () ERANREEFIER (i)
HRASENERLEEENEE - BREEY
KRB BN EREEF0.175% MEEE
URRIEE - BREEUE TREERBINNE
Fu&$$ﬂmﬂ%F%ﬁﬁoﬁFE§ﬁ@§
MNEEMFEERRERLZEENIHTERE &
(E¢@%>Wﬁ$§lé$ﬁ%ﬁﬁ\ﬁﬂaé
AIUBBERRSEETHE 5% EEHES
REMBENNEERZH - N2013F128318 >
REBEDEFIH B R - R2013F128318
HAARRMTE TERANREEESARME A
SOEBERAME REREEVTFHEENESHE
B2044BEETT - R20125128318 » A%
BENERSEEETRMIEETE TEREA
MAEBEAAMBHCOEEETRE  BE
BEETTEHNEES269.088ET -

EZTAEEREATRNSEEMEHENS R
BZRERATLGESE - HEEMEEEAZ
EMBATIARERLERMREES  BFE
X BITER  EZREURERRRERE - 1t
LEEEAD) HEAENRE - N2013F12
A318K2012F 128310 » Bt E THRE
BAEARIAISSEEETRIOIEEET
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The following represents the contractual maturity dates of the Group’s loans
and borrowings (excluding the impact of netting agreements) as of December
31, 2013 and December 31, 2012.

T REHR2013F 128318 K2012512 831

AAEEERR
HENEIMA -

B (MR FREEERETE)

UFET25
Expressed in thousands of US Dollars

M128318
As of December 31,

2012

On demand or within one year RERIR—FR

Between 1 and 2 years 1FZ2F
Between 2 and 5 years 2FESE
Over 5 years HBIBSE

35,330
22
42

15,535 35,394

Hedging
The Group’s non-U.S. subsidiaries periodically enter into forward contracts
related to the purchase of inventory denominated primarily in US Dollars
which are designated as cash flow hedges. Cash flows associated with these
derivatives at December 31, 2013 are expected to be US$94.7 million within
one year.

Other Financial Information

Working Capital Ratios

Inventory Analysis

The following table sets forth a summary of the Group’s average inventory,
cost of sales and average inventory days for the years ended December 31,
2013 and December 31, 2012.

SR

REEWFEEMBAREHT LHEEEFEL
ENAZENFERBNEREY  HESHNER
ETHSREH - K2013F 12831 HELSE
TETIEEBENRESREEIN —FREM4TE
BERT-

Hub &R

EELEE

BESW

TEREHEZ2013F128318K% 2012512831
BIEEAEETISES  SHERARFIIFE
BEHEE -

BZE12B31HLEE
Year ended December 31,

NFETL

Expressed in thousands of US Dollars

Average inventory' FHFE'

Cost of sales SMEERR AR

Average inventory turnover days’ FiFEEE A g’

2013 2012
287,947 257,237
949,475 820,721

111 114

Notes Kz

T Average inventory equals the average of net inventory at the beginning and end of a given period.

PHEFEEEREEREBORARNFEFEN T

2 Average inventory turnover days for a given period equals average inventory for that period divided by cost of sales for that period and multiplied

by the number of days in the period.
BEDENTHFEEEEBRSNZIBNTOFERUZHBNHEERS  BRUZHENEY -

The Group’s average inventory increased in 2013 (US$298.4 million at
December 31, 2013 compared to US$277.5 million at December 31, 2012)
from 2012 (US$277.5 million at December 31, 2012 compared to US$237.0
million at December 31, 2011) to support increased customer demand and
new product introductions, as well as a result of the High Sierra and Hartmann
acquisitions completed in the second half of 2012.
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Trade and Other Receivables

The following table sets forth a summary of the Group’s average trade and
other receivables, net sales and turnover of trade and other receivables for
the years ended December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012.

FEW R 70 B H i FEWL TR IR
TREHEZE2013F12831BK2012F 12831
BLEFE » AEBEFHIRUERR R HthE YR
B SHEFE ) UREBERRR M ERGREE
EAHME -

BZ12A3BLEE
Year ended December 31,

RFETLS

Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2013 2012
Average trade and other receivables’ P9 FEU AR TR R H A FE U Rk 0E 234,266 196,856
Net sales HEEE X CYESVIM 1,771,726
Turnover days of trade and other receivables? FE U R 7k % L Ath FE U R BB 8 B 2 42 41

Notes Ffs:

1 Average trade and other receivables equal the average of net trade and other receivables at the beginning and end of a given period.

FIREBRR R LA W RORAR S A E F R 4 B M R FEUUR R R A B FR R RR RO P98, -

2 Turnover days of trade and other receivables for a given period equals average trade and other receivables for that period divided by net sales for

that period and multiplied by the number of days in the period.

R A R B R EUGRUREE A 2URS NZIBN PR R A RYGUER U Z BN SEE TR - BRUZIBNES -

The Group’s average trade and other receivables increased in 2013 (US$246.4
million at December 31, 2013 compared to US$222.2 million at December
31, 2012) from 2012 (US$222.2 million at December 31, 2012 compared to
US$171.6 million at December 31, 2011) in line with the increase in net sales.

Trade receivables as of December 31, 2013 are on average due within 60 days
from the date of billing.

Trade and Other Payables

The following table sets forth a summary of the Group’s average trade and
other payables, cost of sales and turnover days of trade and other payables
for the years ended December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012.

2013 AR EETFGEUIR T R E R E (K
20135128310 B246 4B B Xt MR2012
F12A31881 /22228 B £ ) 20126 (R
20126128318 B222 28 B £ MK201
F12A31RA171.6BEXER) B HFE
FEERE-B

M20135F12 831 B EKERR T AR RE A
#B5T60 H AZIHR -

FE 1 BR 70 B H i FE £ TR IR
TREFEZ2013F12831BK2012F 12831
A L FEREBT I EMARR R A MEMARE
HERAUREARAREEATEREA#
BE .

BZE12B31ALEE
Year ended December 31,

UFETL5]

Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2013 2012
Average trade and other payables' 9 - BR TR R H A FE AR08 374,864 324,524
Cost of sales SHER 949,475 820,721
Turnover days of trade and other payables? FEH BRFA I HL At FE A4 FRIE B8 A 8 144 144

Notes Hfz

T Average trade and other payables equal the average of trade and other payables at the beginning and end of a given period.

PR IR R E A FURIRES RS E A R RS R R A (S SR 398

2 Turnover days of trade and other payables for a given period equals average trade and other payables for that period divided by cost of sales for

that period and multiplied by the number of days in the period.

HERR RN IR R AR R A SRS RZBN TR AR R AR RUERUZABNHEERS - BRUZHBNES -

FEBEBRERAR
ZO—Z=HEH
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The increase in average trade and other payables at December 31, 2013
(US$387.2 million at December 31, 2013 compared to US$362.5 million at
December 31, 2012) from December 31, 2012 (US$362.5 million at December
31,2012 compared to US$286.6 million at December 31, 2011) was primarily
due to increased inventory purchases period over period and the timing of
such purchases.

Trade payables as of December 31, 2013 are on average due within 105 days
from the invoice date.

Capital Expenditures

Historical Capital Expenditures

The following table sets forth the Group’s historical capital expenditures for
the years ended December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012.

M2013F 12 A31 B PR RAREMEMAK
1H (R2013F12A31HA38728EXE T MR
2012512831 BEIB362.5BEET) 8201246
128318 (A2012%F 128310 B36258 8B =
Tt MR2011E12A318 81 B2866EEET)
2w TERRERABEFSENREBERRE -

R2013F 12 A31 BMEMARR I BREER
HR#BET 105 B R EIEA -

BEARZ

BEEAMXZ
TRHEVAEEEZ20135F12831BR2012F
12A31 BEFERNBEERESE -

BZ12B310LEE
Year ended December 31,

2012

UFETL5

Expressed in thousands of US Dollars

Land Tt
Buildings B

Machinery, equipment,
leasehold improvements and other

Total capital expenditures ERFR B

S Rl HEMERE IERAM

2,449
2,562

32,930

37,941
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The increase in the purchase of property, plant and equipment from the
previous year was largely attributable to expenditures in connection with the
construction of a new warehouse in Belgium, new retail store locations and
a new manufacturing plant in Hungary.

Planned Capital Expenditures

The Group’s capital expenditures budget for 2014 is approximately US$69.1
million. The Group plans to complete the construction of the new warehouse
in Belgium that began in 2013, construct an office in Ningbo, China, refurbish
existing retail stores, open new retail stores and invest in machinery and
equipment.

Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes scheduled maturities of the Group’s contractual
obligations for which cash flows are fixed and determinable as of December
31, 2013.

BEWE  BERREHLEFENEEHANE

FELLFIRHEE  TEE IR AT RHE
ERE S HATEL -

FrEEARX

REE04FERFIFEEN A T HEBET ©
REEFTER LA TR EZTH2013E5HTH
ﬁ%E‘M¢@Eﬁ@E%$E~ﬂ%ﬁﬁEE
& BERHE R BB RS R84 ©
BHER

TREMA2013F 12 AN BAREFMSREE
REAEERIEENSHNETHETEEHA -

EEUINEN
Payments Due
1FE2F 2FESF

UFETL5 st 1R Between Between HIBSF
Expressed in thousands of US Dollars Total Within 1 year 1 and 2 years 2 and 5 years Over 5 years
Loans and borrowings ERKEE 15,535 15,498 17 20 -
Minimum operating BRIEKEHENR

lease payments 231,748 68,558 55,054 86,657 21,479

As of December 31, 2013, the Group did not have any material off-balance
sheet arrangements or contingencies except as included in the table
summarizing its contractual obligations above.

Gearing Ratio

The following table sets forth the Group’s loans and borrowings (excluding
deferred financing costs), total equity and gearing ratio as of December 31,
2013 and December 31, 2012.

R2013F 128318 RERBAAEBHEH
RN AEBUREAEANEERERIR
P AER -

ERbE
TREIIAREER2013F12831BR2012F12
A31BERRER MBRELERERE) - #1
HEERIEIRLEE o

NFERTLY
Expressed in thousands of US Dollars
Loans and borrowings ERRER
(excl. deferred financing costs) (MR IEAE RO E AR AR )
Total equity SRR
Gearing ratio’ R =R

Note FizE

T Calculated as total loans and borrowings (excluding deferred financing costs) divided by total equity.

RER R (MAREERERA) BRUMERAETE

BZ12A3101LEE
Year ended December 31,
2012
15,535 35,394
1,230,582 1,086,105
1.3% 3.3%
FEBERERIA
ZO—Z=HEH
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Other Information

Human Resources and Remuneration

At December 31, 2013, the Group had approximately 8,085 employees
worldwide, compared to approximately 7,070 employees at December 31,
2012. The increase in headcount is largely driven by the addition of new
retail stores and shop-in-shop expansion in Asia. The Group regularly reviews
remuneration and benefits of its employees according to the relevant market
practice, employee performance and the financial performance of the Group.

Strategic Review and Prospects
During 2013, the Group continued to implement its strategic plan in the
following areas:

Positive financial results
All key Group metrics showed considerable growth for the year ended
December 31, 2013 compared to the year ended December 31, 2012.

e Net sales increased by 15.0% to US$2,037.8 million for the year ended
December 31, 2013. Excluding foreign currency effects, net sales
increased by 16.1%.

e Operating profit increased by US$39.6 million, or 16.4%.

e Adjusted Net Income increased by US$22.0 million, or 13.2%, year-on-
year.

e Adjusted EBITDA increased by 17.9% to US$337.7 million.

¢ Adjusted EBITDA margin increased to 16.6% from 16.2% reflecting the
Group’s ability to leverage its cost base against strong sales growth.

e The Group generated US$193.0 million of cash from operating activities.

Significant investment in advertising and promotion

The Group maintained its significant investment in marketing, which
amounted to approximately 6.3% of net sales, reflecting its commitment
to advertise and promote its brands and products to support sales growth
worldwide.

New products in the market

The Group continued to focus on innovation and ensuring that its products
reflect local consumer tastes in each region. Innovation and a regional focus
on product development are key drivers of sales growth and are the means
to deliver quality and value to the Group’s customers.

Expanded distribution network

The Group continued the further expansion of its distribution network by
adding over 1,000 points of sale during the year to over 46,000 points of
sale worldwide as of December 31, 2013.
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Future Prospects
The Group’s growth strategy will continue as planned for 2014, with a
focus on the following:

continue to gain market share by leveraging the strength of the Group’s
brands, Samsonite, American Tourister, High Sierra and Hartmann, across
all of its markets while continuing to capitalize on the robust growth in
international travel;

further expansion of the geographic reach of the High Sierra and
Hartmann brands which were acquired in the second half of 2012;
introduce new and innovative product designs, adapted to the needs of
consumers in different markets, while staying true to the Group’s core
values of lightness, strength and functionality;

improve the efficiency and effectiveness of the Group’s supply chain and
global distribution network;

increase the Group's investment in research & development and marketing
broadly in line with sales growth;

allocate more resources to the product categories that present the
greatest opportunity for the Group to diversify its product offerings and
gain market share; and

actively evaluate acquisition opportunities that have a compelling strategic
fit, leveraging the Group’s strong management team and balance sheet
capacity.

The Group aims to deliver top-line growth, maintain gross margins, increase
Adjusted EBITDA margins, generate cash and enhance shareholder value.
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Management Discussion and Analysis &2 @1 mEDHT

Qualitative and Quantitative Market Risks

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty
to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises
principally from the Group’s receivables from customers. Maximum exposure
is limited to the carrying amounts of the financial assets presented in the
Group's consolidated financial statements.

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each customer. However, management also considers the
demographics of its customer base, including the default risk of the industry
and country in which customers operate, as these factors may have an
influence on credit risk. There is no concentration of credit risk geographically
or with any single customer.

The Group has established a credit policy under which each new customer is
analyzed individually for creditworthiness before the Group’s standard payment
and delivery terms and conditions are offered.

In monitoring customer credit risk, customers are grouped according to
their credit characteristics, including aging profile, and existence of previous
financial difficulties. Trade and other receivables relate mainly to the Group’s
wholesale customers. Customers that are graded as “high risk” are placed
on credit hold and monitored by the Group, and future sales are made on
an approval basis.

Financial Guarantees
The Group’s policy is to provide financial guarantees only on behalf of
subsidiaries. No other guarantees have been made to third parties.

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the
obligations associated with its financial liabilities.

The Group’s primary sources of liquidity are its cash flows from operating
activities, invested cash, available lines of credit and, subject to shareholder
approval, its ability to issue additional shares. The Group believes that its
existing cash and estimated cash flows, along with current working capital,
will be adequate to meet its operating and capital requirements for at least
the next twelve months.

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk on purchases and borrowings that are
denominated in a currency other than the respective functional currencies of
its subsidiaries.

The Group periodically uses forward exchange contracts to hedge its exposure
to currency risk on product purchases denominated in a currency other than
the respective functional currency of its subsidiaries. The forward exchange
contracts typically have maturities of less than one year.
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Interest on borrowings is denominated in the local currency of the borrowing.
Borrowings are generally denominated in currencies that match the cash flows
generated by the underlying operations of the borrowing entity.

Interest Rate Risk

The Group monitors its exposure to changes in interest rates on borrowings
on variable rate debt instruments. Although the Group does not currently
have any interest rate hedging instruments, it may from time to time enter
into interest rate swap contracts to manage interest rate risk.

Other Market Price Risk

Equity price risk arises from available for sale equity securities held by the
Group’s defined benefit pension plans to fund obligations that are used to
measure periodic net pension costs. Pension plan liabilities are presented net of
pension plan assets in the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position.
The Group's investment strategy involves a de-risking program utilizing liability
hedging assets to offset changes in the Group’s defined benefit pension plan
obligations. The Group engages professional pension plan asset managers
to assist in this process.

The estimated pension obligation (the actuarial present value of benefits
attributed to employee service and compensation levels prior to the
measurement date without considering future compensation levels), exceeds
the fair value of the assets of the Group’s pension plans, which is primarily the
result of the performance of equity markets and low interest rates during prior
years. Future market conditions and interest rate fluctuations could significantly
impact future assets and liabilities of the Group’s pension plans and future
minimum required funding levels.
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Corporate Governance Report

EERRSE

The Board of Directors (“the Board”) of the Company is pleased to present this
Corporate Governance Report for the year ended December 31, 2013.

Corporate Governance Practices

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance. The Company recognizes that sound corporate governance
practices are fundamental to the effective and transparent operation of the
Company and to its ability to protect the rights of its shareholders and enhance
shareholder value.

The Company has adopted its own corporate governance manual, which is
based on the principles, provisions and practices set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (as in effect from time to time, the “CG Code") contained
in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

The Company complied with all applicable code provisions set out in the CG
Code throughout the period from January 1, 2013 to December 31, 2013,
except for the deviation from code provision A.2.1 discussed below regarding
the Company’s Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ") and the deviation
from code provision F.1.3 discussed below regarding the Company’s Joint
Company Secretaries.

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of the Chairman and CEO should
be separated and should not be performed by the same individual.

Mr. Timothy Parker, the CEO of the Company, is also the Chairman of the
Board. The Company believes this is appropriate because having Mr. Parker
serve as both the CEO and the Chairman provides the Company with strong
and consistent leadership. The Board believes that the balance of power and
authority is adequately ensured by the operations of the Board, which is
comprised of highly experienced individuals including three Executive Directors
(including Mr. Parker), two Non-Executive Directors and three Independent
Non-Executive Directors. Moreover, Mr. Parker is not a member of either the
Audit Committee or Remuneration Committee of the Board, and each of the
Audit, Remuneration and Nomination committees is comprised of a majority
of Independent Non-Executive Directors.

Code provision F.1.3 provides that the company secretary should report to the
Chairman and CEO.
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Mr. John Livingston, the Vice President, General Counsel and Joint Company
Secretary of the Company, reports to the Company’s Chief Financial Officer
("CFQ"). The Company believes this is appropriate because Mr. Livingston is
based at the same location as the CFO and works closely with him on a day-
to-day basis. In addition, Mr. Livingston works directly with the Company’s
Chairman and CEO, and with the chairpersons of the various Board committees,
with respect to corporate governance and other Board-related matters. Each
of Ms. Lau Pik Lee and Ms. Chow Yuk Yin lvy, the Company’s other joint
company secretaries during 2013 who served in such capacity from January
1, 2013 to March 18, 2013 and from March 18, 2013 through December 31,
2013, respectively, and were based in Hong Kong, reported to Mr. Livingston.
The Company believes this is appropriate because their primary role as joint
company secretary was to assist Mr. Livingston in ensuring that the Company
complies with its obligations under the Listing Rules.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted its own policies (the “Trading Policy”) for securities
transactions by directors and relevant employees who are likely to be in
possession of unpublished inside information of the Company on terms no
less exacting than the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Having made specific
enquiry of all directors, all directors have confirmed that they complied with the
required standard set out in the Trading Policy during the year ended December
31, 2013. Directors’ and Chief Executives’ interests in the Company’s shares
as at December 31, 2013 are set out at pages 82 to 83 of this Annual Report.

The Board of Directors and Senior Management

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company, and
for promoting the success of the Company by directing and supervising the
Company’s affairs. In addition, the Board is responsible for overseeing the
corporate governance and financial reporting of the Company and for reviewing
the effectiveness of the Company’s system of internal control, its policies and
procedures on compliance and corporate governance, and the training and
continuous professional development of its directors and senior management. To
assist it in fulfilling its duties, the Board has established three board committees:
the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee (for details of which see pages 58 to 60 of this Annual Report).

The CEO directs the Group’s strategy and is responsible for managing the
Company'’s relationships with its shareholders and the broader investment
community. The day-to-day operation of the business of the Company and the
Group is managed by the Chief Operating Officer (“COO") and the regional
management teams.

The Board has established clear guidelines with respect to matters that must
be approved or recommended by the Board, including, without limitation,
approval and adoption of the Company’s annual operating budget and capital
expenditure budget; the hiring or dismissal of the CEO, CFO, Joint Company
Secretary or certain other members of the Company’s senior management team;
and approving and recommending significant transactions.

AATNEIRE - BAFEBRERE LW
£ John Livingston 4 B AR B B f§ 48 BS
([MERE]) BR - ALARALEBE
i > [A Livingston S 4 BB A AR BE BT [R] —
e BEEAEEAEERSE I
SN Livingston T E M EEAREMES
SHEBEEEEEEADN A EFERTEAT A
REEESSZESEIFEEFE - X2TR
013F NS —BELARAWES B HBEF
ZERBAEERZL (REDBIN2013F18
1HZ2013F3818H K 2013538 18H =
20135 12 A3 HYIEEEBEARMEL
BEEE) » A& BM Livingston ’ﬁ:iﬁiﬁ °
AAFRABUBBEESE  AREELE
ARENEZBE A Livingston iiﬁﬁ
BRAQNTEFTHER EHRAETHESE -

EEEHRS
RATCHEMERFHRAEERQATRD
FRAREENEEREBREESETESRS
B ((RBEBK])  BEGRTEEES
RAIMSR10FTEM (LT ITAESETE
ERGWEETAN BER - KO EESE
HHRENE  2RESYCEIFSRE
F2013F12A31ALEE-—BHETRBHK
RETHABEEER - EERFETHAER
2013F 12 A31 HRALQ TR M NWERE R
NEREL2ESIH ©

ESERSREEE
é%‘ﬁﬁ, BERERART SIUEL}EVT\
ERARNRAEBHYHARTMEES -

9I‘ ‘ %%%Efﬁkﬂzﬁ"jﬂﬁmi”éﬁ&ﬂ?f
BHRAREE  WARNAD BN EMEZES
E - AERARGHEEANBERER - LR
HESRoREEBNEIIRSESXRE
REEEN - AGBHETHEBE  EFEER
N-HESEEEE  EREES REE
EERFMEESS FIEFESHAFMESS
E60H) °

THARESAEENER  TEEEER
DREARRREAREXR ZHNEE -
RAARAEENAEEBEFRLERE
([EERE ) RitEEEEKER -

ESZECHARMESERAREBNSER
SEHMES] - BIE (BERRR) fERRA
ZIS’Aﬂ%i&Li‘E%&ﬁZKEﬁSE?EE P EME
S BEARAWE
ERZK’D\E@#&EIEJE%E’J%:FE{QEE% ;
IR ERIEBEAZS °

HEBABRARAF

—O—=%

F i

55



Corporate Governance Report &R RE

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance coverage in respect of
potential legal actions against its directors and senior management.

Composition of the Board, Number of Board Meetings and
Directors’ Attendance

The Board consists of eight directors, including three Executive Directors (“ED"),
two Non-Executive Directors (“NED"), and three Independent Non-Executive
Directors (“INED"). The biographical details of each director and their respective
responsibilities and dates of appointment are included in the “Directors and
Senior Management” section on pages 66 to 72 of this Annual Report. None
of the members of the Board is related to one another.

There were ten meetings of the Board held during the year ended December
31, 2013. The following is the attendance record of the directors at Board and
committee meetings, and at the shareholder meeting held during the year:
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34 REZEE FMzEEE RRBFAE

kbl Board of ERZaE Nomination Remuneration Annual General
Category Directors’ Audit Committee  Committee Committee Meeting

Timothy Charles Parker ED, Chairman and CEO 10/10 - 2/2 - 171
HITES « TERTBER

Kyle Francis Gendreau ED 10/10 - - - 1/1
HiTES

Ramesh Dungarmal Tainwala ~ ED 10/10 - - - 1/1
HiTES

Keith Hamill NED 9/10 4/4 - - 171
FHITES

Bruce Hardy McLain NED 10/10 - - 5/5 11
FHTES

Paul Kenneth Etchells INED 10/10 4/4 2/2 5/5 1/1
BIYEHITES

Miguel Kai Kwun Ko INED 9/10 4/4 2/2 5/5 11

S RuH BIUFHITES

Ying Yeh INED 10/10 4/4 2/2 5/5 11

g BYFHITES

Nicholas James Clarry’ NED 3/4 172 11 = =
FHITES

Note iz

VIS Clarry retired from the Board and from the Audit and Nomination Committees at the end of his term on June 6, 2013.
Clarry SR HAERR2013F6 B 6 A A RIESBURBEURREEESE -

Each INED has provided the Company with an annual confirmation of his or her
independence, and the Company considers each of the INEDs to be independent
under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Notice of regular Board meetings is given to all directors at least 14 days in
advance, and reasonable notice is generally given for other Board meetings.
Annual meeting schedules and the draft agenda of each meeting are normally
made available to directors in advance. Arrangements are in place to allow
directors to include items in the agenda, and final agendas together with board
papers are sent to directors at least 3 days before each regular Board meeting,
and as soon as practicable before other Board meetings, so that the Board can
make informed decisions on matters placed before it. Each director also has
separate and independent access to the senior management where necessary.

Minutes of the Board meetings are kept by the Joint Company Secretary. Draft
minutes are circulated to directors for comment within a reasonable time after
each meeting.

If a director or any of his or her associates has a material interest in a transaction,
that director is required to abstain from voting and not to be counted in the
quorum at the meeting for approving the transaction.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The Company uses a formal and transparent procedure for the appointment,
election and removal of directors, which is set out in the Company’s Articles
of Incorporation and is led by the Nomination Committee, which will make
recommendations on new director appointments to the Board for approval.

Each of the NEDs and INEDs is engaged on a service contract for a term
of 3 years, subject to re-election. Each of the EDs is also party to a service
contract, with their appointment subject to re-election. Further details of the
appointment, election and removal of directors are set out in the “Directors
and Senior Management” section on pages 66 to 72 of this Annual Report.

Induction and Ongoing Development

Each newly appointed director receives a formal, comprehensive and tailored
induction to ensure his or her understanding of the business and operations
of the Company and awareness of a director’s responsibilities and obligations.
All directors participate in continuous professional development in order to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. Each member of the Board
attended training on corporate governance, regulatory developments or other
relevant topics during the year ended December 31, 2013, and directors are
continually updated on developments in the statutory and regulatory regime
and the business environment to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities.
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Committees

The Board has established the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and
the Remuneration Committee for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established with defined
written terms of reference which are posted on the Company’s website and
are available to shareholders upon request. Meetings of the Board committees
generally follow the same procedures as for meetings of the Board.

Audit Committee

The Board has established an Audit Committee and has adopted written terms
of reference that set forth the authority and duties of the committee. The Audit
Committee consists of four members, namely Mr. Paul Etchells (Chairman of
the Audit Committee) (INED), Mr. Miguel Ko (INED), Ms. Ying Yeh (INED), and
Mr. Keith Hamill (NED).

In compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, at least one member of the
Audit Committee possesses appropriate professional qualifications in accounting
or related financial management expertise in discharging the responsibilities of
the Audit Committee.

All members have sufficient experience in reviewing audited financial statements
as aided by the auditors of the Company whenever required.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review and supervise the
Company’s financial reporting process and internal controls, to monitor the
integrity of the Company’s financial statements and financial reporting, and to
oversee the audit process.

There were four meetings of the Audit Committee held during the year ended
December 31, 2013. The following is a summary of the work performed by the
Audit Committee during 2013:

e Reviewed and approved the internal audit work plan for 2013, and received
periodic updates on the status of internal audit activities from the Company’s
Head of Internal Audit;

e Reviewed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal controls for the year
ended December 31, 2012;

e Reviewed the annual financial statements, annual results announcement and
annual report for the year ended December 31, 2012 and recommended
approval of such documents to the Board;

e Reviewed the independence of the Company’s external auditors and
recommended the re-engagement of the external auditors for the year ended
December 31, 2013;

e Reviewed the interim financial statements, interim results announcement and
interim report of the Company for the six months ended June 30, 2013, and
recommended approval of such documents to the Board;
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e Reviewed and approved the plan for and scope of the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2013
and the fee proposal for such audit;

e Reviewed arrangements for employees to raise concerns about possible
improprieties;

e Met twice with the Company’s external auditors without the presence of the
Executive Directors or management; and

¢ Met with the Company’s Head of Internal Audit without the presence of the
Executive Directors or management.

In addition, during the first three months of 2014 the Audit Committee
reviewed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal controls for the year
ended December 31, 2013; reviewed the annual financial statements, annual
results announcement and annual report for the year ended December 31, 2013
and recommended approval of such documents to the Board; and reviewed
the independence of the Company’s external auditors and recommended the
re-engagement of the external auditors for the year ending December 31, 2014.
The Audit Committee also established a policy in respect of engagement of the
external auditors to provide non-audit services.

Nomination Committee

The Board has established a Nomination Committee and has adopted written
terms of reference that set forth the authority and duties of the committee. The
Nomination Committee consists of four members, namely Mr. Timothy Parker
(Chairman of the Nomination Committee) (ED), Mr. Paul Etchells (INED), Mr.
Miguel Ko (INED), and Ms. Ying Yeh (INED).

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board, to make recommendations to the Board
with respect to any changes to the composition of the Board, and to assess
the independence of the INEDs. When identifying suitable candidates, the
Nomination Committee shall (where applicable and appropriate) use open
advertising or the services of external advisers and consider candidates from a
wide range of backgrounds on merit and against objective criteria.

There were two meetings of the Nomination Committee held during the year
ended December 31, 2013. The following is a summary of the work performed
by the Nomination Committee during 2013:

e Reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board;

e Reviewed the time and contribution required from directors;

¢ Assessed the independence of the INEDs and concluded that each of the
INEDs satisfied the independence requirements applicable to INEDs;

e Considered the retirement and re-nomination of directors to stand for re-
election to the Board at the Company’s 2013 annual general meeting of
shareholders;

¢ Discussed succession planning for the Company’s senior management; and

e Recommended to the Board adoption of the Company’s Board Diversity Policy.
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Remuneration Committee

The Board has established a Remuneration Committee and has adopted written
terms of reference that set forth the authority and duties of the committee.
The Remuneration Committee consists of four members, namely Mr. Miguel
Ko (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee) (INED), Mr. Paul Etchells (INED),
Ms. Ying Yeh (INED), and Mr. Hardy McLain (NED).

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to make recommendations
to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for the remuneration of
directors and senior management and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing policy on such remuneration, as well as
to determine the specific remuneration packages of all Executive Directors and
certain members of senior management.

There were five meetings of the Remuneration Committee held during the year
ended December 31, 2013. The following is a summary of the work performed
by the Remuneration Committee during 2013:

e Approved a minor, technical amendment to the Company’s Share Award
Scheme;

e Approved the grant of share options to senior managers and the Executive
Directors, and recommended to the Board the approval of the grant of share
options to other employees of the Group, on January 8, 2013;

¢ Reviewed and approved the compensation of each member of the Company’s
senior management, including the Executive Directors, for 2013;

e Reviewed the remuneration of directors for 2013; and

e Approved the adoption of the Company’s Management Severance Plan, which
establishes guidelines that may be modified by the Remuneration Committee
in its discretion with respect to severance payable to certain members of
senior management, including the Executive Directors, if their employment
with the Group is terminated by the Group without cause or by the senior
manager for good reason.

Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management
The following is a general description of the emolument policy of the Company,
as well as the basis of determining the emoluments payable to the directors:

The remuneration of directors is determined by the Board, which receives
recommendations from the Remuneration Committee. The remuneration of
directors also has to be approved by special resolutions at the annual general
meeting of the shareholders of the Company. All of the NEDs and all of the INEDs
received directors’ fees. Executive Directors did not receive any directors’ fees.

Under the Company’s current compensation arrangements, the Executive
Directors and senior management receive cash compensation in the form of
salaries as well as bonuses that are subject to performance targets.

Samsonite International S.A.
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Remuneration of the directors (including fees, salaries, discretionary bonuses,
share-based compensation and other benefits) was approximately US$6.4 million
for the year ended December 31, 2013. The aggregate amount of emoluments
for the five highest paid individuals of the Group, including certain Executive
Directors, was approximately US$8.3 million for the year ended December
31, 2013. No amounts have been paid to the directors or the five highest
paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office for the year ended December 31, 2013. No
directors waived or agreed to waive any emoluments to which they were entitled
for the year ended December 31, 2013.

The following table summarizes the emoluments, by band, of the members
of the Company’s senior management team during the year ended December
31, 2013:

US$250,000 — 500,000: 1 employee

US$500,000 — 750,000: 3 employees

US$750,000 — 1,000,000: 1 employee

Over US$1,000,000: 5 employees

External Auditors and Auditors’ Remuneration

The auditors’ statement about their reporting responsibilities for the Company’s
financial statements is set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on page 91
of this Annual Report.

The fees in relation to the audit and related services for the year ended December
31, 2013 provided by KPMG, the external auditors of the Company, were as
follows:
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Directors’ Responsibilities for the Consolidated
Financial Statements
The Board acknowledges that it holds responsibility for:

e Qverseeing the preparation of the financial statements of the Company with
a view to ensuring such financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company; and

e Selecting suitable accounting policies and applying them consistently with
the support of reasonable judgment and estimates.

The Board ensures the timely publication of the financial statements of the
Company.

Management provides explanations and information to the Board to enable
it to make an informed assessment of the financial and other information to
be approved.

The Board strives to ensure a balanced, clear and understandable assessment
of the Company’s financial reporting, including annual and interim reports,
other price-sensitive announcements, and other financial disclosures required
under the Listing Rules, and reports to regulators and information required to
be disclosed pursuant to statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards.

The Board is responsible for ensuring that the Company keeps proper accounting
records, for safeguarding the Company’s assets and for taking reasonable steps
for the prevention of fraud and other irregularities.

The Board is not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

Internal Controls
The Board places great importance on internal control and is responsible for
ensuring that the Company maintains sound and effective internal controls.

The Company’s internal audit department reviews the adequacy and effectiveness
of the internal control system. The internal and external audit plans are discussed
and agreed each year with the Audit Committee.

Samsonite International S.A.
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The Board has reviewed the overall effectiveness of the Company’s system of
internal control for the year ended December 31, 2013. The Board has delegated
to the Audit Committee responsibility for reviewing the Company’s internal
controls and reporting the committee’s findings to the Board. In conducting
such review, the Audit Committee, on behalf of the Board, has (i) reviewed
the Company’s internal audit activities during the year and discussed such
activities and the results thereof with the Company’s Head of Internal Audit,
(ii) reviewed and discussed the scope and results of the annual audit with the
Company's external auditors, and (iii) reviewed with management the results of
the Company’s internal management representation process that was performed
in connection with the preparation of the annual financial statements. Based
on its review, the Board is not aware of any material defects in the effectiveness
of internal controls.

Communications with Shareholders and Investor Relations
The Company strives to maintain a high level of transparency in communications
with shareholders and investors. The Company keeps a constant dialogue with
the investment community through company visits, conference calls, information
sessions and participation in major investor conferences to communicate the
Company’s business strategies, developments and goals.

The Company’s annual and interim reports, the current version of the Company’s
Articles of Incorporation, the Company’s stock exchange filings, video webcasts,
press releases and other information and updates on the Company’s operations
and financial performance are available for public access on the Company’s
website, www.samsonite.com, and some of them are also available on the

website of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The Company encourages its shareholders to attend the Company’s Annual
General Meeting (“AGM") and other general meetings, to communicate
their views and concerns to the Board directly so as to ensure a high level
of accountability and also to stay informed of the Company’s strategies,
developments and goals.

The 2014 AGM wiill be held on June 5, 2014. The notice of AGM will be sent
to the shareholders at least 20 clear business days before the AGM.

Shareholders Rights

Procedure for Shareholders to Convene a General Meeting

Pursuant to Article 13.10 of the Articles of Incorporation, any one or more
shareholder(s) who together hold not less than 5% of the issued and outstanding
shares of the Company that carry the right to vote at general meetings may
convene a general meeting by depositing a written request signed by such
shareholders and addressed to the attention of the Company’s Joint Company
Secretary at the registered office of the Company in Luxembourg or at the
Company'’s office in Hong Kong, the addresses of which are set out below.

EESCHAQTEE2013F12A318 1k
FENRIPE IR E N MR ETRET -
EERCEEREESEERFTEAATMN
ABEZEROESSERZEGHIER -
ERZESNRESENRBRED ()BT
AATRFRARNPELTEREERD FTRIE
REERZETHRELRETEN - ()8
R EADBIINEZ BN E T FEEZNE
BER&ER  R(EEEBRIADIER
HEFENKRRBRTEBITHASEEER
PRFNER - REHRF > EEELTH
BADEEYNAPETAEARNZZE ©

HERRBAEARXEERMR
RABBOHEFERRRREEBENSE
ZHE - ARBEBARSE - BHEEE
ENEBRRSEIBRREEGRERERE
FRERR  UWEEEBA QR BELER -
BRIEBEENESR -

AATNEERERFPERE - XD B
RIUZERMANBRERE - RAT@FSFR
ZARRTNER - REHY  FERREM
ERUREBEAARLEERVERBNEN
EREH AR D T www.samsonite.com >
ETZEENTHREBHAEXZMERA
A AHARER -

RARHBERREFERDARRBERS
(TRFBFARE]) REMRRRE  UE
ERESEREABHRBINEE MR
RESENBEN - WERREHEAQITHN
HEE - BRERER -

014FRERBFEREKNR2014F6 5048
T RRBFASNESERREBERS
BOTARDR0ELEEATETRRE -

B SRESHER
REBFRREXNENRERF
REFMAE I ERMAE13.100% - EA—
FRULBRREEXEEAEREBAHEH
RARRDRE% FREBNDBITREIT
EIMNRD - BB PR A RRERE TR
MEESARTAREBNMEE Lt HS
RTX) RERZERREBFNEMERD
FREBMABRERE - W ABRE QB HIE

NEWE °

HEBABRARAF

—O—=%

F i

63



64

Corporate Governance Report &R RE

Such request must specify the objects of the meeting. If the Board does not
within two calendar days from the date of deposit of the request proceed
duly to convene the meeting to be held within a further 28 calendar days,
the shareholders signing the request (or any of them representing more than
one-half of the total voting rights of all shareholders signing the request) may
convene the general meeting in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as
that in which meetings may be convened by the Board. No general meeting
convened by request of the shareholders may be held later than three months
after the date of deposit of the request.

Procedure for Shareholders to Make Enquires to the Board
Shareholders may make enquiries to the Board in writing by sending such
enquiries to the attention of the Company’s Joint Company Secretary at the
registered office of the Company in Luxembourg or at the Company’s office
in Hong Kong, the addresses of which are set out below. The Joint Company
Secretary will forward enquiries to the Chairman for consideration.

In addition, shareholders in attendance at any general meeting of the Company’s
shareholders may make enquiries at such meeting to the Chairman of the
Board, the chairmen of the various Board committees, or to other directors in
attendance at such meeting.

Procedure for Shareholders to Put Forward Proposals at

General Meetings

Pursuant to Article 13.11 of the Articles of Incorporation, upon a written request
by (i) one or more shareholder(s) representing not less than 2.5% of the total
voting rights of all shareholders who at the date of such request have a right
to vote at the meeting to which the request relates, or (ii) not less than 50
shareholders holding shares in the Company on which there has been paid up
an average sum, per shareholder, of not less than HK$2,000, the Company shall,
at the expense of the shareholders making the request (a) give to shareholders
entitled to receive notice of the next annual general meeting notice of any
resolution which may be properly moved and is intended to be moved at that
meeting, and (b) circulate to shareholders entitled to receive notice of any
general meeting a statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to
the matter referred to in the proposed resolution or the business to be dealt
with in the meeting.

Pursuant to Article 13.12 of the Articles of Incorporation, such request must
be signed by all the shareholders making the request (or two or more copies
between them containing the signatures of all the shareholders making the
request) and deposited at the registered office of the Company in Luxembourg
or at the Company’s office in Hong Kong, the addresses of which are set out
below.

Such request must be deposited (i) not less than six weeks before the meeting
in question in the case of a request proposing that a resolution be adopted at
the meeting, and (ii) not less than one week before the meeting in the case of
any request that does not propose that a resolution be adopted at the meeting.
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In addition, one or more shareholder(s) who together hold at least 10% of
the Company’s issued and outstanding shares may request that one or more
additional items be put on the agenda of any general meeting. Such request
must be sent to the registered office of the Company in Luxembourg by
registered mail not less than five days before the meeting.

Except pursuant to the procedures described above, a shareholder may not
make a motion at a general meeting.

Procedure for Election to the Office of Director upon

Shareholder Proposal

A shareholder who intends to propose a candidate for election to the office of
director of the Company shall provide the Company’s Joint Company Secretary
with a written notice reflecting its intention to propose a person for election to
the office of director of the Company.

The notice shall be delivered by the shareholder at the registered office of
the Company in Luxembourg or at the Company’s office in Hong Kong, the
addresses of which are set out below, during a period commencing no earlier
than the day after the dispatch of the convening notice of the meeting scheduled
for such election and ending no later than seven days prior to the date of
such meeting. Such notice must be delivered by a shareholder (not being the
person to be proposed) who is entitled to attend and vote at the meeting. In
addition, the candidate proposed for election shall deliver to the Company’s
Joint Company Secretary a signed written notice reflecting his willingness to
be elected as director of the Company.

In accordance with Article 13.5 of the Articles of Incorporation of the Company,
the appointment of the director will be made by way of a general shareholders’
meeting of the Company and by ordinary resolution adopted at a simple majority
of the votes cast.

Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned above to one
of the following addresses marked for the attention of the Joint Company
Secretary:

Registered Office in Luxembourg:
13-15 Avenue de la Liberté
L-1931, Luxembourg

Principal place of business in Hong Kong:
25/F, Tower 2, The Gateway,

Harbour City, 25 Canton Road,

Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by law.
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General
The Board currently consists of eight directors, comprising three Executive
Directors, two Non-Executive Directors and three Independent Non-Executive
Directors.

In accordance with Code provision A.4.2 as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules, every director, including those appointed for a specific term, should be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. Under Article 8.1
of the Articles of Incorporation of the Company, the directors shall be elected by
the shareholders at a general meeting, and the term of office of a director shall
be three years, upon the expiry of which each shall be eligible for re-election.

Accordingly, during the year ended December 31, 2013, Mr. Timothy Parker,
Mr. Kyle Gendreau, Mr. Hardy McLain, Mr. Paul Etchells and Ms. Ying Yeh
retired by rotation, and having been eligible, offered themselves for re-election
as directors at the 2013 AGM. All five were re-elected at the AGM by majority
vote, with Messrs. Parker, McLain and Etchells re-elected to three-year terms
and Mr. Gendreau and Ms. Yeh re-elected to one-year terms. Mr. Nicholas Clarry
retired from the Board on June 6, 2013 at the end of his term and did not offer
himself up for re-election.

The terms of Mr. Gendreau and Ms. Yeh will expire at the 2014 AGM of the
Company. The terms of Messrs. Tainwala, Hamill and Ko will expire at the 2015
AGM of the Company. The terms of Messrs. Parker, McLain and Etchells will
expire at the 2016 AGM of the Company.
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Directors

The Board is responsible and has general powers for the management and
conduct of the Company’s business. The following table sets out certain
information concerning the directors:

S

EEa VR - RELEERETALT
MK - TREJIERESNETESR !

®E Fie B Z1EHH FTERE
Name Age Position Date of Appointment Principal Responsibilities’
Timothy Charles 58 Executive Director, Chairman As Non-Executive Chairman: Overall strategic planning
Parker and Chief Executive Officer November 2008 and management of the
PITES - TERTBER As Chief Executive Officer: Group
January 2009 IRE B R AL iR B
RIFHATER © 20085118 REE
FITEAEE : 2009518
Kyle Francis 44 Executive Director and Chief January 2009 Management of
Gendreau Financial Officer 2009414 the Group's finance
HITEERIEEE and treasury matters
EERAEBAVEITER
AEEE
Ramesh Dungarmal 54 Executive Director and Chief February 2011 Day-to-day management
Tainwala Operating Officer 2011424 of the Group's operations
HITESHREERE REEXEBHHEER
Keith Hamill 61 Non-Executive Director October 2009
FHTES 20095108
Bruce Hardy McLain g1 Non-Executive Director October 2007
(Hardy) FHITES 2007108
Paul Kenneth Etchells g3 Independent Non-Executive May 2011
Director 2011454
B FHITES
Miguel Kai Kwun Ko g1 Independent Non-Executive May 2011
=1 e Director 20114548
B FHITES
Ying Yeh 65 Independent Non-Executive May 2011
g Director 2011454
BYFHTES
Notefft &=

' As is usual for a company of this size, the Non-Executive Directors and Independent Non-Executive Directors do not have specific operational responsibilities but
rather, with the benefit of their particular experiences, provide strategic guidance and leadership to the Board.
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Executive Directors

Mr. Timothy Charles Parker, aged 58, is the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company and is also the Chairman of the Board of Directors. He has served as
Chairman of the Company since its incorporation on March 8, 2011 and has
been the Chief Executive Officer since January 2009. Mr. Parker is responsible
for the Company’s overall strategic planning and management. He served as
Non-Executive Chairman of the consolidated group from November 2008 until
January 2009, and as Executive Chairman of the consolidated group since
January 2009. Mr. Parker has a long history of managing large businesses.
Prior to joining the Company he was chief executive of: The Automobile
Association (2004 to 2007), the car-repair firm Kwik-Fit (2002 to 2004), Clarks,
the shoemaker (1997 to 2002) and Kenwood Appliances (1989 to 1995). Mr.
Parker currently holds a non-executive directorship with, and is the chairman
of, Autobar Group, a non-executive directorship with Archive Investments and
is an advisor to certain investment funds managed by CVC Capital Partners
Limited. Since January 2014, Mr. Parker has been chairman of the Commercial
Advisory Panel of the National Trust, a U.K. charitable organization. He has
previously held non-executive directorships with Alliance Boots, Compass and
Legal and General. Mr. Parker has also previously advised ministers and senior
civil servants on nationalized industry policy in his capacity as an economist at
the British Treasury (1977 to 1979). Mr. Parker holds a MA in Philosophy, Politics
and Economics from the University of Oxford, Oxford, the United Kingdom
(1977) and a Master’s in Business Studies from London Graduate School of
Business Studies, London, the United Kingdom (1981).

Samsonite International S.A.
Annual Report 2013
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Mr. Kyle Francis Gendreau, aged 44, has served as an Executive Director
of the Company since its incorporation on March 8, 2011 and has been the
Chief Financial Officer since January 2009. Mr. Gendreau is responsible for
managing all aspects of the Group’s finance and treasury matters. He has served
as an Executive Director of the consolidated group since January 2009. Mr.
Gendreau joined the Company in June 2007 as Vice President of Corporate
Finance and as Assistant Treasurer. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Gendreau
held various positions including vice president of finance and chief financial
officer at Zoots Corporation, a venture capital-backed start-up company (2000
to 2007), assistant vice president of finance and director of SEC reporting at
Specialty Catalog Corporation, a listed catalog retailer (1997 to 2000) and a
manager at Coopers & Lybrand in Boston (1991 to 1996). Mr. Gendreau holds
a BS in Business Administration from Stonehill College, Easton, Massachusetts,
USA (1991) and is a Certified Public Accountant in Massachusetts.

Mr. Ramesh Dungarmal Tainwala, aged 54, has served as an Executive
Director of the Company since February 2011 and as the Company’s Chief
Operating Officer since March 18, 2014. In his role as Chief Operating Officer,
Mr. Tainwala’s principal responsibility is to manage the Group’s day-to-day
operations. He is also directly involved in the Group’s business in China, the
Philippines and Australia. Prior to his appointment as Chief Operating Officer,
Mr. Tainwala served as the Company’s President for Asia-Pacific and the Middle
East. Mr. Tainwala has been the General Manager of the Group’s Middle Eastern
operation since January 2007 and has been the Chief Operating Officer of the
Group’s Indian operation since June 2000. Prior to joining the Company in
November 1995, Mr. Tainwala worked in the plastic processing and consumer
goods industries including with Tainwala Chemicals & Plastics (India) Limited with
which he was associated from 1985 to 2008. Mr. Tainwala was an entrepreneur
in the plastic processing and consumer goods industries. Mr. Tainwala holds a
Master’s degree in Management Studies from the Birla Institute of Technology
and Science, Pilani, India (1982).
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Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Keith Hamill, aged 61, has served as a Non-Executive Director since
October 2009. He was initially appointed by RBS in 2009. Mr. Hamill has
extensive experience as both an executive and non-executive director of major
international corporations. He is currently the chairman of Horsforth Holdings
Ltd., a privately held investment holding company for a number of leisure
businesses, and Avant Homes Limited (formerly known as Gladedale Limited)
(since February 2013). He is also currently an independent non-executive director
on the board of a number of other companies including easyJet plc (since
2009) and Max Property Group plc (since 2010), both of which are listed on
the London Stock Exchange. Mr. Hamill’s prior experience also includes being
chairman of inter-dealer broker Tullett Prebon plc (2006 to 2013), stockbroker
Collins Stewart plc (2000 to 2006) and software developer Alterian plc (2000 to
2011), all of which were listed on the London Stock Exchange, and chairman of
Endell Group Holdings Limited (parent company of Travelodge Hotels Limited)
(2003 t0 2012), and insurance broker Heath Lambert Limited (2009 to 2011) and
HGL Holdings Limited (2005 to 2011). He was also previously a non-executive
director of the distribution business Electrocopments plc (1999 to 2008), which
was listed on the London Stock Exchange, and publisher and printer Cadmus
Communications Inc. (2002 to 2007), which was listed on NASDAQ. He was
chief financial officer of Forte plc (1993 to 1996), WH Smith plc (1996 to 2000)
and the company which was then named United Distillers International Limited
(1990 to 1993), and a director of financial control at Guinness plc (1988 to
1991). Mr. Hamill was also a partner at PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (1986
to 1988). Mr. Hamill holds a BA in Politics from the University of Nottingham,
Nottingham, the United Kingdom (1974), is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants, England and Wales and was previously Chairman of the Board of
the University of Nottingham.
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Mr. Bruce Hardy McLain (Hardy), aged 61, has served as a Non-Executive
Director since May 26, 2011. He has served as a non-executive director of
the consolidated group since October 2007. Mr. Mclain is a co-founder, and
serves on the board, of CVC Capital Partners (formerly a subsidiary of Citigroup
known as Citicorp Venture Capital), from which he retired as managing partner
in December 2012. Mr. McLain joined Citicorp Venture Capital in 1988, and
in 1993 participated along with fellow managers in the acquisition of Citicorp
Venture Capital from Citigroup and the founding of CVC Capital Partners. Since
founding CVC Capital Partners he has been involved in and held a number of
directorships including within the Dorna Sports Group (1998 to 2006), Rapala
VMC OYJ (1998 to 2005), Punch Taverns Plc (formerly known as Punch Group
Limited) (1999 to 2002), Spirit Group Holdings Limited (formerly known as Spirit
Amber Holdings) (2003 to 2006), and Kappa Holding BV (1998 to 2000). He
is currently a director of Formula One, the Haymon Sports LLC and the Lecta
Group. Prior to joining Citicorp Development Capital, Mr. McLain worked for
Citicorp’s investment management (1986 to 1987) and mezzanine finance (1987
to 1988) groups. Mr. McLain holds a BA in Public Policy and Psychology from
Duke University, Durham, North Carolina, USA, where he graduated in 1976,
and an MBA in Finance and Marketing from UCLA, Los Angeles, California,
USA (1981). He serves on the Board of Visitors for both the Sanford School of
Public Policy at Duke University and the UCLA Anderson School of Management.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Paul Kenneth Etchells, aged 63, has served as an Independent Non-
Executive Director since May 2011. He is currently an independent non-executive
director of Swire Properties Limited, a leading developer, owner and operator of
mixed use, principally commercial properties in Hong Kong and the PRC, and
of China Foods Limited, a company engaged in food and beverage processing
and distribution, both of which are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Etchells has served as an advisor to Cassia
Investments Limited, a private equity firm, since November 2012. Mr. Etchells
has also held various positions at The Coca-Cola Company (1998 to 2010),
including deputy president of Coca-Cola Pacific (2007 to 2010) and president
of Coca-Cola China (2002 to 2007). Prior to joining The Coca-Cola Company,
Mr. Etchells held various positions at the Swire Group (1976 to 1998), including
managing director of Swire Beverages (1995 to 1998), general manager of the
Industries Division of Swire Pacific (1989 to 1995) and finance manager of the
Industries Division of Swire Pacific (1981 to 1989). Mr. Etchells holds a BA in
Political Studies from the University of Leeds, Leeds, the United Kingdom (1971)
and is a fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales
and a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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Mr. Miguel Kai Kwun Ko, aged 61, has served as an Independent Non-
Executive Director since May 2011. Mr. Ko has held various executive and non-
executive positions in international hotel companies and other corporations in
Asia. He is currently non-executive chairman of Starwood Hotels & Resorts, Asia-
Pacific, from which he retired as President, Asia-Pacific in 2012 after working
with Starwood Hotels & Resorts since 2000. Mr. Ko currently holds non-executive
directorships in Merlin Entertainments Plc and Surbana International Consultants
Holdings Pte Ltd., each since 2013, Delta Topco Limited (a privately held holding
company for Formula One PLC) since 2012 and Changi Airport Group since
2010. Prior to joining Starwood Hotels & Resorts, Mr. Ko held the position
of deputy chairman and chief executive officer at City E-Solutions (formerly
known as CDL Hotels) (2000), various positions including president at Pepsi-Cola
International for Asia Pacific (1992 to 1999) and various positions at ITT Sheraton
Corporation (1979 to 1992). Mr. Ko has also previously held various executive
and non-executive directorships with Millennium and Copthorne plc UK, Amarin
Plaza, Thailand, City e-Solutions Hong Kong (formerly known as CDL Hotels),
Serm Suk Company, Thailand, Royal Orchid Hotel (Thailand) Public Company Ltd
and Civil Aviation Authority, Singapore. Mr. Ko holds a BA in Economics from the
University of Massachusetts (1975) and a MBA from Suffolk University, Boston,
Massachusetts, USA (1979). He also qualified as a Certified Public Accountant
in New Hampshire in 1982, though does not currently practice.

Ms. Ying Yeh, aged 65, has served as an Independent Non-Executive Director
since May 2011. Ms. Yeh has extensive experience as an executive and a non-
executive director of major international corporations. She was the chairman
of Nalco Greater China Region until June 2011. Nalco is one of the world’s
largest sustainability service companies. Ms. Yeh currently holds non-executive
directorships at ABB Ltd (a company listed on the SIX Swiss Exchange, the stock
exchanges in Stockholm (NASDAQ OMX Stockholm) and New York (NYSE)),
AB Volvo (a company listed on the OMX Nordic Exchange, Stockholm) and
InterContinental Hotels Group plc (a company listed on the main board of the
London Stock Exchange). Prior to joining Nalco, Ms. Yeh worked in various Asian
divisions of Eastman Kodak (1997 to 2009) and also held various positions with
the United States Government, Foreign Service (1982 to 1997). Ms. Yeh holds
a BA in Literature and International Relations from National Taiwan University,
Taiwan (1967).
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Changes in Information of Directors

Pursuant to Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules, please note that Mr. Ramesh
Dungarmal Tainwala, who was President, Asia-Pacific and Middle East, of the
Company, has been appointed as Chief Operating Officer of the Company
with effect from March 18, 2014. He continues to serve as an Executive
Director of the Company.

Pursuant to Rule 13.51(B)(1) of the Listing Rules, please note the following
changes in information concerning certain Directors of the Company that have
occurred subsequent to the publication of the Company’s 2013 interim report:

Mr. Miguel Kai Kwun Ko, an Independent Non-Executive Director of the
Company, was appointed as an independent non-executive director of Merlin
Entertainments Plc in September 2013.

Mr. Ramesh Dungarmal Tainwala, an Executive Director of the Company,
resigned from his appointment as an independent non-executive director of
Donear Industries Limited and of Basant Agro Tech (India) Ltd, with effect
from December 2013.

Mr. Timothy Charles Parker, an Executive Director of the Company, was
appointed as chairman of the Commercial Advisory Panel of the National
Trust, a U.K. charitable organization with effect from February 2014.

Mr. Bruce Hardy Mclain, a Non-Executive Director of the Company, resigned
from his appointment as a director of the Colomer Group with effect from
August 2013 and was appointed as a director of Haymon Sports LLC with
effect from September 2013.
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Senior Management

Our senior management is responsible for the day-to-day management of
our business. The following table sets out certain information concerning our

senior management:

BREEE
EREEEAERMNEBNAEEE-T
RS EESREEENE TER

e FEe B

Name Age Position

Timothy Charles Parker 58 Executive Director, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
HTES - TRRTBAER

Kyle Francis Gendreau 44 Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer
HITESRYBRE

Ramesh Dungarmal Tainwala 54 Executive Director and Chief Operating Officer
HITESHREERE

Tom Korbas 62 President, Americas
ENEBE

Fabio Rugarli 49 President, Europe
BUNERH

Leo Boo Suk Suh 45 President, Asia and Middle East
MR PREEE

John Henry Sullivan (Jack) 61 President, Latin America
T EMNEEAR

Robert Thomas Zielinski 57 Chief Supply Officer
YIRHE AR BE

Paola Tiziana Brunazzi 51 Vice President, Global Design and Development
BERRET R AR EE

Andrew David Wells 53 Chief Information Officer
EfBE

John Bayard Livingston 46 Vice President, General Counsel and Joint Company Secretary

BIRE - BEEERREELRANE

Mr. Tom Korbas is the President of the Company’s Americas division and
is responsible for the overall management and development of the Group’s
business in the Americas. Mr. Korbas joined the Company in 1993. His previous
positions with the Company include: Vice President/General Manager of the
Company’s US wholesale business (2000 to 2004), Vice President of Sales
and Operations (1998 to 2000) and Senior Vice President of Soft-Side and
Casual Bags (1997 to 1998). Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Korbas was vice
president of operations (1986 to 1997), director of manufacturing operations,
and engineering manager for American Tourister. Mr. Korbas holds a BS in
Industrial Engineering from Northeastern University, Boston, Massachusetts, USA
(1973) and an MBA from Babson College, Wellesley, Massachusetts, USA (1976).
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Mr. Fabio Rugarli is the President of the Company’s European division and
is responsible for the overall management and development of the Group’s
business in Europe. Mr. Rugarli joined the Company in 1989. His previous
positions with the Company include General Manager for Samsonite Italy (2002
to 2009) and Marketing and Sales Director for the luggage division in Italy
(1996 to 2001). Mr. Rugarli holds a degree in Business Administration from the
University Bocconi, Milan, Italy (1988).

Mr. Leo Boo Suk Suh is President of the Company’s Asia and Middle East
division and is responsible for the overall management and development of
the Company’s business in Asia (with the exception of China, the Philippines
and Australia). Mr. Suh joined the Company in 2005. He was promoted to
his current role on March 18, 2014. His previous positions with the Company
include Executive Vice President, Asia (2013 to 2014) and General Manager,
Korea (2005 to 2013). Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Suh served in sales and
marketing roles with a number of global luxury brands’ South Korean operations,
including Prada, Bally and Chanel. Mr. Suh holds a bachelor’s degree in business
administration from Yonsei University, Seoul, South Korea. He also attended
the Advanced Distribution Management Program course at Yonsei Graduate
School of Economics and the Global Leader Course at Korea Graduate School
of Education in Seoul, South Korea. Mr. Suh also studied at the University of
California, San Diego.

Mr. John Henry Sullivan (Jack) is the President of the Company’s Latin America
division and is responsible for the overall management and development of the
Group’s business in Latin America. Mr. Sullivan joined the Company in 1985,
left in 1990 and rejoined in 1994. His previous positions within the Company
include: Vice President for the Mexico division and Vice President and General
Manager for the Latin America division of the Company. In 1990 and 1991 he
was marketing director for the Monroe division at Tenneco Automotive. Before
rejoining the Company, he was with Frito-Lay International, the snack food
division of PepsiCo where he was vice president for marketing and sales of the
Puerto Rican division and president of the Caribbean division. Prior to joining the
Company in 1985, Mr. Sullivan was manager of international affiliates at General
Electric Consumer Electronics, and assistant sales manager, marketing manager
and franchise manager for southern Spain for Pepsi-Cola International. He holds
a BA in Chemistry from Williams College, Williamstown, Massachusetts, USA
(1974) and a MBA (Marketing) from Amos Tuck School at Dartmouth College,
Hanover, New Hampshire, USA (1978).
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Mr. Robert Thomas Zielinski is the Company’s Chief Supply Officer and is
responsible for the Group’s supply chain and the development of key supplier
partnerships. Mr. Zielinski joined the Company in 1992 and his previous
positions with the Company include: Vice President for Sourcing (2000 to 2009),
Director for Planning and Scheduling (1997 to 2000) and Senior Manager of
Forecasting (1994 to 1997). Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Zielinski held
various production and distribution positions at Health-Tex Inc between 1977
and 1992. Mr. Zielinski holds a BA in Political Science from Providence College,
Providence, Rhode Island, USA (1979).

Ms. Paola Tiziana Brunazzi is the Company’s Vice President for Global Design
and Development, a position she has held since 2009. Ms. Brunazzi joined the
Company in 2006 as a project manager for the Lacoste brands. Ms. Brunazzi
has extensive experience in the luxury brands industry having worked as senior
designer, project manager and director of the design office at various fashion
houses including Tod’s S.p.A. (2004 to 2006), Dolce & Gabbana S.p.A. (2001
t0 2004), Sosir S.p.A. (Trussardi) (1999 to 2001), Coccinelle (1999), Sosir S.p.A.
(Trussardi) (1996 to 1999) and as a consultant with Fontana S.r.l. (1991 to 1996).
Ms. Brunazzi holds a Master’s degree in Fashion Design from Domus Academy,
Milan, Italy (1984).

Mr. Andrew David Wells is the Company’s Chief Information Officer and is
responsible for developing, structuring and implementing the Group’s global
information technology strategy and outsourced IT shared services. Mr. Wells
joined the Company in March 2009. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Wells
was global chief information officer and senior vice president at Shire plc, a FTSE
100 pharmaceutical company (2000 to 2008), supply chain director for Bristol
Myers Squibb Central & Eastern Europe Division (1996 to 1999) and manager
of Information Services International at Mars (1986 to 1996). Mr. Wells holds
a M Eng (Master’s of Engineering) from Cambridge University, Cambridge, the
United Kingdom (1994).
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Mr. John Bayard Livingston is Vice President, General Counsel and Joint
Company Secretary of the Company. Mr. Livingston is responsible for all of the
Company’s legal matters worldwide and provides counsel to senior management
and the Directors on matters of corporate governance. Mr. Livingston joined
the Company in July 2006 and was Vice President and General Counsel for
the Company’s Americas division until September 2009 when he became Vice
President and General Counsel of the Company. Prior to joining the Company,
Mr. Livingston was in-house counsel (2002 to 2006) at Reebok International
Ltd. and was an associate in the corporate department of Ropes & Gray (1995
t0 2002). Mr. Livingston holds a BA in Political Science from Colgate University,
Hamilton, New York, USA (1989), and a J.D. from Boston College Law School,
Newton, Massachusetts, USA (1994).

Company Secretary and Authorized Representative
Mr. John Bayard Livingston and Ms. Chow Yuk Yin Ivy are the Company’s Joint
Company Secretaries while Mr. Ramesh Dungarmal Tainwala and Ms. Chow
are the Company’s authorized representatives (pursuant to the Listing Rules).
Ms. Chow was appointed as a Joint Company Secretary and an authorized
representative of the Company with effect from March 18, 2013.

During 2013, Ms. Lau Pik Lee served as a Joint Company Secretary and an
authorized representative of the Company from January 1, 2013 until her
resignation on March 18, 2013. Ms. Chow Yuk Yin Ivy served as a Joint Company
Secretary and an authorized representative of the Company from March 18,
2013 through December 31, 2013.

During 2013, the Joint Company Secretaries complied with Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules regarding professional training.

Relationships between Directors and Senior Managers
None of the Directors or Senior Managers is related to any other Director or
Senior Manager.
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The Directors have pleasure in submitting their annual report together with the
audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended December
31, 2013.

Principal Activities

Samsonite International S.A. (the “Company”), together with its consolidated
subsidiaries (the “Group”), is principally engaged in the design, manufacture,
sourcing and distribution of luggage, business and computer bags, outdoor and
casual bags, and travel accessories throughout the world, primarily under the
Samsonite®, American Tourister®, High Sierra® and Hartmann® brand names and
other owned and licensed brand names. The Group sells its products through
a variety of wholesale distribution channels, through its company operated
retail stores and through e-commerce. The principal luggage wholesale
distribution customers of the Group are department and specialty retail stores,
mass merchants, catalog showrooms and warehouse clubs. The Group sells its
products in Asia, Europe, North America and Latin America.

Results and Distributions to Shareholders
The results of the Company are set out in the consolidated financial statements
on pages 92 to 175 of this Annual Report.

The Board recommends that a cash distribution in the amount of US$80.0
million, or approximately US$0.0568 per share based upon the number of shares
outstanding as of the date hereof (the “Distribution”) be made to the Company’s
shareholders from its ad hoc distributable reserve. The per share amount of the
Distribution is subject to change in the event that any new shares are issued
pursuant to the exercise of outstanding share options before the record date
for the Distribution. A further announcement will be made on the record date
of the Distribution in the event that the final amount per share charges. The
payment shall be made in US dollars, except that payment to shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members in Hong Kong shall be paid in Hong
Kong dollars. The relevant exchange rate shall be the opening buying rate of
Hong Kong dollars to US dollars as announced by the Hong Kong Association
of Banks (www.hkab.org.hk) on the day of the approval of the Distribution.

The Distribution will be subject to approval by the shareholders at the
forthcoming AGM of the Company. For determining the entitlement to attend
and vote at the AGM, the Register of Members of the Company will be closed
from June 3, 2014 to June 5, 2014, both days inclusive, during which period
no transfer of shares will be registered. The record date to determine which
shareholders will be eligible to attend and vote at the forthcoming AGM will be
June 5, 2014. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s branch Share Registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration no later
than 4:30 p.m. on May 30, 2014.
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Subject to the shareholders approving the recommended Distribution at the
forthcoming AGM, such Distribution will be payable on or about July 11, 2014
to shareholders whose names appear on the register of members on June 17,
2014. To determine eligibility for the Distribution, the register of members will
be closed from June 13, 2014 to June 17, 2014, both days inclusive, during
which period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to be entitled to
receive the Distribution, all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch Share Registrar
in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops
1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong,
for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on June 12, 2014.

The Distribution will not be subject to withholding tax under Luxembourg laws.

Segment Information

An analysis of the Company’s performance by operating segment for the year
ended December 31, 2013 is set out in note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Reserves

Details of movements in the Company’s reserves during the year ended
December 31, 2013 are set out in the Consolidated Statement of Changes
in Equity on pages 96 and 97 of this Annual Report and in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

At December 31, 2013, reserves available for distribution to shareholders
amounted to approximately US$2.3 billion as shown in the statutory financial
statements of Samsonite International S.A. and calculated in accordance with
the Company'’s Articles of Incorporation.

Share Award Scheme

The Company’s shareholders adopted its Share Award Scheme on September
14, 2012. The purpose of the Share Award Scheme is to attract skilled and
experienced personnel, to incentivize them to remain with the Group and
to motivate them to strive for the future development and expansion of the
Group by providing them with the opportunity to acquire equity interests in
the Company. Awards under the Share Award Scheme may take the form of
either share options or restricted share units (“RSUs”), which may be granted
at the discretion of the Board to directors, employees or such other persons as
the Board may determine.

As of February 28, 2014 (the “Latest Practicable Date”), the maximum aggregate
number of shares in respect of which awards may be granted pursuant to the
Share Award Scheme is 113,126,934 Shares, representing approximately 8.0%
of the issued share capital of the Company. An individual participant may be
granted awards pursuant to the Share Award Scheme in respect of a maximum
of 1% of the Company’s total issued shares in any 12-month period. Any
grant of awards to an individual participant in excess of this limit is subject to
independent shareholders’ approval.
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The exercise period for share options and the vesting period for RSUs under
the Share Award Scheme are determined by the Board, but will not exceed
10 years from the date of grant. There is no minimum period under the Share
Award Scheme for which awards must be held before they can be exercised or
vest, but the Board has discretion to impose a minimum holding period at the
time of making a grant.

There is no requirement for participants to make any payment for the acceptance
of an award under the Share Award Scheme, but the Board has the discretion to
require the payment of a remittance in such amount as the Board may determine
as consideration for the grant of a share option. Offers of awards will remain
open for acceptance by participants for such time as determined by the Board.

The exercise price of share options is determined at the time of grant by the
Board in its absolute discretion, but in any event shall not be less than the
higher of:

(a) the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued
by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on
the date of grant;

(b) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotation
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and

(c) the nominal value of the shares.

Subject to early termination, the Share Award Scheme will remain valid and
effective for 10 years from the date of adoption on September 14, 2012.

During 2013, the Company granted share options exercisable for ordinary shares
to certain directors, key management personnel, and other employees of the
Group. Such options are subject to pro rata vesting over a 4 year period, with
25% of the options vesting on each anniversary of the grant date. The options
have a 10 year term. No RSUs had been issued under the Share Award Scheme
as of December 31, 2013.

In accordance with the terms of the share options, holders of vested options
are entitled to buy newly issued ordinary shares of the Company at a purchase
price per share equal to the exercise price of the options.
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Particulars and movements of share options during the year ended December
31, 2013 were as follows:

HZE2013F 12831 BLLEE - BREN

EREBMT :

BRELE
Number of shares subject to options
#H2013F
2R/ 128318 BRITEE
/5N As of (B7)
REANEE/ BB 201351818 ER BT Forfeited/ December31, A e Exercise price
Name/category of grantee As of January 1, 2013 Granted Exercised cancelled/lapsed 2013 Date of grant Exercise period per share (HKS)'
Directors
22
Timothy Parker - 2,368,749 - - 2,368,749 lanuary 8, 2013 January 8, 2014 - 17.36
2013F1888  January 7, 2023
2014%1A8H-
2023F147R
Kyle Gendreau - 779,124 - - 779,124 January 8, 2013 January 8, 2014 - 17.36
2013%1A80  January 7, 2023
201451 A8H-
2023F1R7H
Ramesh Tainwala - 843,208 - - 843,208  January 8,2013  January 8, 2014 - 17.36
2013F1A8H  January 7, 2023
201451 88H-
20231878
Total Directors - 3,991,081 - - 3,991,081
EEV
Others
Ht
Employees - 11,304,799 - (59,224) 11,245,575  January 8, 2013 January 8, 2014 - 17.36
&8 2013%1888  January 7, 2023
2014%1A88-
20231478
Employee - 108,522 - - 108522 July1,2013 July1,2014 - 18.68
& 2013F7A18  June 30,2023
2014%7818-
202364308
Total Employees - 11,413,321 - (59,224) 11,354,097
a4
Total - 15,404,402 - (59,224) 15,345,178
st
Note Ffi&F

! The closing price of the shares of the Company immediately preceding the date of grant for the share options granted on January 8, 2013 and July
1, 2013 were HK$16.90 and HK$18.68, respectively.
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The fair value of services received in return for share options granted is based
on the fair value of share options granted measured using the Black-Scholes
valuation model. The fair value calculated for share options is inherently
subjective due to the assumptions made and the limitations of the model utilized.

The total fair value of share options granted during the year ended December
31, 2013 was US$14.3 million. In total, share-based compensation expense of
US$7.0 million was included in the consolidated income statement for the year
ended December 31, 2013.

Details of the accounting treatment for share options are set out in notes 3()
(vi) and 17(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

Charitable Donations
Donations made for charitable and other purposes by the Group during the
year ended December 31, 2013 amounted to US$0.2 million.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Company during the year ended December 31, 2013 are set out in note 8 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Principal Subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at December 31, 2013 are
set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

Bank Loans
As at December 31, 2013, the Group had bank loans of approximately US$15.5
million that were repayable upon demand or within one year.

Major Customers and Suppliers
The aggregate percentage of purchases attributable to the Group’s major
suppliers during the year ended December 31, 2013 is as follows:
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The percentage of the Company’s net sales that were attributable to the Group’s
five largest customers was less than 30% during the year ended December
31, 2013.

To the knowledge of the directors, none of the directors, their associates, or
any shareholders (which, to the knowledge of the directors, own more than
5% of the issued share capital of the Company) had a beneficial interest in the
Group’s five largest suppliers and customers.
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Five Year Financial Information
A summary of the results, assets, and liabilities of the Company for the last five
fiscal years is set out on page 176 of this Annual Report.

Pre-emptive Rights
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles of
Incorporation or the laws of the Grand-Duchy of Luxembourg.

Purchase, Sale, or Redemption of the Company’s Listed
Securities

There was no purchase, sale or redemption of the Company’s listed securities
by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the year ended December
31, 2013.

Share Capital
Details of any movements in share capital of the Company during the year are
set out in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity.

Directors
As at December 31, 2013 and up to the date of this Annual Report, the
composition of the Board was as follows:

Executive Directors
Timothy Charles Parker

Kyle Francis Gendreau
Ramesh Dungarmal Tainwala

Non-Executive Directors
Keith Hamill
Bruce Hardy McLain (Hardy)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Paul Kenneth Etchells

Miguel Kai Kwun Ko

Ying Yeh

Biographical details of the directors of the Company as at the date of this report
are set out on pages 66 to 72 of this Annual Report.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the directors who is proposed for re-election at the 2014 AGM has or
is proposed to have a service contract that is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Except as disclosed in respect of Mr. Ramesh Tainwala’s interests in certain of
the Company’s continuing connected transactions on pages 85 to 89, none
of the directors had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, in any
contract of significance subsisted during or at the end of the year to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party.
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HITES
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in the Shares and Underlying Shares

As at December 31, 2013, the interests and short positions of the directors and
chief executives of the Company in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) which were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of Part XV of the SFO
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules were as follows:

1. Long position in the shares of the Company

EERRETHASNE G RBEEK
PHIRER R RE

M2013F 128310 XRAAEERREIT
BAEBRAQNARERELE R(BEHFR
HMEHRHD (TEHFRBEGKRL]) SEXVIBH
EE) WROREBEROGPHEEREZSR
HERHIEXVEBE 7RSS BMEARAF
REXFMHERRAS (BEREZSRE
ERBINEBRESHEERBIEREN
BRHAR) » RATALRAFREZFZR
HEHRAIEXVEEIREBEENELMHN
ERERAR > RARE LR AIKT 82 10FT S
W ETBITAESETES XS WIEEST
BIY (ME2E<PH ) BSTHEAAARER
FIHREERABIT ¢

1. RAERBABRBHFE

R2013F 12831 BHEFENEBREE. ERENBANES L

HEME b Sl =t Number of ordinary shares held at Approximate

Name of Director Nature of Interest December 31, 2013 shareholding (%)

Timothy Charles Parker Beneficial owner 58,654,229 (L)° 4.16
BREAA

Kyle Francis Gendreau Beneficial owner 4,188,772 (L) 0.29
BREAA

Ramesh Dungarmal Tainwala Beneficial owner 11,035,242 (L)® 0.78
BREAA

Keith Hamill Beneficial owner 193,745 (L) 0.01
BREAA

Bruce Hardy McLain Beneficial owner 500,000 (L) 0.03
BREEA

Notes FffzE

@ (L) represents long position.

L RERFE -

5 Comprised of 28,142,740 shares held by Mr. Parker and 28,142,740 shares held by his spouse, Ms. Therese Charlotte Christiaan Marie Parker, each
as beneficial and registered owner. Mr. Parker is deemed by virtue of the SFO to be interested in the shares held by Ms. Parker. Also includes share

options held by Mr. Parker that are exercisable for 2,368,749 shares.

B3E28,142,7408% BParker e AE A MM D ) 28,142,740 FH E it fB Therese Charlotte Christiaan Marie ParkerZ THE KA  HESBEAER
RETHEEA - REFZFERIERD > Parker B EH R ABE B Parker L L FTIFE MR DR o TNEEParker LA FTIFE W 1TE:2882,368,749/%

PRAD HORB AR AE -

¢ Comprised of 3,409,648 shares held by Mr. Gendreau and share options exercisable for 779,124 shares.

453,409,648 FiGendreau e £ 5B MM D I AIAT{ERREE 779,124/ B 7 HO BB AR AE

4 Comprised of 10,192,034 shares held by Mr. Tainwala and share options exercisable for 843,208 shares.

£4%10,192,0348 HTainwala e £ 35E MIAR 0 I AT4T 052 8% 843,208 % AR 1 Y B AR 4
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2. Interests in the shares of associated corporations

2. WP HEEE A E Iz {3 B0 fE

M2013F12A31BEFEN

HRECEE B EEREA® ERENBNE DL
EEHE Name of Associated EEME Number of ordinary shares held Approximate
Name of Director Corporation Nature of Interest at December 31, 20132 shareholding (%)
Ramesh Dungarmal Samsonite South Beneficial owner and 4,552,020 (L) 12.83
Tainwala Asia Private Limited interest in a controlled
corporation
BREEARNZE
FEB R
Samsonite Middle Interest in a controlled 8 (L) 40.00
East FZCO corporation

REZFEERERS

Notes Hft&F

a

b

(L) represents long position.

(L) RREFR ©

This amount includes 1,807,020 shares held by Mr. Tainwala as the beneficial owner, 556,000 shares held by Tainwala Holdings Private Limited and
2,189,000 shares held by Periwinkle Fashions Private Limited, of which Mr. Tainwala holds 33.96% of the issued share capital of Tainwala Holdings
Private Limited while Mr. Tainwala’s wife holds 79.08% of the issued share capital of Periwinkle Fashions Private Limited and therefore, Mr. Tainwala is
deemed to be interested in the entire equity interest in Samsonite South Asia Private Limited held by Tainwala Holdings Private Limited and Periwinkle
Fashions Private Limited. 60% of the equity interest in Samsonite South Asia Private Limited is held by the Group.
ZHBEEREERER ATainwalat £158191,807,0208 8845 ~ Tainwala Holdings Private  Limited$$7%8 #9556,0008% 8% {3 & Periwinkle  Fashions
Private Limited$55 #92,189,0008 %17 » H A TainwalaZt £ E Tainwala Holdings Private Limited 33.96% B BT » MTainwalai £ME T
Bl Periwinkle Fashions Private Limited 79.08%#IE B 1TIRZA » HIt » TainwalaZt £ RAEHEB Tainwala Holdings Private Limited & Periwinkle
Fashions Private Limited i Samsonite South Asia Private Limited fT35 A&+ #) 28 # 4= ° Samsonite South Asia Private Limited 60% #I R #EFR A< 55 @
B5E -

Mr. Tainwala holds 100% of the equity interest in Periwinkle Holdings Limited and therefore Mr. Tainwala is deemed to be interested in the entire
40% equity interest in Samsonite Middle East FZCO held by Periwinkle Holdings Limited. The remaining equity interest (60%) in Samsonite Middle
East FZCO is held by the Group.

TainwalaZt 235 Periwinkle Holdings Limited 2 PR #E » B Itk » Tainwalast4E #18 {E A Periwinkle Holdings Limited 4 Samsonite Middle East FZCO
FiFA0% BAE R A 2 PSS © Samsonite Middle East FZCO8R T B AE(60% ) A K BIEFA ©

Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2013, none of the directors or R ESIRTEE S » R2013F 128318 » A&
chief executives of the Company have or are deemed to have interests or short ~ AFESZHHESTHRAEBERERERAR
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company and 2 B R EEMEEEE (3RFF KB EEG
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)  SEXVIBHESE) W7 - HER DR ERE
which were notifiable to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to  FHEERBEZF SR BEEAEXVIETR
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions 82 #PEHMEAN TR KX AN ERS A A
which they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), (BEREESRBEKRANEBHEIES
or recorded in the register required to be maintained by the Company under #HEFRBIEFRENEZRAAE) » REARL
Section 352 of Part XV of the SFO, or as otherwise notifiable to the Company AR QAT RIBEEFHF R B ERHIEXVELE

and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

IEBENBEMOERILE LIRSS
o7 BIE B 4T ME AR A T R R A R
RAR -

HEBABRARAF
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions in = Z IR R & R 4B IR 1 i) s &
the Shares and Underlying Shares g}
As at December 31, 2013, so far as the directors are aware, the following ~ R20135128310 » BEBRA » LTR
shareholders (other than the directors or chief executives of the Company) R (FTEEAQAEZHERITHAR) R
had 5% or more beneficial interests or short positions in the issued shares and ~ AR RS BTRDRABBERG HEBAETA
underlying shares of the Company which were recorded in the register required A2 BRIE R 5 R HIE R 55 XV EB 5336
to be maintained by the Company under Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO: IREBFENETMAS% A EHERERR
WA

1. Long and short position in the shares of the Company 1. REQARARGHFARKE

M2013F 12831 BEEN AR

b GR BAk
Number of Approximate
RRERE EEME ordinary shares held at shareholding
Name of Shareholder Nature of Interest December 31, 20132 (%)
JP Morgan Chase & Co. Custodian Corporation/Approved 172,564,072 (P) 12.26
lending agent
FAEAE EEEHREA
JP Morgan Chase & Co. Investment manager 7,426,500 (L) 0.52
REEEA
JP Morgan Chase & Co. Beneficial owner 943,748 (L) 0.06
BEEEEA
Wellington Management Company, LLP  Investment manager 123,271,115 (L) 8.76
REEEA
Morgan Stanley Interest in a controlled corporation 81,322,242 (L) 5.77
EEAR =35I REEHEENER
Morgan Stanley Interest in a controlled corporation 2,715,793 (S) 0.19
EEAR =35I REEHEEEER

Notes izt
@ (L) represents long position. (S) represents short position. (P) represents lending pool.

L) RREFR - () RRHEA - P) KRAHBHIRD

Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2013, so far as the directors are  BREIFEEI - R2013F 128318 &

aware, no other persons (except the directors or chief executives) or corporations ~ B FEABEMEMA L (BESZHESTH

had 5% or more interests or short positions in shares and underlying shares of A BRI SEBRARQ T H R AERE R 17

the Company which were recorded in the register required to be maintained ~ FHEA BT AN A TREZ SR PEKHIE

by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO. XV EBE 336 B F M B TMAIS% A LK
ERIAKE o
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Connected Transactions

Continuing Connected Transactions

Set out below is information in relation to the continuing connected transactions
entered into by the Company and required under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules to be disclosed in the Company’s annual report:

a) Transactions between Samsonite India and associates of
Mr. Ramesh Tainwala

Samsonite South Asia Private Limited (“Samsonite India”), a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, has entered into transactions with associates of Mr.
Ramesh Tainwala, a director of the Company, and certain members of his family
(the "Tainwala Group”) which relate to the operation of Samsonite India in the
ordinary and usual course of its business. Mr. Ramesh Tainwala and the Tainwala
Group are also substantial shareholders in Samsonite India.

Manufacturing agreement with Abhishri

On January 3, 2009, Samsonite India entered into a memorandum of
understanding with Abhishri Packaging Private Limited (“Abhishri”), a company
controlled by certain members of the Tainwala Group. Under this memorandum
of understanding, Abhishri purchases certain raw materials and components
from Samsonite India and manufactures hard-side luggage products on behalf of
Samsonite India. The price paid by Abhishri to Samsonite India for raw materials
and components is based on the current market price paid by Samsonite India,
and the price paid by Samsonite India for products manufactured by Abhishri is
determined based on Samsonite India’s current cost strategy, which also reflects
the cost of raw materials. The mark-up on costs charged by Abhishri for finished
products is eight percent on hard-side shells and ten percent on assembly of
luggage. The pricing under the memorandum of understanding is on normal
commercial terms as the mark-up charged by Abhishri is comparable to (or better
to the Company than) that charged by certain other third party manufacturers
who are not connected persons under agreements with Samsonite India.

Dealership agreement with Bagzone

On November 16, 2009, Samsonite India entered into a memorandum of
understanding with Bagzone Lifestyles Private Limited (“Bagzone”), a company
controlled by certain members of the Tainwala Group. Under this memorandum
of understanding, Bagzone was appointed as a preferred dealer of Samsonite
and American Tourister products in India, which as of December 31, 2013 are
sold in 95 exclusive Samsonite retail outlets operated by Bagzone. Samsonite
India directly rents five of these outlets and is reimbursed by Bagzone for the
associated rental costs. The other 90 outlets are directly rented by Bagzone
who bears the costs of such rentals. Bagzone pays all operating costs of these
95 retail outlets. Bagzone receives a margin of 45 percent on the retail price
for products it purchases from Samsonite India and sells through the exclusive
Samsonite outlets it operates. Under a side letter between Samsonite India

FEX S
TXEINEEARD AL RRE EHRAE
UARERARAFERERENTHEBE
REZMER

a) Samsonite India 82 Ramesh

Tainwala B £ BHBEA L ZENZ 5
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5] 3 % I8 Ed Samsonite India—/% &% A ¥ #E#%
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M2009% 11 B 168 > Samsonite India B2
Bagzone Lifestyles Private Limited
(I'Bagzone » — @ M Tainwala &£ B % T 5K
ERHINATR) T LRRESE o RIBLER
MRS Bagzone B Z X ABFFTER
American Tourister & 1£ B [E B /8 S 5 8
B R2013F12A31B ZEE &R
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and Bagzone dated January 1, 2011, the parties have agreed that the margin
available to Bagzone will be reviewed and amended as necessary from time to
time to ensure that the maximum profit margin available to Bagzone on retail
sales through exclusive outlets that it operates shall not exceed three percent of
Bagzone's net sales. These transactions are on normal commercial terms as the
profit margin available to Bagzone is within a range that is reasonably consistent
with that made by other third party dealers in India to whom Samsonite India
sells products.

In addition to its exclusive Samsonite outlets, Bagzone purchases products from
Samsonite India to sell in its own multi brand outlet stores. For these purchases
Bagzone receives a margin of 45 percent on the retail price. These purchases are
on normal commercial terms as the margin available to Bagzone is comparable
to that offered to other third party dealers.

Dealership agreement with Samtain

On October 25, 1999, Samsonite India entered into a dealership agreement with
Samtain Sales Limited (“Samtain”), a company controlled by certain members of
the Tainwala Group. Under this agreement, Samtain was appointed as a dealer
of Samsonite products in India. On April 1, 2006, Samsonite India and Samtain
entered into a memorandum of understanding under which Samsonite India
agreed to acquire retail premises to be operated as exclusive Samsonite outlets
by Samtain. As of December 31, 2013, Samtain did not operate any Samsonite
outlets. All Samsonite outlets that were previously operated by Samtain were
closed, and all outstanding amounts owed by Samtain to Samsonite India were
settled, during the first half of 2013. The transactions under the agreement
and the memorandum were on normal commercial terms as the profit margin
available to Samtain was within a range that was reasonably consistent with
that made by other third party dealers in India to whom Samsonite India sold
products.

Shop-in-shop supply agreement with Planet Retail

With effect from April 10, 2008, Samsonite India entered into a supply agreement
with Planet Retail Holding Private Limited (“Planet Retail”), a company in which
the family of Ramesh Tainwala acquired a 49 percent interest on August 1,
2010. Under this agreement, Samsonite India supplied Samsonite and American
Tourister products to Planet Retail for sale in shop-in-shop concessions at its
Debenhams department stores. The margin available to Planet Retail under the
agreement was 45 percent of the retail price. On January 10, 2013, the supply
agreement was terminated by mutual agreement, and all outstanding amounts
owed by Planet Retail to Samsonite India had been settled. The agreement
was on normal commercial terms as the margin available to Planet Retail was
comparable to that available to other third party dealers.

Samsonite International S.A.
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License and lease agreements with members of

the Tainwala Group

Samsonite India has entered into six lease or license agreements for company
accommodation and office premises with members of the Tainwala Group.
These agreements are on normal commercial terms and the rent, license fees
and administrative charges payable thereunder are within the reasonable range
of the then prevailing market rates at the date of execution.

Aggregate value of transactions between Samsonite India and

the Tainwala Group

The aggregate value of payments made by Samsonite India to the Tainwala
Group under all transactions described above for the year ended December
31, 2013 was approximately US$5.6 million. The annual caps for the maximum
aggregate amount payable by the Group under transactions with the Tainwala
Group for the years ending December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2014 have
been set pursuant to the requirement of the Listing Rules at US$20.2 million
and US$8.4 million, respectively.

The aggregate value of payments made by the Tainwala Group to Samsonite
India under all transactions described above for the year ended December 31,
2013 was approximately US$12.1 million. The annual caps for the maximum
aggregate amount payable to the Group under transactions with the Tainwala
Group for the years ending December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2014 have
been set pursuant to the requirement of the Listing Rules at US$32.8 million
and US$19.0 million, respectively.

b) Transactions between Samsonite Middle East and the rest of the Group

Samsonite Middle East FZCO (”Samsonite Middle East”), a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, is held 40 percent by Mr. Ramesh Tainwala and
members of the Tainwala Group. Because Mr. Ramesh Tainwala: (i) as a director
of the Company, is a connected person of the Company; and (ii) is entitled to
control the exercise of ten percent or more of the voting power in Samsonite
Middle East, Samsonite Middle East is also a connected person of the Company
under Rule 14A.11(5) of the Listing Rules.

With effect from June 16, 2011 (the “Listing Date”), Samsonite Middle East
entered into a framework agreement with the Company (the “Middle East
Framework Agreement”) covering all transactions with other subsidiaries of the
Company in the ordinary and usual course of the Group's business including the
purchase by Samsonite Middle East of finished products from other subsidiaries
of the Company, the receipt and payment by Samsonite Middle East of cross-
charges and fees in relation to the sharing of global marketing, promotion,
product development and personnel costs between subsidiaries of the Company
and the payment by Samsonite Middle East of royalties in respect of intellectual
property rights licensed to Samsonite Middle East.
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Samsonite Middle East and the Company have renewed the Middle East
Framework Agreement for a period of two years with effect from January
1, 2014 (the “Renewed Middle East Framework Agreement”). Save for the
duration of, and annual caps under, the Renewed Middle East Framework
Agreement, all other terms are the same as those in the Middle East Framework
Agreement.

The Renewed Middle East Framework Agreement stipulates that all transactions
between Samsonite Middle East and the rest of the subsidiaries of the Company
must be on normal commercial terms consistent with those in intra-company
transactions between other subsidiaries of the Company and in compliance
with all applicable provisions of the Listing Rules. The Middle East Framework
Agreement will expire on December 31, 2015 and is renewable for further
periods of two years, subject to compliance with the then applicable provisions
of the Listing Rules, unless it is terminated earlier by mutual agreement.

The aggregate value of payments made by Samsonite Middle East to other
subsidiaries of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2013 was
approximately US$4.9 million. The annual caps for the maximum aggregate
amount payable by Samsonite Middle East to the rest of the subsidiaries of the
Company for the years ending December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2014
have been set pursuant to the requirement of the Listing Rules at US$6.4 million
and US$7.0 million, respectively.

The aggregate value of payments made to Samsonite Middle East by the rest
of the subsidiaries of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2013 was
approximately US$1.6 million. The annual caps for the maximum aggregate
amount payable to Samsonite Middle East by the rest of the subsidiaries of the
Company for the years ending December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2014
have been set pursuant to the requirement of the Listing Rules at US$3.0 million
and US$1.7 million, respectively.

¢) Transactions between Samsonite India and the rest of the Group

Samsonite India, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, is held 40
percent by Mr. Ramesh Tainwala and members of the Tainwala Group. Because
Mr. Ramesh Tainwala: (i) as a director of the Company, is a connected person of
the Company; and (ii) is entitled to control the exercise of ten percent or more
of the voting power in Samsonite India, Samsonite India is also a connected
person of the Company under Rule 14A.11(5) of the Listing Rules.

With effect from the Listing Date, Samsonite India entered into a framework
agreement with the Company (the “India Framework Agreement”) covering
all transactions with other subsidiaries of the Group in the ordinary and usual
course of the Group’s business including the purchase by Samsonite India of raw
materials, components, spare parts, finished products and capital assets from
other subsidiaries of the Company, the sale of finished products by Samsonite
India to other subsidiaries of the Group, the receipt and payment by Samsonite
India of cross-charges and fees in relation to the sharing of global marketing,
promotion and product development costs between subsidiaries of the Group,
and the payment by Samsonite India of royalties in respect of intellectual
property rights licensed to Samsonite India.
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Samsonite India and the Company have renewed the India Framework
Agreement for a period of two years with effect from January 1, 2014 (the
“Renewed India Framework Agreement”). Save for the duration of, and annual
caps under, the Renewed India Framework Agreement, all other terms are the
same as those in the India Framework Agreement.

The Renewed India Framework Agreement stipulates that all transactions
between Samsonite India and the rest of the Group must be on normal
commercial terms consistent with those in intra-company transactions between
other subsidiaries of the Company and in compliance with all relevant provisions
of the Listing Rules. The India Framework Agreement will expire on December 31,
2015 and is renewable for further periods of two years, subject to compliance
with the then applicable provisions of the Listing Rules, unless it is terminated
earlier by mutual agreement.

The aggregate value of payments made by Samsonite India to the rest of
the Group from for the year ended December 31, 2013 was approximately
US$8.3 million. The annual caps for the maximum aggregate amount payable
by Samsonite India to the rest of the Group for the years ending December 31,
2013 and December 31, 2014 have been set pursuant to the requirement of
the Listing Rules at US$14.5 million and US$14.0 million, respectively.

The aggregate value of payments made to Samsonite India by the rest of the
Group for the year ended December 31, 2013 was approximately US$23.3
million. The annual caps for the maximum aggregate amount payable to
Samsonite India by the rest of the Group for the years ending December 31,
2013 and December 31, 2014 have been set pursuant to the requirement of
the Listing Rules at US$54.9 million and US$34.7 million, respectively.

The above continuing connected transactions have been reviewed by the
Independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company, who have confirmed
that these transactions were entered into:

(a) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(b) either on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable than terms
available to or from independent third parties; and

(0) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.
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In addition, the Auditor of the Company was engaged to provide a limited
assurance report on the Company’s continuing connected transactions in
accordance with International Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
" Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information”. The auditor has issued its unqualified Limited Assurance Report
containing its findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Company in pages 85 to 89 of the Annual Report
in accordance with Main Board Listing Rule 14A.38. A copy of the auditor’s
report has been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

Related Party Transactions

Details of the significant related party transactions undertaken by the Company
during the year in the ordinary course of business are set out in note 25 to
the consolidated financial statements. Other than those transactions disclosed
in the section headed “Continuing Connected Transactions” above, none of
these transactions constitutes a discloseable connected transaction as defined
under the Listing Rules.

Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors at the date of this annual report, the Company
has maintained the prescribed public float of more than 25% of the issued
share capital required under the Listing Rules during the year ended December
31, 2013 and up to the Latest Practicable Date.

Auditor

The financial statements were audited by KPMG LLP, who shall retire and being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment, and a resolution to this effect will
be proposed at the forthcoming AGM of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Timothy Charles Parker
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, March 18, 2014
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Independent Auditors’ Report
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To the Board of Directors and Shareholders
Samsonite International S.A.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Samsonite
International S.A. and subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the related consolidated income statement
and statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity, and cash flows for the years
then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management'’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based
on our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and International Standards on Auditing. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and
fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Samsonite International S.A. and subsidiaries as
of December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for
the years then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.

KPMe LLP

KPMG LLP
Providence, Rhode Island

March 18, 2014
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Consolidated Income Statement

makER

BZ12A318LLEE
Year ended December 31,

Fy=E
UFETZS  GREEEHI Expressed in thousands of US Dollars, except per share data Note 2013 2012
HE Net sales 6 2,037,812 1,771,726
SHERZA Cost of sales (949,475)  (820,721)
EF Gross profit 1,088,337 951,005
Dol abd Distribution expenses (540,578)  (466,471)
b Marketing expenses (129,221) (117,211)
—RETHEX General and administrative expenses (133,073) (121,132)
HAp sz Other expenses (4,173) (4,449)
SRS Operating profit 281,292 241,742
BAFEUR A Finance income 23 852 1,187
B8 E H Finance costs 23 (11,808) (18,229)
RETTEE Net finance costs (10,956) (17,042)
B ERER AT%F] Profit before income tax 24 270,336 224,700
FrERiRE s Income tax expense 22 (72,915) (58,073)
F REF Profit for the year 197,421 166,627
PRREEE ARG EF Profit attributable to the equity holders 176,087 148,439
452 PR RE S AL 3R Profit attributable to non-controlling interests 21,334 18,188
ERER Profit for the year 197,421 166,627
SREF Earnings per share
ERERRBBEF Basic and diluted earnings per share
(UWEBRETEF) (Expressed in US Dollars per share) 15 0.125 0.105

BEM BRI AR A SRR — 20D o
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The accompanying notes form part of the consolidated financial statements.




Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

meETHEKER
BE12A3181LFE
Wis Year ended December 31,
(UFZETLZ5)) (Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) Note 2013 2012
FEREF] Profit for the year 197,421 166,627
Hit2E &= (&i8) Other comprehensive income (loss):
KAEEFHHEEBRZIER ! Items that will never be reclassified to profit or loss:
B A RERNEEER 2N Recognition of previously unrecognized
IEFER IR deferred tax on defined benefit plans 22 - 34,899
ERERAGTEESTE Remeasurements on defined benefit plans,
net of tax 17 4,511 (16,390)
4,511 18,509
HEepad ke BEEn2EE Items that are or may be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss:
RERELHHP 2 ATFEES Changes in fair value of cash flow hedges,
net of tax (1,569) (4,314)
BINERINEER WS (B518) Foreign currency translation gains (losses)
for foreign operations (9,880) 8,134
(11,449) 3,820
Hitt 2wz (E58) Other comprehensive income (loss) (6,938) 22,329
2HEWEEEE Total comprehensive income 190,483 188,956
RERE ARG EZEBRRERE Total comprehensive income attributable
to the equity holders 173,213 169,982
RS (L R E R AR Total comprehensive income attributable
to non-controlling interests 17,270 18,974
FAZEN TR Total comprehensive income for the year 190,483 188,956

BEMIF AR AR G RS SRR — B

The accompanying notes form part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
mAPBRRE

128318
Wis December 31,
(UFZETLZ5)) (Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) Note 2013 2012

ERENEE Non-Current Assets
M BEKZE - FE Property, plant and equipment, net 8 155,347 135,824
e Goodwill 9(a) 214,356 214,356
HithEFEE B8 Other intangible assets, net 9(b) 662,707 671,522
FERERIEEE Deferred tax assets 22(d) 44,401 55,302
HibhEEREWFIE Other assets and receivables 10(a) 22,722 22,793
FREEEHARE Total non-current assets 1,099,533 1,099,797
REEE Current Assets
FE Inventories 11 298,377 277,516
FEWR BRFR R ELAth FELUN R IE - JFRE Trade and other receivables, net 12 246,372 222,159
AN REMERE Prepaid expenses and other assets 10(b) 65,262 62,293
ReRREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 13 225,347 151,399

MENEEARE Total current assets 835,358 713,367

EEBE Total assets 1,934,891 1,813,164
EnRkAafE Equity and Liabilities
e Equity:

&N Share capital 14 14,071 14,071

& Reserves 14 1,178,685 1,037,522
IRAEISE A (LS AEE Total equity attributable to equity holders 1,192,756 1,051,593
IR R Non-controlling interests 14 37,826 34,512
e AAER Total equity 1,230,582 1,086,105
FERBEE Non-Current Liabilities
BERRERK Loans and borrowings 16(a) 37 64
EERF Employee benefits 17 33,432 68,378
IR RS HA R Non-controlling interest put options 14(f) 52,848 44,950
FEEREEE Deferred tax liabilities 22(d) 111,370 113,809
HinB s Other liabilities 4,879 6,319
ERBABELE Total non-current liabilities 202,566 233,520
RENEE Current Liabilities
BERRER Loans and borrowings 16(b) 13,640 32,234
EERF Employee benefits 54,437 49,977
FEAS BRAR I EL At PR IR Trade and other payables 20 387,239 362,488
BNEARIIE & & Current tax liabilities 22 46,427 48,840

mENE SRR Total current liabilities 501,743 493,539

B EHEE Total liabilities 704,309 727,059

En ke EEE Total equity and liabilities 1,934,891 1,813,164

MENVEEFR Net current assets 333,615 219,828

BEEABERABEE Total assets less current liabilities 1,433,148 1,319,625
BEMIF B R AR S B R R — D ° The accompanying notes form part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Company-Alone Statement of Financial Position

AA BB EAR R TR
128318
Wis December 31,
(UFZETLZ5)) (Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) Note 2013 2012
ERENEE Non-Current Assets
REB A TNRE Investment in subsidiaries 26 866,682 866,682
HthE = Rk R B 2 Bl e TE Other assets and receivables due from subsidiaries 25,852 63,852
ERENVEELEE Total non-current assets 892,534 930,534
RENEE Current Assets
FEUS T S A B Y BRFA % EL At fE Wz 1E Trade and other receivables due from subsidiaries 16,278 5,385
AR EMEE Prepaid expenses and other assets 47 49
ReRkReEEY Cash and cash equivalents 427 765
mBEEARE Total current assets 16,752 6,199
EEHAE Total assets 909,286 936,733
HERERE Equity and Liabilities
s Equity:
B Share capital 14 14,071 14,071
i Reserves 14 866,070 903,642
R Total equity 880,141 917,713
REAE Current Liabilities
BERRERK Loans and borrowings (1,858) (3,096)
FERHIE A R W R R B Ath e 7018 Trade and other payables due to subsidiaries 26 30,324 21,803
R R H A EA TR Trade and other payables 679 313
mEBEREE Total current liabilities 29,145 19,020
B EH5E Total liabilities 29,145 19,020
ERkEEEH Total equity and liabilities 909,286 936,733
RBAEFE Net current liabilities (12,393) (12,821)
EEABERABEE Total assets less current liabilities 880,141 917,713
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

REEREBR

PE RO EE
(UFETZ2S  REEE P (Expressed in thousands of US Dollars, except number of shares) Note Number of shares
HE20125F12A3181LEE : Year ended December 31, 2012:
4850 201251818 Balance, January 1, 2012 1,407,137,004
F =R Profit for the year -
Hib2EE (B8) : Other comprehensive income (loss):
EREEFFTEINEEEE - MRS Actuarial losses on defined benefit plans, net of tax 17 -
BB AERERNEEEANEAELRE  Recognition of previously unrecognized deferred tax
on defined benefit plans 22 -
BE&nehz A FESE - MRH Changes in fair value of cash flow hedges, net of tax -
NI 5 Uz Foreign currency translation gains =
FRAZEKE (BFE) 2% Total comprehensive income (loss) for the year -
BEERANRS » BT AR Transactions with owners recorded directly in equity:
ROLHE AT EZE Change in fair value of put options 14(f) -
mREEE AL 2R £ 5K Cash distributions to equity holders 15 -
ENFERERRE Dividends paid to non-controlling interests -
HihR 5 Other transactions =
#eR > 20124128318 Balance, December 31, 2012 1,407,137,004
BE20135F12A318LLFEE : Year ended December 31, 2013:
#e% 0 2013F181H Balance, January 1, 2013 1,407,137,004
F R Profit for the year -
Hib2maE (E58) Other comprehensive income (loss):
EREEFFEIEHE - MR Remeasurements on defined benefit plans, net of tax 17 -
REeERnBfhz ATFESE » HIKRH Changes in fair value of cash flow hedges, net of tax -
HNESTE H U a Foreign currency translation gains -
FREENE (FB) 258 Total comprehensive income (loss) for the year -
BEERANRS » HiEsT AR Transactions with owners recorded directly in equity:
RONHIRE A ERE Change in fair value of put options 14(f) -
mRESE AEE 2B 2R Cash distributions to equity holders 15 -
AR 2 45 2 S Share-based compensation -
B ERERRE Dividends paid to non-controlling interests -
HihR 5 Other transactions -
#Ee% 0 20135128318 Balance, December 31, 2013 1,407,137,004

BEMIF B AR S R IR — DD
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&
Reserves

REEF] RiERFEA

(RETE18E) FEfRiER

o Retained “azE

FSUN;IZS BERE earnings Total equity FEIE RS

R Additional Translation Hithf# s (accumulated attributable to Non-controlling RSB
Share capital paid-in capital reserve Other reserves deficit) equity holders interest Total equity
14,071 962,192 (9,019) (88,780) 39,667 918,131 27,069 945,200
- - - - 148,439 148,439 18,188 166,627
- - - (16,390) - (16,390) - (16,390)
= = = 34,899 = 34,899 = 34,899
- - = (4,314) = (4,314) = (4,314)
= = 7,348 = = 7,348 786 8,134
= = 7,348 14,195 148,439 169,982 18,974 188,956
= = = = (6,520) (6,520) = (6,520)
= = = = (30,000) (30,000) = (30,000)
_ — = — - - (6,479) (6,479)
_ — - = = - (5,052) (5,052)
14,071 962,192 (1,671) (74,585) 151,586 1,051,593 34,512 1,086,105
14,071 962,192 (1,671) (74,585) 151,586 1,051,593 34,512 1,086,105
- - - - 176,087 176,087 21,334 197,421
- - - 4,608 - 4,608 (97) 4,511
- - - (1,576) - (1,576) 7 (1,569)
- - (5,906) - - (5,906) (3,974) (9,880)
- - (5,906) 3,032 176,087 173,213 17,270 190,483
- - - - (1,586) (1,586) - (1,586)
- - - - (37,500) (37,500) - (37,500)
- - - 7,036 - 7,036 - 7,036
- - - - - - (8,359) (8,359)
- - - - - - (5,597) (5,597)
14,071 962,192 (7,577) (64,517) 288,587 1,192,756 37,826 1,230,582
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mEEERER
HE128318ILFE
Wis Year ended December 31,
(UFZETLZ5)) (Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) Note 2013 2012
REFH2RENE ¢ Cash flows from operating activities:
FR@A Profit for the year 197,421 166,627
B TR DA R Rl B S S E B T 1S Adjustments to reconcile profit to net cash
BEFERHER generated from operating activities:
HERLEEERS » F5 Gain on sale and disposal of assets, net (143) (211)
e Depreciation 8 36,821 31,770
B EE#H Amortization of intangible assets 9 8,363 8,491
RERREE Provision for doubtful accounts 2,242 1,861
ROHHIE AL ERE Change in fair value of put options 6,312 8,908
ERER NS BAFT EINEEFEE Net change in defined benefit pension plan 17 (27,813) (17,260)
DU AT 2 F R S HERE Non-cash share-based compensation 17 7,036 —
FrfSBi X Income tax expense 22 72,915 58,073
303,154 258,259
REBERBESY Changes in operating assets and
(HRR U B 2 2) - liabilities (excluding the effects of acquisitions):
FEUR BR 3k R EL At FE UL TR IE Trade and other receivables (31,575) (32,747)
FE Inventories (24,663) (20,671)
HittRmsEE Other current assets (3,895) 4,727
FE BRI HL A P R 1E Trade and other payables 29,749 64,022
HthEERERE  F5E Other assets and liabilities, net (17,486) (13,510)
REFHFBRE Cash generated from operating activities 255,284 260,080
EFFIE Interest paid (1,791) (2,945)
[EERIIEEE Income tax paid (60,460) (54,143)
REFEBBSREIFHE Net cash generated from operating activities 193,033 202,992
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BZ12A318LLEE
Year ended December 31,

PEE
(UFZETLZ5)) (Expressed in thousands of US Dollars) Note 2013 2012
REFB2RENRE ! Cash flows from investing activities:
BEYE BRERRE Purchases of property, plant and equipment 8 (57,239) (37,941)
WEEZERS (HNBRUBRYIR £) Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acquired 7 — (141,953)
HAh TS FIE Other proceeds 3,306 713
RETEFARSFE Net cash used in investing activities (53,933) (179,181)
RMETB2RERE Cash flows from financing activities:
BHAE R R ERAERE (K Current loans and borrowings proceeds
THER (payments), net 16 (18,793) 21,034
mREREAELZREDIK Cash distributions to equity holders 15 (37,500) (30,000)
TERZITER Payment of debt issue costs — (1,069)
BT FERERRKRE Dividend payments to non-controlling interests 26 (8.359) (6,479)
MEEB MR RS Net cash used in financing activities (64,652) (16,514)
HERBEESEEYNIEINFEE Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 74,448 7,297
ReRkReEEY M A1H Cash and cash equivalents, at January 1 151,399 141,259
EREFEBHESRESEEYNTE Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and
cash equivalents (500) 2,843
ReRkReEEY - M12A31H Cash and cash equivalents, at December 31 13 225,347 151,399
BERTMTZERE R AR & ISRz — 30D © The accompanying notes form part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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1. Background

Samsonite International S.A. (the “Company”), together with its consolidated subsidiaries
(the "Group”), is principally engaged in the design, manufacture, sourcing and distribution
of luggage, business and computer bags, outdoor and casual bags, and travel accessories
throughout the world, primarily under the Samsonite®, American Tourister®, High Sierra®
and Hartmann® brand names and other owned and licensed brand names. The Group sells
its products through a variety of wholesale distribution channels, through its company
operated retail stores and through e-commerce. The principal luggage wholesale distribution
customers of the Group are department and specialty retail stores, mass merchants, catalog
showrooms and warehouse clubs. The Group sells its products in Asia, Europe, North
America and Latin America.

The Company’s ordinary shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. The Company was incorporated in Luxembourg on March 8, 2011 as a
public limited liability company (a société anonyme), whose registered office is 13-15
Avenue de la Liberté, L-1931, Luxembourg.

Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Group are set out in note 26.

2. Basis of Preparation

(a) Statement of Compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”), which collective term includes all International
Accounting Standards (“IAS”) and related interpretations, as issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB").

The IASB has issued a number of new and revised IFRSs. For the purpose of preparing
the consolidated financial statements, the Group has adopted all these new and revised
IFRSs for all periods presented, except for any new standards or interpretations that are not
yet mandatorily effective for the accounting period ended December 31, 2013. The revised
and new accounting standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective for the
accounting period ended December 31, 2013 are set out in note 3(u).

The consolidated financial statements also comply with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”).

The accounting policies below, where material, have been applied consistently to all
periods presented in the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of
Directors on March 18, 2014.
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2. Basis of Preparation continued

(b) Basis of Measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except

for the following material items in the consolidated statement of financial position as set out

in the accounting policies below:

e derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value.

e the defined benefit liability is recognized as the net total of the plan assets, plus
unrecognized past service cost and unrecognized actuarial losses, less unrecognized
actuarial gains and the present value of the defined benefit obligation.

(c) Functional and Presentation Currency
The financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Group operates (functional currency). The functional currencies of
the significant subsidiaries of the Group are the currencies of the primary economic
environment and key business processes of these subsidiaries and include, but are not
limited to, United States Dollars, Euros, Renminbi and Indian Rupee.

Unless otherwise stated, the consolidated financial statements are presented in the
United States Dollar (“USD"), which is the functional and presentation currency of the
Company.

(d) Use of Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the
use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgment in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of
making the judgments about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different
assumptions and conditions.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.
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2. Basis of Preparation continued
(d) Use of Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions continued
Information about critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements is
included in the following notes:
e Note 3(n) — Revenue recognition
e Note 7 — Business combinations
¢ Note 8 — Property, plant and equipment
¢ Note 9 — Goodwill and other intangible assets
e Note 11 — Inventories
¢ Note 12 — Allowances for trade and other receivables
e Note 14 — Non-controlling interests
e Note 17(a) — Share-based payments
¢ Note 17(b) — Obligations under defined benefit plans
¢ Note 21- Fair value of financial instruments
e Note 22 — Income taxes
Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that may have an effect
on the consolidated financial statements resulting in a material adjustment within the next
financial year is included in the following notes:
¢ Note 17(b) — Measurement of plan assets and defined benefit obligation
¢ Note 19 — Contingent liabilities
e Note 21 — Financial instruments
e Note 22 — Utilization of tax losses

(e) Changes in Accounting Policies

The IASB has issued a number of new and revised IFRSs. For the purpose of preparing the
consolidated financial information for the year ended December 31, 2013, a number of new
or revised IFRSs became effective for the current reporting period.

(i) IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

IFRS 10 introduces a single control model to determine whether an investee should be
consolidated. The adoption of this standard did not change the Group’s current conclusion
in respect of consolidated subsidiaries.

(ii) IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

Under IFRS 11, the legal structure of a joint arrangement, although still an important

consideration, is no longer the main factor in determining the type of joint arrangement and

therefore the subsequent accounting.

e The Group’s interest in a joint operation, which is an arrangement in which the parties
have rights to the assets and obligations for the liabilities, will be accounted for on the
basis of the Group’s interest in those assets and liabilities.

e The Group's interest in a joint venture, which is an arrangement in which the parties have
rights to the net assets, will be accounted for using the equity method.

There was no impact to the Group’s financial statements from the adoption of IFRS 11.
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2. Basis of Preparation continued

(e) Changes in Accounting Policies continued

(iii) IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

IFRS 12 integrates and makes consistent disclosure requirements for subsidiaries, joint
arrangements, associates and unconsolidated structured entities in a single IFRS. The Group
has included additional disclosures to meet the requirements of this standard (see note 26).

(iv) IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement (2011)

IFRS 13 provides a single source of guidance on how fair value is measured, and replaces the
fair value measurement guidance that is currently dispersed throughout IFRS. Subject to
limited exceptions, IFRS 13 is applied when fair value measurements or disclosures are
required or permitted by other IFRSs. It also replaces and expands the disclosure requirements
about fair value measurements in other IFRSs, including IFRS 7, Financial Instruments:
Disclosures.

In accordance with the transitional provisions of IFRS 13, the Group has applied the
new fair value measurement guidance prospectively, and has not provided any comparative
information for new disclosures. Notwithstanding the above, the change had no significant
impact on the measurements of the Group’s assets and liabilities.

(v) IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements — Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income (2011)
As a result of the amendments to IAS 1, the Group has modified the presentation of items
of other comprehensive income in its consolidated statement of comprehensive income, to
present separately items that could be reclassified to profit or loss in the future from those
that would never be. Comparative information has also been re-presented accordingly.
The adoption of the amendments to IAS 1 has no impact on the recognized assets,
liabilities and comprehensive income of the Group.

(vi) IAS 19 Employee Benefits (2011)
As a result of IAS 19 (2011), the Group has changed its accounting policy with respect to
the basis for determining the income or expense related to defined benefit pension plans.
Under IAS 19 (2011), the Group determines the net interest expense (income) for the period
on the net defined benefit liability (asset) by applying the discount rate used to measure the
defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the net defined benefit
liability (asset) at the beginning of the annual period, taking into account any changes in the
net defined benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of contributions and benefit
payments. Consequently, the net interest cost on the net defined benefit liability (asset) now
comprises:
e Interest cost on the defined benefit obligation;
e Interest income on plan assets; and
e Interest on the effect of asset ceiling.

Previously, the Group determined interest income on plan assets based on their long-
term rate of expected return.
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2. Basis of Preparation continued

(e) Changes in Accounting Policies continued

(vii) Segment Information

The amendment to IAS 34 clarifies that the Group needs to disclose the measures of total
assets and liabilities for a particular reportable segment only if the amounts are regularly
provided to the Group's chief operating decision maker, and there has been a material
change from the amount disclosed in the last annual financial statements for that reportable
segment. As a result of this amendment, the Group did not need to include additional
disclosure of segment assets or liabilities.

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently by the Group to all
periods presented, where material, in these consolidated financial statements. Certain
comparative amounts have been reclassified to conform to the presentation adopted in the
current year. None of the changes impacts the Group’s previously reported consolidated net
sales, gross profit, operating profit, income tax expense, profit for the year, earnings per
share, net cash generated from operating activities, investing activities or financing activities,
or the statement of financial position.

(a) Principles of Consolidation

(i) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity.

The financial information of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial
statements from the date on which control commences until the date on which control
ceases. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in
consolidation.

(ii) Non-controlling Interests

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement of financial position
within equity, separately from equity attributable to the equity holders of the Company.
Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group are presented in the consolidated
income statement and consolidated statement of comprehensive income as an allocation of
the total profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the period between non-
controlling interests and the equity holders of the Company.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the amounts of
controlling and non-controlling interests within consolidated equity to reflect the change in
relative interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognized.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as a disposal of the
entire interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognized in profit or
loss. Any interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
recognized at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
of a financial asset.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

(a) Principles of Consolidation continued

(iii) Business Combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method at the acquisition
date, which is the date on which control is obtained by the Group. In assessing control, the
Group takes into consideration substantive potential voting rights.

The Group measures goodwill at the acquisition date as the excess of the aggregate of
the fair value of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests
in the acquiree and the fair value of the Group's previously held equity interest in the
acquiree; over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets
and liabilities measured at the acquisition date. If the net fair value is greater than the
consideration transferred, then this excess is recognized immediately in profit or loss as a
gain on a bargain purchase.

The consideration transferred does not include amounts related to the settlement of
pre-existing relationships. Such amounts generally are recognized in profit or loss.

Transaction costs, other than those associated with the issue of debt or equity securities,
that the Group incurs in connection with a business combination are expensed as incurred.

Any contingent consideration payable is measured at fair value at the acquisition date.
If the contingent consideration is classified as equity, then it is not remeasured and settlement
is accounted for within equity. Otherwise, subsequent changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration are recognized in profit or loss.

When share-based payment awards (“replacement awards”) are required to be
exchanged for awards held by the acquiree’s employees (“acquiree’s awards”) and relate to
past services, then all or a portion of the amount of the acquirer’s replacement awards is
included in measuring consideration transferred in the business combination. This
determination is based on the market-based value of the replacement awards compared
with the market-based value of the acquiree’s awards and the extent to which the
replacement awards relate to past and/or future service.

(b) Foreign Currency Translation and Exchange Risk

(i) Foreign Currency Transactions

Foreign currency transactions are translated using foreign exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
at the reporting date are retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at that
date. Foreign currency differences arising on retranslation are recognized in profit or loss,
except for differences arising on the retranslation of qualifying cash flow hedges, which are
recognized in other comprehensive income. The foreign currency gain or loss on monetary
items is the difference between amortized cost in the functional currency at the beginning
of the period, adjusted for effective interest and payments during the period, and the
amortized cost in foreign currency translated at the exchange rate at the end of the reporting
period. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are
measured at fair value are retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at the
date that the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

(b) Foreign Currency Translation and Exchange Risk continued

(ii) Foreign Operations

The assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign subsidiaries are translated into USD at period
end exchange rates. Equity accounts denominated in foreign currencies are translated into
USD at historical exchange rates. Income and expense accounts are translated at average
monthly exchange rates. The net exchange gains or losses resulting from translating at
varied exchange rates are recorded as a component of other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity and attributed to non-controlling interests, as appropriate.

(c) Segment Reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from
which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate
to transactions with any of the Group’s other components. All operating segments’
operating results are reviewed regularly by the Group’s management to make decisions
about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance, and for which
discrete financial information is available.

The Group's segment reporting is based on geographical areas, representative of how
the Group’s business is managed and its operating results are evaluated. The Group's
operations are organized as follows; (i) “Asia”; (i) “Europe”; (iii) “North America”; (iv)
“Latin America”, and (v) “Corporate”, which are set out in note 6.

Segment results that are reported to management include items directly attributable to
a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items
comprise mainly corporate assets, head office expenses, income tax assets and liabilities,
and licensing activities from the license of brand names owned by the Group.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the period to acquire
property, plant and equipment.

(d) Property, Plant and Equipment

ltems of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable
to the acquisition of the asset. Assets under finance leases are stated at the present value of
the future minimum lease payments. Improvements which extend the life of an asset are
capitalized. Maintenance and repair costs are expensed as incurred.

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives,
they are accounted for as separate items (major components).

Gains and losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of property, plant
and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying
amount of property, plant and equipment, and are recognized in profit or loss on the date
of retirement or disposal.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued
(d) Property, Plant and Equipment continued
Depreciation and amortization are provided on the straight-line method over the
estimated useful life of the asset or the lease term, if applicable, as follows:
20 to 30 years
3 to 10 years
lesser of useful life or the lease term

Buildings
Machinery, equipment and other
Leasehold improvements
Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed annually and
adjusted if appropriate. Land owned by the Group with freehold interest is not depreciated.
The Group capitalizes the costs of purchased software and costs to configure, install
and test software and includes these costs within machinery, equipment and other in the
consolidated statement of financial position. Software assessment and evaluation, process
reengineering, data conversion, training, maintenance and ongoing software support costs
are expensed.

(e) Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

(i) Goodwill

Goodwill that arises upon the acquisition of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets. For
measurement of goodwill at initial recognition, see note 3(a)(iii). Subsequent to initial
recognition, goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill arising
on a business combination is allocated to each cash-generating unit (CGU), or groups of
cash-generating units, which are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination
and are tested annually for impairment (see note 9).

(ii) Intangible Assets (other than Goodwill)
Intangible assets consist of tradenames, customer relationships, patents and leasehold
rights. No recognized intangible assets have been generated internally.

Intangible assets which are considered to have an indefinite life, tradenames, are
measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses and are not amortized but are tested
for impairment at least annually or more frequently if events or circumstances indicate that
the asset may be impaired. Samsonite®, American Tourister®, High Sierra® and Hartmann®
are the significant tradenames of the Group. It is anticipated that the economic benefits
associated with these tradenames will continue for an indefinite period. The conclusion that
the tradenames are an indefinite lived asset is reviewed annually to determine whether
events and circumstances continue to support the indefinite useful life assessment for that
asset. If they do not, the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is
accounted for prospectively from the date of change and in accordance with the policy for
amortization of intangible assets with finite lives as set out below.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued
(e) Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets continued
(ii) Intangible Assets (other than Goodwill) continued

Intangible assets which have a finite life are amortized and measured at cost less
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization expense is
recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives from the
date that they are available for use, as this most closely reflects the expected pattern of
consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the assets. The estimated useful
lives are as follows:
Customer relationships 10 to 20 years
3 to 6 years
1 to 10 years

Leasehold rights
Patents

Intangible assets having a finite life are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be
recoverable. Estimated useful lives of intangible assets are reviewed annually and adjusted if
applicable.

(f) Impairment

(i) Financial Assets (Including Trade and Other Receivables)

A financial asset not carried at fair value through profit or loss is assessed at each reporting
date to determine whether there is objective evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is
impaired if objective evidence indicates that a loss event has occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset, and that the loss event had a negative effect on the estimated
future cash flows of that asset that can be estimated reliably. The allowance account for
receivables is used to record impairment losses unless the Group believes recovery is remote
and the impairment loss is applied directly against the financial asset.

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired can include default or delinquency
by a debtor, restructuring of an amount due to the Group on terms that the Group would
not consider otherwise, or indications that a debtor or issuer will enter bankruptcy.

The Group considers evidence of impairment for receivables at both a specific asset and
collective level. All individually significant receivables are assessed for specific impairment.
All individually significant receivables found not to be specifically impaired are then
collectively assessed for any impairment that has been incurred but not yet identified.

In assessing collective impairment, the Group uses historical trends, adjusted for
management’s judgment as to whether current economic and credit conditions are such
that the actual losses are likely to be greater or less than suggested by historical trends.
Impairment losses that have been recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting
date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss
is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

(f) Impairment continued

(ii) Non-financial Assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and
deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated. For those CGUs or group of CGUs that to which goodwill has been allocated
and intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives, the recoverable amount is estimated
each year at the same time.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair
value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using an appropriate discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the
purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped
together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use
that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the
“"CGU"). For the purposes of goodwill impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is allocated to the group of CGUs that is expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination. This allocation is subject to an operating segment before aggregation
ceiling test and reflects the lowest level at which that goodwill is monitored for internal
reporting purposes to the asset or CGU.

The Group's corporate assets do not generate separate cash inflows. If there is an
indication that a corporate asset may be impaired, then the recoverable amount is
determined for the CGU to which the corporate asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds
its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss.
Impairment losses recognized in respect of CGUs are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the group of units, and then to reduce the carrying
amounts of the other assets in the unit (group of units) on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss that has been recognized on goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods if estimates used to determine the recoverable amount change. For other assets,
impairment losses that have been recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting
date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss
is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation
or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

(g) Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost is calculated using
the weighted average method. The cost of inventory includes expenditures incurred in
acquiring the inventories, production costs and other costs incurred in bringing them to
their existing location and condition. In the case of manufactured inventories and work in
progress, cost includes an appropriate share of production overheads based on normal
operating capacity. Cost also may include transfers from other comprehensive income of
any gain or loss on qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency purchases of inventories.
Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is recognized as an
expense in the period in which the related revenue is recognized. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realizable value and all losses of inventories are recognized as
expenses in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognized as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognized as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

(h) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash held at banks, deposits held at call with banks, and
other short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition.

(i) Trade and Other Payables
Trade and other payables are initially recognized at fair value. Trade and other payables are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

(j) Interest-bearing Borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognized initially at fair value less attributable transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortized
cost with any difference between the amount initially recognized and redemption value
being recognized in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together with any
interest and fees payable, using the effective interest method.

(k) Financial Instruments

(i) Non-derivative Financial Assets and Liabilities

The Group initially recognizes receivables and deposits on the date that they are originated.
The Group derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows

from the asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows on the

financial asset in a transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership

of the financial asset are transferred. Any interest in transferred financial assets that is

created or retained by the Group is recognized as a separate asset or liability.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued
(k) Financial Instruments continued
(i) Non-derivative Financial Assets and Liabilities continued

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position when the Group has a legal right to offset the
amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

Receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, receivables are
measured at cost, less any impairment losses. Receivables are comprised of trade and other
receivables.

The Group initially recognizes debt instruments issued on the date that they are
originated. The Group derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are
discharged, cancelled or expire.

The Group has the following non-derivative financial liabilities: loans and borrowings
and trade and other payables. Both loans and borrowings and trade and other payables are
recognized initially at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent
to their initial recognition, loans and borrowings are accounted for at amortized cost using
the effective interest method.

(ii) Derivative Financial Instruments

The Group holds derivative financial instruments to hedge certain of its foreign currency risk
exposures. Embedded derivatives are separated from the host contract and accounted for
separately if the economic characteristics and risks of the host contract and the embedded
derivative are not closely related, a separate instrument with the same terms as the
embedded derivative would meet the definition of a derivative, and the combined instrument
is not measured at fair value through profit or loss. For derivatives designated in hedging
relationships, changes in the fair value are either offset through profit or loss against the
change in fair value of the hedged item attributable to the risk being hedged or recognized
in hedging reserves that are reported directly in equity (deficit) until the hedged item is
recognized in profit or loss and, at that time, the related hedging gain or loss is removed
from equity (deficit) and is used to offset the change in value of the hedged item.

Other than agreements with holders of non-controlling interests, there were no
derivatives embedded in host contracts during the periods presented. The Group has certain
put option agreements that are classified as financial liabilities in accordance with IAS 32,
Financial Instruments: Presentation, in the consolidated statement of financial position, as
the Group has a potential obligation to settle the option in cash in the future. The amount
recognized initially is the fair value of the redeemable non-controlling interests and
subsequently remeasured at each reporting date based on a price to earnings multiple
discounted to the reporting date. For agreements entered into prior to the adoption of IFRS
3, Business Combinations, on January 1, 2008, subsequent changes in liabilities are
recognized in profit or loss. For agreements entered into after January 1, 2008, subsequent
changes in liabilities are recognized through equity.

Derivatives are recognized initially at fair value and any attributable transaction costs
are recognized in profit or loss as incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives are
measured at fair value, and changes therein are accounted for as described below.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued
(k) Financial Instruments continued
(ii) Derivative Financial Instruments continued

The Group periodically enters into derivative contracts that it designates as a hedge of
a forecasted transaction or the variability of cash flows to be received or paid related to a
recognized asset or liability (cash flow hedge). For all hedging relationships, the Group
formally documents the hedging relationship and its risk management objective and strategy
for undertaking the hedge, the hedging instrument, the hedged item, the nature of the risk
being hedged, how the hedging instrument’s effectiveness in offsetting the hedged risk will
be assessed prospectively and retrospectively, and a description of the method of measuring
ineffectiveness. The Group also formally assesses, both at the hedge’s inception and on an
ongoing basis, whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly
effective in offsetting cash flows of hedged items by determining whether the actual results
of each hedge are within a range of 80% to 125%. For derivative instruments that are
designated and qualify as a cash flow hedge, the effective portion of the gain or loss on the
derivative is reported as a component of other comprehensive income and reclassified into
profit or loss in the same period or periods during which the hedged transaction affects
profit or loss. Gains and losses on the derivative representing hedge ineffectiveness are
excluded from the assessment of effectiveness and are recognized in current profit or loss.

The Group discontinues hedge accounting prospectively when it determines that the
derivative is no longer effective in offsetting cash flows of the hedged item, the derivative
expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, the derivative is de-designated as a hedging
instrument because it is unlikely that a forecasted transaction will occur, or management
determines that designation of the derivative as a hedging instrument is no longer
appropriate.

When a derivative financial instrument is not held for trading, and is not designated in
a qualified hedging relationship, all changes in fair value are recognized immediately
through profit or loss.

(iii) Share Capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
ordinary shares are recognized as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.

(I) Employee Benefits

(i) Defined Contribution Plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays
fixed contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to
pay further amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension plans
are recognized as an employee benefit expense in profit or loss in the periods during which
services are rendered by employees.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

(I) Employee Benefits continued

(ii) Defined Benefit Plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution
plan. The Group’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit pension plans is calculated
separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have
earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted
to determine its present value. Any unrecognized past service costs and the fair value of any
plan assets are deducted. The discount rate is based on a high grade bond yield curve under
which the benefits were projected and discounted at spot rates along the curve. The
discount rate was then determined as a single rate yielding the same present value. When
the calculation results in a benefit to the Group, the recognized asset is limited to the total
of any unrecognized past service costs and the present value of economic benefits available
in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the
plan. In order to calculate the present value of economic benefits, consideration is given to
any minimum funding requirements that apply to any plan in the Group. An economic
benefit is available to the Group if it is realizable during the life of the plan, or on settlement
of the plan liabilities.

The Group recognizes remeasurements related to all actuarial gains and losses arising
from defined benefit plans in other comprehensive income and those amounts cannot
subsequently be reclassified into profit or loss. Actuarial valuations are obtained annually at
the end of the fiscal year.

(iii) Other Long-Term Employee Benefits

The Group’s net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits other than pension
plans is the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service
in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value,
and the fair value of any related assets is deducted. The discount rate is based on a high
grade bond yield curve under which the benefits were projected and discounted at spot
rates along the curve. The discount rate was then determined as a single rate yielding the
same present value. Any actuarial gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise. Actuarial valuations are obtained annually at the end of the fiscal
year.

(iv) Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are employee benefits provided in exchange for the termination of an
employee’s employment as a result of either an entity’s decision to terminate an employee’s
employment before the normal retirement date or an employee’s decision to accept an offer
of benefits in exchange for the termination of employment.

(v) Short-Term Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are
expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognized for the amount expected
to be paid under short-term cash bonus plans if the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the
obligation can be estimated reliably.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

(I) Employee Benefits continued

(vi) Share-based Payments

The grant-date fair value of equity-settled share-based payment awards granted to
employees is recognized as an employee expense, with a corresponding increase in equity,
over the period that the employees unconditionally become entitled to the awards. The
amount recognized as an expense is adjusted to reflect the number of awards for which the
related service and non-market performance conditions are expected to be met, such that
the amount ultimately recognized as an expense is based on the number of awards that
meet the related service and non-market performance conditions at the vesting date. For
equity-settled share-based payment awards with market performance conditions or non-
vesting conditions, the grant-date fair value of the share-based payment is measured to
reflect such conditions and there is no true-up for differences between expected and actual
outcomes.

(m) Income Taxes

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax are
recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination,
items recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for
the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for
taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not recognized for the following temporary differences:
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination
and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss, and differences relating to
investments in subsidiaries to the extent that it is probable that they will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. In addition, deferred tax is not recognized for taxable temporary
differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred tax is measured at the tax
rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they reverse, based on
the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the
same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, if they intend to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized simultaneously.

A deferred tax asset is recognized for unused tax losses, tax credits and deductible
temporary differences, to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which they can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each
reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related
tax benefit will be realized.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

(n) Revenue Recognition

Revenues from wholesale product sales are recognized when (i) evidence of a sales
arrangement at a fixed or determinable price exists (usually in the form of a sales order), (ii)
collectability is reasonably assured, and (iii) title transfers to the customer. Provisions are
made for estimates of markdown allowances, warranties, returns and discounts at the time
product sales are recognized. Shipping terms are predominately FOB shipping point (title
transfers to the customer at the Group’s shipping location) except in certain Asian countries
where title transfers upon delivery to the customer. In all cases, sales are recognized upon
transfer of title to customers. Revenues from retail sales are recognized at the point of sale
to consumers. Revenue excludes collected sales taxes.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.
Provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is recognized in profit or
loss.

The Group licenses its brand names to certain third parties. Net sales in the accompanying
consolidated income statement include royalties earned on licensing agreements with third
parties, for which revenue is earned and recognized when the third party makes a sale of a
branded product of the Group.

(o) Cost of Sales, Distribution, Marketing and General and Administrative
Expenses
The Group includes the following types of costs in cost of sales: direct product purchase and
manufacturing costs, duties, freight in, freight out, receiving, inspection, internal transfer
costs, depreciation and procurement and manufacturing overhead. The impairment of
inventories and the reversals of such impairments are included in cost of sales during the
period in which they occur.
Distribution expenses are primarily comprised of rent, employee benefits, customer
freight, depreciation, amortization, warehousing costs and other selling expenses.
Marketing expenses consist of advertising and promotional activities. Costs for
producing media advertising are deferred until the related advertising first appears in print
or television media, at which time such costs are expensed. All other advertising costs are
expensed as incurred. Cooperative advertising costs associated with customer support
programs giving the Group an identifiable advertising benefit equal to at least the amount
of the advertising allowance are accrued and charged to marketing expenses when the
related revenues are recognized. From time to time, the Group offers various types of
incentive arrangements such as cash or payment discounts, rebates or free products. All
such incentive arrangements are accrued and reduce reported revenues when incurred.
General and administrative expenses consist of management salaries and benefits,
information technology costs, and other costs related to administrative functions.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

(p) Finance Income and Costs

Finance income comprises interest income on funds invested and gains on hedging
instruments that are recognized in profit or loss. Interest income is recognized as it accrues
in profit or loss, using the effective interest method.

Finance costs comprise interest expense on borrowings, unwinding of the discount on
provisions, changes in the fair value of put options associated with the Group’s majority-
owned subsidiaries, and losses on hedging instruments that are recognized in profit or loss.
Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a net basis.

Costs incurred in connection with the issuance of debt instruments are included in the
initial measurement of the related financial liabilities in the consolidated statement of
financial position. Such costs are amortized as finance costs using the effective interest
method over the term of the related debt obligation.

(q) Earnings Per Share

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (“EPS"”) data for its ordinary shares.
Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of
the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the
period, adjusted for shares held by the Group. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the
profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding, adjusted for shares held by the Group, for the effects of all
potentially dilutive ordinary shares, which comprise share options granted to employees, as
applicable.

(r) Leases

An arrangement comprising a transaction or a series of transactions, is or contains a lease if
the Group determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets
for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such a
determination is made based on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

Leases in which the Group assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
are classified as finance leases. Upon initial recognition, the leased asset is measured at an
amount equal to the lower of its fair value and the present value of the minimum lease
payments. Subsequent to initial recognition, the asset is accounted for in accordance with
the accounting policy applicable to that asset. Other leases are operating leases and the
leased assets are not recognized in the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group leases retail stores, distribution centers and office facilities. Initial terms of
the leases range from one to twenty years. Most leases provide for monthly fixed minimum
rentals or contingent rentals based upon sales in excess of stated amounts and normally
require the Group to pay real estate taxes, insurance, common area maintenance costs and
other occupancy costs. The Group recognizes rent expense for leases that include scheduled
and specified escalations of the minimum rent on a straight-line basis over the base term of
the lease. Any difference between the straight-line rent amount and the amount payable
under the lease is included in other liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial
position. Contingent rental payments are expensed as incurred.
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(r)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued
Leases continued
Minimum lease payments made under finance leases are apportioned between the

finance expense and the reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance expense is

allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of

interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

(s)

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions are recognized for other liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the Group
has a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an

outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate

can be made. Where the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the

amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,

whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more

future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of

economic benefits is remote.

(t)
(i)

Related Parties

A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to the Group if
that person:

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of the Group.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions applies:
the entity and the Group are members of the same group (which means that each
parent, the subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others);

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the other entity is a member);

both entities are joint ventures of the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (i); or

a person identified in (i) (1) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be

expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

(u) New Standards and Interpretations

Certain new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are not yet effective
for the year ended December 31, 2013, and have not been applied in preparing these
consolidated financial statements.

IFRS 9, Financial Instruments, is expected to impact the classification and measurement
of financial assets and financial liabilities. The effective date of this standard is not earlier
than January 1, 2017. The Group has not determined the extent of the impact on its
financial statements upon adoption of this standard.

The application in I1AS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation, was amended to address
certain inconsistencies relating to the offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities
criteria. The effective date of this standard is January 1, 2014. The adoption of this standard
did not have a significant impact on the Group.

4. Determination of Fair Values

A number of the Group’s accounting policies and disclosures require the determination of
fair value, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. Fair values have been
determined for measurement and/or disclosure purposes based on the following methods.
When applicable, further information about the assumptions made in determining fair
values is disclosed in the notes specific to that asset or liability.

(@) Trade and Other Receivables

The fair value of trade and other receivables is estimated as the present value of future cash
flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at the reporting date. This fair value is
determined for disclosure purposes and generally approximates carrying value.

(b) Derivatives
The fair value of forward exchange contracts is based on their listed market price. If a listed
market price is not available, then fair value is estimated by discounting the difference
between the contractual forward price and the current forward price for the residual
maturity of the contract using a risk-free interest rate (based on government bonds).
Call options are considered derivative financial assets and are recorded at fair value.
Fair value estimates reflect the credit risk of the Group and counterparty.
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4. Determination of Fair Values continued

(c) Non-derivative Financial Liabilities

Fair value, which is determined for disclosure purposes, is calculated based on the present
value of future principal and interest cash flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at
the reporting date.

Redeemable Non-controlling Interests
The Group has entered into agreements that include put and call option arrangements to
acquire non-controlling interests in certain majority-owned subsidiaries exercisable at fair
value at certain predetermined dates. Pursuant to these agreements, the Group has call
options to acquire the remaining shares owned by the non-controlling interest holders and
these non-controlling interest holders have put options to sell their ownership in these
subsidiaries to the Group. In addition, the Group has the right to buy-out these non-
controlling interests in the event of termination of the underlying agreements. The table of
contractual maturities (note 21) does not include amounts for the repurchase of non-
controlling interests as they do not include contractual maturities.

The put option agreements are classified as financial liabilities in accordance with IAS
32 in the consolidated statement of financial position as the Group has a potential obligation
to settle the option in cash in the future. The amount recognized initially is the fair value of
the redeemable non-controlling interests and subsequently remeasured at each reporting
date based on a price to earnings multiple discounted to the reporting date. For agreements
entered into prior to the adoption of IFRS 3 on January 1, 2008, subsequent changes in
liabilities are recognized in profit or loss. For agreements entered into after January 1, 2008,
subsequent changes in liabilities are recognized through equity.

(d) Intangible Assets

The fair value of tradenames is based on the relief-from-royalty method of valuation. The
fair value of leasehold interests is determined using the income approach. The fair value of
customer relationships is determined using a combination of the income approach and the
multi-period excess earnings method, whereby the subject asset is valued after deducting a
fair return on all other assets that are part of creating the related cash flows.

5. Financial Risk Management Overview
The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
e credit risk
e liquidity risk
e market risk

This note presents information about the Group’s exposure to each of the above risks,
the Group’s objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the
Group’s management of capital. Further quantitative disclosures are included throughout
the notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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5. Financial Risk Management Overview continued

(a) Risk Management Framework

The Company’s Board of Directors (the “Board”) has overall responsibility for the
establishment and oversight of the Group’s risk management framework. The Group’s risk
management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the Group,
to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk
management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market
conditions and the Group’s activities. The Group, through its training and management
standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment
in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

(b) Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a
financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the
Group’s receivables from customers. Maximum exposure is limited to the carrying amounts
of the financial assets presented in the consolidated financial statements.

Trade and Other Receivables

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of
each customer. However, management also considers the demographics of the Group’s
customer base, including the default risk of the industry and country in which customers
operate, as these factors may have an influence on credit risk. No single customer accounted
for more than 5% of the Group’s sales for the periods presented or accounts receivable as
of the reporting dates. Geographically there is no concentration of credit risk.

The Group has established a credit policy under which each new customer is analyzed
individually for creditworthiness before the Group’s standard payment and delivery terms
and conditions are offered.

In monitoring customer credit risk, customers are grouped according to their credit
characteristics, including aging profile, and existence of previous financial difficulties. Trade
and other receivables relate mainly to the Group’s wholesale customers. Customers that are
graded as “high risk” are placed on credit hold and monitored by the Group, and future
sales are made on an approval basis.

(c) Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations
associated with its financial liabilities.

The Group's primary sources of liquidity are its cash flows from operating activities,
invested cash, available lines of credit (note 16(b)) and, subject to shareholder approval, its
ability to issue additional shares. The Group believes that its existing cash and estimated
cash flows, along with current working capital, will be adequate to meet the operating and
capital requirements of the Group for at least the next twelve months.
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5. Financial Risk Management Overview continued
(d) Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest
rates and equity prices will affect the Group’s income or the value of its holdings of financial
instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk
exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return.

The Group periodically buys and sells financial derivatives, such as forward purchase
contracts for hedging purposes, in order to manage market risks.

(i) Currency Risk
The Group is exposed to currency risk on purchases and borrowings that are denominated
in a currency other than the respective functional currencies of the Group’s subsidiaries.
The Group periodically uses forward exchange contracts to hedge its exposure to
currency risk on product purchases denominated in a currency other than the respective
functional currency of the Group’s subsidiaries. The forward exchange contracts typically
have maturities of less than one year.
Interest on borrowings is typically denominated in the local currency of the borrowing.
Borrowings are generally denominated in currencies that match the cash flows generated by
the underlying operations of the borrowing entity.

(ii) Interest Rate Risk

The Group monitors its exposure to changes in interest rates on borrowings on variable rate
debt instruments. Although the Group does not currently have any interest rate hedging
instruments, it may, from time to time, enter into interest rate swap contracts to manage
interest rate risk.

(iii) Other Market Price Risk

Equity price risk arises from available for sale equity securities held by the Group’s defined
benefit pension plans to fund obligations that are used to measure periodic net pension
costs. Pension plan liabilities are presented net of pension plan assets in the Group's
consolidated statement of financial position. The Group’s investment strategy involves a de-
risking program utilizing liability hedging assets to offset changes in the Group’s defined
benefit pension plan obligations. The Group engages professional pension plan asset
managers to assist in this process.

(iv) Other Pension and Post-retirement Obligations

The estimated pension obligation (the actuarial present value of benefits attributed to
employee service and compensation levels prior to the measurement date without
considering future compensation levels) exceeds the fair value of the assets of the Group’s
pension plans, which is primarily the result of the performance of equity markets during
prior years. Future market conditions and interest rate fluctuations could significantly impact
future assets and liabilities of our pension plans and future minimum required funding
levels.
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5. Financial Risk Management Overview continued
(e) Capital Management
The primary objective of the Group’s capital management policies is to safeguard its ability
to continue as a going concern, to provide returns for shareholders, fund capital expenditures,
normal operating expenses and working capital needs, and the payment of obligations. The
primary source of cash is revenue from sales of the Group’s products. The Group anticipates
generating sufficient cash flow from operations in the majority of countries where it
operates and will have sufficient available cash and ability to draw on credit facilities for
funding to satisfy the working capital and financing needs.

The Group’s capital needs are primarily managed through cash and cash equivalents
(note 13), trade and other receivables (note 12), inventories (note 11), property plant and
equipment (note 8), trade and other payables (note 20) and loans and borrowings (note 16).

6. Segment Reporting

(a) Operating Segments

Management of the business and evaluation of operating results is organized primarily

along geographic lines dividing responsibility for the Group’s operations, besides the

Corporate segment, as follows:

e Asia — which includes operations in South Asia (India and Middle East), China, Singapore,
South Korea, Taiwan, Malaysia, Japan, Hong Kong, Thailand, Indonesia, Philippines and
Australia;

e Europe — which includes operations in European countries as well as South Africa;

e North America — which includes operations in the United States of America and Canada;

e Latin America — which includes operations in Chile, Mexico, Argentina, Brazil, Colombia,
Panama, Peru and Uruguay; and

e Corporate — which primarily includes certain licensing activities from brand names owned
by the Group and Corporate headquarters overhead.

Information regarding the results of each reportable segment is included below.
Performance is measured based on segment operating profit or loss, as included in the
internal management reports. Segment operating profit or loss is used to measure
performance as management believes that such information is the most relevant in
evaluating the results of the Group’s segments.
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6. Segment Reporting continued

(a) Operating Segments continued

MR2013F 12831 BREBEZBILEE

Segment information as of and for the year ended December 31, 2013 is as follows:

WAMERWT :
e =M
G| North oM HTEM b= 3 a5t

HUFETZ25) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars Asia America Europe  Latin America Corporate  Consolidated
INEBUK 2= External revenues 768,363 621,741 515,177 123,580 8,951 2,037,812
EERT Operating profit 82,685 49,027 62,580 13,562 73,438 281,292
RN FREE A Operating profit excluding

K& ERF] intercompany charges 135,233 94,277 71,692 15,172 (35,082) 281,292
e RN Depreciation and amortization 17,640 5,149 15,979 4,187 2,229 45,184
B Capital expenditures 14,307 8,332 27,024 4,281 3,295 57,239
FIE U A Interest income 264 3 254 3 328 852
FMERX Interest expense (1,016) - (119) (364) (1,430) (2,929)
FriSBiB X Income tax expense (19,889) (21,374) (11,080) (2,759) (17,813) (72,915)
BEEMZE Total assets 527,534 571,347 444,601 105,727 285,682 1,934,891
BEHEE Total liabilities 211,822 421,379 197,164 61,944 (188,001) 704,308

R2012F12A31BREBEZALEE

Segment information as of and for the year ended December 31, 2012 is as follows:

Mo EBERMT :
e =M
G| North oM HTENM % il
HUFET25) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars Asia America Europe  Latin America Corporate  Consolidated
IMEBUK 2 External revenues 684,154 499,924 465,383 112,556 9,709 1,771,726
BT Operating profit 87,946 38,458 43,099 10,968 61,271 241,742
MR D EIREA Operating profit excluding

=il intercompany charges 121,708 69,259 64,283 13,282 (26,790) 241,742
ER#E Depreciation and amortization 14,643 3,796 14,928 4,092 2,802 40,261
BEAREX Capital expenditures 14,317 4,533 15,173 2,953 965 37,941
FE U A Interest income 211 16 188 25 747 1,187
FMERIX Interest expense (1,809) = (139) (296) (1,683) (3,927)
FriE® (BA%) Income tax (expense)

197 benefit (20,136) (14,398) (9,889) 1,732 (15,382) (58,073)
BEEHZE Total assets 499,149 512,975 422,793 91,795 286,452 1,813,164
BEH5E Total liabilities 193,273 463,569 189,390 46,011 (165,184) 727,059
(b) HbigieHl (b) Geographical Information

TREIF AT ZENBELENBEVE
EX () AEBREIMBE P HRE K (i) 4
EBHNYE - BERRE  BREEUKRE
2 (BEENFRDEE) - FFHNHEHNVE
DERERNVEENVE - BEENFRBEE

iV ENEREENERNVE -

The following tables set out enterprise-wide information about the geographical location of
(i) the Group’s revenue from external customers and (i) the Group’s property, plant, and
equipment, intangible assets and goodwill (specified non-current assets). The geographical
location of customers is based on the selling location of the goods. The geographical
location of the specified non-current assets is based on the physical location of the asset.
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6. Segment Reporting continued

(b) Geographical Information continued

(i) Revenue from External Customers

The following table presents the revenues earned from customers in major geographical
locations where the Group has operations.

HZ12A310LLEE
Year ended December 31,

UFETZ27) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2013 2012
1)) I Asia:
FE] China 192,187 178,035
[F) South Korea 161,182 122,921
ENfE India 110,526 102,329
&E0 Hong Kong' 66,765 56,473
[=F:N Japan 64,172 66,013
B AR TR Australia 42,666 40,678
A HEEERE United Arab Emirates 30,501 27,714
il Singapore 23,056 21,328
e Thailand 22,949 19,396
ENE EF s Indonesia 20,195 17,756
=)= Taiwan 19,582 18,212
Hith Other 14,582 13,299
NEE Total Asia 768,363 684,154
b3S - North America:
ESE United States 589,618 469,773
JIIEPN Canada 32,123 30,151
EEMNES Total North America 621,741 499,924
BOMN Europe:
= Germany 74,333 64,502
JEE France 67,005 59,580
EERIBE Belgium 60,330 58,164
EAA Italy 54,079 52,383
HEEET Russia 44,679 35,931
ispsis Spain 40,286 39,075
] United Kingdom 38,705 30,754
Gl | Holland 25,140 23,470
It Switzerland 19,334 16,692
bt Sweden 16,549 16,488
.07 Norway 15,992 13,986
B2 ith R Austria 14,309 11,901
TEHH Turkey 13,422 11,684
Hith Other 31,014 30,773
BUMEET Total Europe 515,177 465,383
RIT M : Latin America:
=l Chile 62,577 54,998
Eyiiks) Mexico 35,475 34,240
atii) Brazil 9,762 9,628
Pl ARIE Argentina 6,704 9,823
Hith Other 9,062 3,867
T EMNER Total Latin America 123,580 112,556
TEREM (FREWEZ) Corporate and other (royalty revenue):
ERE Luxembourg 8,797 9,522
=H United States 154 187
tERAMES Total Corporate and other 8,951 9,709
Fab Total 2,037,812 1,771,726
B =E Note
T BiEEM ' Includes Macau
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6. Segment Reporting continued

(b) Geographical Information continued

(ii) Specified Non-current Assets

The following table presents the Group’s significant non-current assets by geographical
location. Unallocated specified non-current assets mainly comprise goodwill.

128318

December 31,
HUFETZ5) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2013 2012
=E United States 31,127 27,056
EHRE Luxembourg 588,952 588,828
ENE India 18,772 24,037
A China 16,096 16,544
M South Korea 10,790 10,503
B Hong Kong 9,205 9,457
Lt FIIBF Belgium 58,747 51,111
= Chile 15,099 12,834
7. ¥EBEH 7. Business Combinations

HZE2013F12A31BILFE  AEELE
SEREMEZREH o

HBE2012F12831BLEEE  A5F
TERMIEERESH o

(a) High Sierra
2012678318 ARBEETEZEWE
A @ B B EHigh Sierra Sport Company
(['High Sierral) B X2 EE - FEER
ER108.0BBE RS BETERKX
BRETHMREERERI » LAEEHgh
SerraFTEEEEBRNEBBERETEN
=N

High Sierra 2 —REER 2 HKBER
PONRETZ=RMNEEAT » HERMUEXR
EREABEELSRANEERE  BEFPING
BEHE  BERBENEDEEE - Fib
BITE 4 E K E 4% ° High Sierra U.S. Ski
and Snowboard Team N E 1T =5 HFE
& ° High Sierra mAEA 1978 FRLIL ©

AEERERBESERMN—EE LR
HmERRSEREUENERAES  £itE
NARBEETSEERRNTISIRE - WES
BIRAAEERERLZERAAN IR M
BREEMHBMVNERNWRE  FEE
High Sierra fR M RIREER Z22M « BUM K
T EMNEH™S o

B Uk B B H338 - High SierraEBi17.6 8
BEnWERI2EBEL AN T AEER
220125 1231 BILEENGFEHEE -

There were no business combinations completed by the Group during the year ended
December 31, 2013.

The Group completed two business combinations during the year ended December 31,
2012.

(a) High Sierra

On July 31, 2012, certain of the Group’s wholly-owned subsidiaries purchased substantially
all of the assets excluding cash, certain receivables, and certain other retained assets and
assumed all balance sheet liabilities and certain contractual liabilities of High Sierra Sport
Company (“High Sierra”) for a net cash consideration of US$108.0 million.

High Sierra was a U.S.-based manufacturer and distributor of casual bags and adventure
travel luggage. Its products are targeted at active lifestyle consumers including outdoor
enthusiasts, skiers and snowboarders, adventure travelers and students. It is the official
supplier of bags and luggage for the U.S. Ski and Snowboard Team. The High Sierra brand
was founded in 1978.

The acquisition has given the Group a strong brand and product offering that provides
a foothold in the North American casual bag market. It has also provided the Group with
opportunities to leverage its well-established global distribution network and retail presence
to significantly expand High Sierra’s brand in additional markets in Asia, Europe and Latin
America.

From the date of acquisition, High Sierra contributed US$17.6 million of revenue and
US$1.2 million of profit to the consolidated results of the Group for the year ended
December 31, 2012.
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7. Business Combinations continued
(a) High Sierra continued

The following summarizes the recognized amounts of assets acquired and liabilities
assumed at fair market value at the acquisition date.

UFET25) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars ﬂgfe

Y - BMERR Property, plant and equipment 195
B EE Intangible assets 9 43,000
FE Inventories 11,087
FEUREBR X Trade receivables 13,267
HiRe&ERE Other current assets 88
PE{FERFR Trade payables (3,123)
HiRsa s Other current liabilities (4,254)

AEBCHWBEERR7TABE
THEHE - HETEZE AR A B HHigh
Sierra &t E AN BIIR A 375 AT S0 1 =)
MzmrE - FHBECERBERSBEE N
AT LAHIBR o

BERR2012F FRPFEHE WE
BEERCRESEMERNSRELRER

%5_:10

(b) HL Operating Corp. kL Hartmann %

EAnEE S
R20126F8H28  AEB2EME L A
& i@ & Bt = B W B HL Operating Corp.
(MHartmann]) RPN ZIEFTRE
FHENEA340BBET °

Hartmann 2 — X M Hartmann® fa h&
BUER DT - BFE - FRERKEA
fE 44 #9 35 B 2 &) ° Hartmann B Joseph S.
Hartmann A 18775 £l - EXBEEZ mE
BELEREHABEERNER  HER
BESEEUARKEEEEMESR - ZmEE
RERZAREHEER BREETEZSE
B BEEF > HartmannZ2EERHE A A

AEERE BB S E RN —EE R
Y meE > EEETEEREAETSERR
MM TAREEREERERANE
HoEHREREEMSGVNES R
It Hartmann E KB EIER ZXE R
IR ©

B Uk BE B HI#E - Hartmann ERi8.0E &
EnWRBER0IBBELGN TFAREEE
2012F 12 A3 BILEENGEEE
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Goodwill in the amount of US$47.7 million was recognized as a result of the acquisition.
The goodwill is attributable mainly to the synergies expected to be achieved from integrating
High Sierra into the Group’s existing business. None of the goodwill recognized is expected
to be deductible for tax purposes.

No subsequent adjustments have been made to the amounts recognized for the assets
acquired and liabilities assumed that were disclosed in the 2012 Annual Report.

(b) HL Operating Corp. doing business as Hartmann

On August 2, 2012, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group completed the acquisition, by
way of merger, of all of the outstanding shares of the capital stock of HL Operating Corp.
("Hartmann") for a net cash consideration of US$34.0 million.

Hartmann is a U.S.-based manufacturer and distributor of luggage, business cases, tote
bags and leather accessories under the Hartmann® brand. Founded by Joseph S. Hartmann
in 1877, Hartmann established the brand as a mark of quality among American luxury
consumers, with its products appealing to business and leisure consumers alike.

The acquisition has given the Group a strong brand to expand its presence in the luxury
luggage and leather goods market as well as opportunities to leverage its well-established
global distribution network and retail presence to significantly expand the Hartmann brand
both in the U.S. and internationally.

From the date of acquisition, Hartmann contributed US$8.0 million of revenue and
US$0.1 million of profit to the consolidated results of the Group for the year ended
December 31, 2012.
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7. Business Combinations continved
(b) HL Operating Corp. doing business as Hartmann continued

The following summarizes the recognized amounts of assets acquired and liabilities
assumed at fair market value at the acquisition date.

UFET25) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars ﬂgfe

Y - BERRZE Property, plant and equipment 52
B EE Intangible assets 9 17,000
7B Inventories 4,987
FEURBRFR Trade receivables 3,249
HiRe&ERE Other current assets 2,414
FE{FERFR Trade payables (4,577)
FERIEA S Deferred tax liabilities (1,080)
HityREEE Other current liabilities (1,496)

AEEEHRKNESERIIZEE
ETNBERE - BELDIEBERBARE
Hartmann & ff E R B R A X B AMERH
RS R - TREBLEC R R BB
B BRI T LAER -

BERR2012F FHTFENC WE
BEERERESBREIANSAFELRER
)

() HEHEE
fHZSEWEEER2012F1A1884E K
EEGE 2012 F R EHEFHENH1,832.0
BEXET MONRFEHFEEMNNE171.38
BER tEETZESER  AEERER
W BE B HIE £ M A T EFAR G B E
WM 2012451 B 1 BEERER -

(d) WRESIEHERARA
AEBREBZ2013F128318 K2012%F
1ANBLEEEARIEENI I BEETR
CARBETNWESEAERMAE - BRI
AETEERFHEIBHEERSOOTE BN
N URBEREEER  DRBERAN
HAB X AR ©

Goodwill in the amount of US$13.5 million was recognized as a result of the acquisition.
The goodwill is attributable mainly to the synergies expected to be achieved from integrating
Hartmann into the Group’s existing business. None of the goodwill recognized is expected
to be deductible for tax purposes.

No subsequent adjustments have been made to the amounts recognized for the assets
acquired and liabilities assumed that were disclosed in the 2012 Annual Report.

(c) Pro forma results

If these acquisitions had occurred on January 1, 2012, the Group estimates that consolidated
net sales for 2012 would have been approximately US$1,832.0 million, and consolidated
profit for 2012 would have been approximately US$171.3 million. In determining these
amounts, the Group has assumed that the fair value adjustments that arose on the date of
acquisition would have been the same if the acquisition had occurred on January 1, 2012.

(d) Acquisition-related costs

The Group incurred approximately US$1.1 million and US$6.4 million in acquisition related
costs during the years ended December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively.
Such costs are primarily comprised of costs associated with due diligence and integration
activities, as well as professional and legal fees, and are recognized within other expenses
on the income statement.
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8. W% - BMERREFHE

8. Property, Plant and Equipment, Net

Hots - 8240 -
HEMERE
R
Machinery,
equipment,
leasehold
T #F improvements st
UFETZS Expressed in thousands of US Dollars Land Buildings and other Total
20135 2013
B Cost:
M2013F1H1H At January 1, 2013 10,900 48,680 319,342 378,922
BENE BERRE Purchases of property, plant and equipment 188 906 56,145 57,239
EBREBEORE Additions through business combinations - - - -
HE Disposals - (420) (14,952) (15,372)
EE HitnEE e Effect of movements in exchange rates/other 204 1,380 14,458 16,042
720135128311 At December 31, 2013 11,292 50,546 374,993 436,831
ZEERAE : Accumulated depreciation and impairment:
M2013F181H At January 1, 2013 1,255 20,132 221,711 243,098
FRINE Depreciation for the year 25 3,527 33,269 36,821
HE Disposals - (412) (14,319) (14,731)
ERH B E S Effect of movements in exchange rates/other 53 971 15,272 16,296
72013F12831H At December 31, 2013 1,333 24,218 255,933 281,484
BREE ¢ Carrying value:
2013F12831H At December 31, 2013 9,959 26,328 119,060 155,347
HEMERE
R EAh
Machinery,
equipment,
leasehold
Tits #F  improvements @x
UFETZ5) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars Land Buildings and other Total
20124 2012
B Cost:
M2012%F181H At January 1, 2012 8,275 49,690 320,165 378,130
BEWE BMERRE Purchases of property, plant and equipment 2,449 2,562 32,683 37,694
EREBSORE (KiFE7)  Additions through business combinations (note 7) = = 247 247
HE Disposals - (4,384) (38,248) (42,632)
EX T Hn B E Effect of movements in exchange rates/other 176 812 4,495 5,483
2012128318 At December 31, 2012 10,900 48,680 319,342 378,922
RETHERRE : Accumulated depreciation and impairment:
20121818 At January 1, 2012 1,208 20,863 228,084 250,155
FRITE Depreciation for the year 24 3,148 28,598 31,770
HE Disposals - (4,377) (37,585) (41,962)
ER HAhEE RS2 Effect of movements in exchange rates/other 23 498 2,614 3,135
M2012%12831H At December 31, 2012 1,255 20,132 221,711 243,098
ARMEE - Carrying value:
720125128318 At December 31, 2012 9,645 28,548 97,631 135,824
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8. Property, Plant and Equipment, Net continued

Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012
amounted to US$36.8 million and US$31.8 million, respectively. Of this amount, US$5.9
million and US$5.2 million was included in cost of sales during the years ended December
31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively. Remaining amounts were presented in
distribution and general and administrative expenses. The Group has authorized capital
expenditures of US$69.1 million in 2014, of which approximately US$14.2 million has been
committed as of December 31, 2013. All land owned by the Group is freehold.

No potential impairment indicators existed at December 31, 2013.

9. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets
(a) Goodwill
As of December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, the Group’s goodwill balance amounted
to US$214.4 million, of which none is deductible for income tax purposes.
The carrying amount of goodwill was as follows:

BENREEDT :
128310
December 31,

UFETZ27) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2013 2012
RS Cost:

M1A1H At January 1 1,184,143 1,122,999

BREBSORE (FIzE7) Additions through business combinations (note 7) - 61,144

M128318 At December 31 1,184,143 1,184,143
ZEHREEE : Accumulated impairment losses:

M ATBRMI2A31H At January 1 and at December 31 (969,787)  (969,787)
BREE : Carrying Amount: 214,356 214,356

The aggregate carrying amounts of goodwill allocated to each operating segment were

s as follows:

=M B BN BT M Ast
UFETZS Expressed in thousands of US Dollars Asia  North America Europe  Latin America  Consolidated
#2013%12H31H At December 31, 2013 153,212 61,144 - - 214,356
M2012512H831H At December 31, 2012 153,212 61,144 = = 214,356
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9. BERHMBIEE#
(a) A& &

1R 1B IASZE3655% & & Bt & (IAS%E36

) AEEFENESELEEMNTRE

SHERFAFEREEXNAREABETR
SEEE  ERMRSEFRZENRESE
E’J*ﬂﬁﬁd‘ﬁémuzﬁm °

MRERRTS  ARAREERDBE
BRERNREEN  mESBREREEN
EESB (HBRESEESENMAFIFER) o &
EWSBEARZENEENEL SIS
SELESNAR -

ARG EEENSHESEEBENES
TE ZEHEENEEEEMN T FHN

BIALEr - WEARRBESRETER - Bl
AEHNREREBNERABNEERED S

EEHNGEHEREES - TERRAAEAN
BEXRREEBHARBZ ML AIND
ERRABER CBERBIE) HREBLM

0 o
8% MRBAIBEEARERELRS
T o

o RIBBEEEEENEEEAEN D HR
SFE -

s RAREBEEI%NWEERIIERE (KA
RITER PR RE—F) HEf -
o BREHEET RS RRAHIEEFIHE
EEEEZE LENBRRIGETE
ZRARNBERTR - EEERR LBFTE
BRAEMSENAIFERZLETSERD
ENRAERRTKESME BEEESRE
FERIFTER AN EERE AL BHE - mE
ZRINERHZERESREVAUEHEKR
7
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9. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets continued
(a) Goodwill continued

In accordance with IAS 36, Impairment of Assets (IAS 36), the recoverable amounts of
the Group’s CGUs with goodwill were determined using the higher of fair value less cost to
sell or value in use, which is determined by discounting the estimated future cash flows
generated from the continuing use of the unit.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to the Group’s operating
segments, comprised of groups of CGUs, as these represent the lowest level within the
Group at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes. The allocation
is made to those CGUs that are expected to benefit from the business combination in which
the goodwill arose.

Separate calculations are prepared for each of the groups of CGUs that make up the
consolidated entity. These calculations use discounted cash flow projections based on
financial estimates reviewed by management covering a five year period. Cash flows beyond
the five year period are extrapolated using estimated growth rates appropriate for the
market in which the unit operates. The values assigned to the key assumptions represent
management’s assessment of future trends and are based on both external sources and
internal sources (historical data) and are summarized below.

e A pre-tax discount rate of 18% was used in discounting the projected cash flows.

e Segment cash flows were projected based on the historical operating results and the five
year forecasts.

e The terminal value is extrapolated using a constant long term growth rate of 3%, which
is consistent with the average growth rate for the industry.

e The sales prices were assumed to be a constant margin above cost.

Management has considered the above assumptions and valuation and has also taken
into account the business plans going forward. Management believes that any reasonably
foreseeable change in any of the above key assumptions would not cause the carrying
amount of goodwill to exceed the recoverable amount. Judgment is required to determine
key assumptions adopted in the cash flow projections and the changes to key assumptions
can significantly affect these cash flow projections.



9. BHERAMENEE

(b) HivEREE

(b) Other Intangible Assets

9. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets continued

Hit\E & E a4 Other intangible assets consisted of the following:
H it
EERE
EFBR B HARE Total other
Customer Hith Total subject [EES intangible
UFETZ25) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars relationships Other to amortization Tradenames assets
RS Cost:
720121818 At January 1, 2012 111,650 5,551 117,201 538,230 655,431
BREBREHARE Additions through business
(Bf=E7) combinations (note 7) 3,600 = 3,600 56,400 60,000
HiRE Other additions - 170 170 = 170
INEEEBE N E Effect of movement in foreign
currency exchange rate = = = 405 405
M2012F128318K At December 31, 2012 and
20131 H1H January 1, 2013 115,250 5,721 120,971 595,035 716,006
INEEZSBTE Effect of movement in foreign
currency exchange rate - - = (452) (452)
%220135%12A318 At December 31, 2013 115,250 5,721 120,971 594,583 715,554
Z5T#EeN ¢ Accumulated amortization:
20121818 At January 1, 2012 (31,524) (4,469) (35,993) - (35,993)
F R Amortization for the year (7,758) (733) (8,491) = (8,491)
A2012F128318 % At December 31, 2012 and
2013%F1A81H January 1, 2013 (39,282) (5,202) (44,484) - (44,484)
FNEHE Amortization for the year (7,968) (395) (8,363) - (8,363)
#2013FE12H31H At December 31, 2013 (47,250) (5,597) (52,847) - (52,847)
BREME : Carrying amounts:
#2013F12H318 At December 31, 2013 68,000 124 68,124 594,583 662,707
72012128318 At December 31, 2012 75,968 519 76,487 595,035 671,522

EEZMEWAREMENT ¢ The aggregate carrying amounts of each significant tradename were as follows:
American
Tourister®
FEE® American High Sierra® Hartmann® Hith Ra
HUFETZ25) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars ~ Samsonite® Tourister® High Sierra® Hartmann® Other  Consolidated
720121818 At January 1, 2012 462,459 69,969 - - 5,802 538,230
EREKAGHFE  Additions through business
(Bf=E7) combinations (note 7) - - 39,900 16,500 - 56,400
INE Foreign exchange - - - - 405 405
720125128318 At December 31, 2012 462,459 69,969 39,900 16,500 6,207 595,035
IME Foreign exchange - - - - (452) (452)
#2013%12H31H At December 31, 2013 462,459 69,969 39,900 16,500 5,755 594,583
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9. BERHMBIEE#
(b) HihMFEE &

B Z2013F12831HKX 20125128
BSVHLEERFEENBIEEA S AIR8.4
BEERLRSSHEER  RiGaWaRS
25 AD AL - HE2013F12A3181E
WT—EEFNRRBEEAGTTHS0E
BXT -80EBERT -80EABXRT 77
BEXT 60EBERRHEZHAEAR303
BEXT °

RIBIAS 53655 £ IR E(AIRE R AT RE
AW B BREENE 4R IE R H IR
AEEEREEFHTEEEREENTK

B M o # £20135F12831H &20125F12
A31H LB ERENRR - BMR2013F
128318 K%2012512 831 B ERRE
EiE e

HRAEENEEREEER = BAE
B HMEERAEESERFE - RIFIASE
365 AEEFANWAKRESERFAF
BEREERARFEAEETRSEEE @ &
BRGEGTRZEEMEENARREER
SREETE -

ZETEENEEEERMNEF RN
s WEARREBESRETE - #iRR
FHNWRSREDERAMETSEE NG
BREHE - TERIMAEANEERTE
2 H AR R B EFT I AN E IR & R ED
ER (GBEER) HIRE BT ©
° 16% MMRBIATAE IR EARBRFENR S

TE -

o RIBBAKEEBENRFIRATETS

ERE -
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9. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets continued
(b) Other Intangible Assets continued

Amortization expense for intangible assets for the years ended December 31, 2013 and
December 31, 2012 was US$8.4 million and US$8.5 million, respectively, and is presented
as a distribution expense in the consolidated income statement. Future amortization expense
as of December 31, 2013 for the next five years is estimated to be US$8.0 million, US$8.0
million, US$8.0 million, US$7.7 million, US$6.0 million and a total of US$30.3 million
thereafter.

In accordance with IAS 36, the Group is required to evaluate its intangible assets with
definite lives for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstance indicate that
their carrying amount might not be recoverable. As of December 31, 2013 and December
31, 2012 there were no potential impairment indicators and there were no accumulated
impairment losses at December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012.

The Group’s tradenames have been deemed to have indefinite lives due to their high
quality and perceived value. In accordance with IAS 36, the recoverable amounts of the
Group’s tradenames were determined using the higher of fair value less cost to sell or value
in use, which is determined by discounting the estimated future cash flows generated from
the continuing use of the asset.

The calculations use discounted cash flow projections based on financial estimates
reviewed by management covering a five year period. Cash flows beyond the five year
period are extrapolated using estimated growth rates appropriate for the market. The values
assigned to the key assumptions represent management's assessment of future trends and
are based on both external sources and internal sources (historical data) and are summarized
below.

e A pre-tax discount rate of 16% was used in discounting the projected cash flows.

e Cash flows were projected based on the historical operating results and the five year
forecasts.

e The terminal value is extrapolated using a constant long term growth rate of 3%, which
is consistent with the average growth rate for the industry.

e The sales prices were assumed to be a constant margin above cost.

Management has considered the above assumptions and valuation and has also taken
into account the business plans going forward. Management believes that any reasonably
foreseeable change in any of the above key assumptions would not cause the carrying
amount of its indefinite lived intangible assets to exceed their recoverable amounts.
Judgment is required to determine key assumptions adopted in the cash flow projections
and the changes to key assumptions can significantly affect these cash flow projections.



10. FAfFAX « b B ERFEWRIE

10. Prepaid Expenses, Other Assets and Receivables

(a) FERED (a) Non-current
HitE = R EWRIEERE Other assets and receivables consisted of the following:
128318
December 31,

UFZETZ7) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2013 2012
EE Deposits 15,738 17,909
Hith Other 6,984 4,884
HibEEREWFIBEEEE Total other assets and receivables 22,722 22,793

(b) HE
AN REMRBEERRN —FAKE
X o

(b) Current
Prepaid expenses and other current assets are expected to be recoverable or expensed
within one year.

1. B8 11. Inventories
FEEE: Inventories consisted of the following:
12H31R
December 31,
UFET25) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2013 2012
AT Raw materials 20,564 14,715
EBm Work in process 2,424 1,820
SR Finished goods 275,389 260,981
BIFE Total inventories 298,377 277,516
& 8BEE The amounts above include the following:
128318
December 31,
HUFETZ5) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2013 2012
RAFERESERATERNFE Inventories carried at fair value less costs to sell 71,398 69,850

HZE2013F12A318 K% 20125128
31HLFE  GEMBZ 2R FE (AF
BEREERAR) 2B A33EEETK10.0
BEXI - &Z2013F 12831 AK2012F
12831 BIEFE - RE& RN
EA5E11HEETR28EEET A%
B E LA SR LRGN EE L SBREM

During the years ended December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012 the write-down
of inventories to net realizable value (fair value less costs to sell) amounted to US$3.3 million
and US$10.0 million, respectively. During the years ended December 31, 2013 and December
31, 2012 the reversal of write-downs recognized in profit or loss amounted to US$1.1
million and US$2.8 million, respectively, where the Group was able to sell the previously
written down inventories at higher selling prices than previously estimated.
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12. FEWSARFR B H 1t FEW RN IE

FEW R R H A W FRIB M 2 51 2 MR R
2013 F12H318K 201212 B31HM R
IREEREDR144BBEERIR12IBESE

JC °

(a) BREASHT

M2013F12831HK 2012512 A318 >
BT\ FE Wt BR 3% R EL Ath FE UK 30 I8 9 FE LT BR R
(HIRRREREE) 2Rl A23B37TEEERR
2NSEHEER REZBAHNKRERD N
U

12. Trade and Other Receivables

Trade and other receivables are presented net of related allowances for doubtful accounts
of US$14.4 million and US$12.9 million as of December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012,
respectively.

(a) Aging Analysis

Included in trade and other receivables are trade receivables (net of allowance for doubtful
accounts) of US$233.7 million and US$211.5 million as of December 31, 2013 and
December 31, 2012, respectively, with the following aging analysis by invoice date:

12A31H
December 31,
UFETZ5] Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2013 2012
AHR Current 195,080 173,185
B Past Due 38,612 38,311
FEURBR R AB R Total Trade Receivables 233,692 211,496

FEHDREENEFNEEMRY
20135128318 » EURBRFRAYF 192 &
BARZAHET60AR °

(b) FEMERIREY IR E
BRERYIRARERERE AR ERTSE
BRIFAEERBREIFANKSER - it
BRT - BE R E R W ARFGET
#H o AEBU AR ZEERSHEMERR

Credit terms are granted based on the credit worthiness of individual customers. As of
December 31, 2013, trade receivables are on average due within 60 days from the date of
billing.

(b) Impairment of Trade Receivables

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are recorded using an allowance account
unless the Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the
impairment loss is written off against trade receivables directly. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

FRRBREZENT : The movement in the allowance for doubtful accounts during the year:
KUFETZ5] Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2013 2012
®1B1H At January 1 12,872 11,309
SRR ERE Impairment loss recognized 2,242 1,861
BB ERERE Impairment loss written back (761) (298)
MW12831H At December 31 14,353 12,872
13. HERBFEEEY 13. Cash and Cash Equivalents
128318
December 31,

UFETZ27) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2013 2012
RITHEER Bank balances 195,162 110,561
BHRE Short-term investments 30,185 40,838
HERBSEEYREE Total cash and cash equivalents 225,347 151,399

ERREEERTEAEBRERESHRER - B
2013% 128318 K20125F128318 » &
SEWESHT R SERRE o
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Short-term investments are comprised of overnight sweep accounts and time deposits. As
of December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012 the Group had no restrictions on the use of
any of its cash.



14. BAR GG 14. Share Capital and Reserves

(a) LiERR (a) Ordinary Shares

MA2013F12831HK 2012%F12 8318 » At December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, the Company had 99,872,899,995 shares

A EHEE99,872,899,995 A E(EAREEST  authorized but unissued and 1,407,137,004 ordinary shares with par value of US$0.01 per

IR 3 % 1,407,137,004 )R B IR EIfE0.01£ 7T share issued and outstanding.

WEBITREBITENMZER - The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to one vote per share at shareholder
ZRRSEABERAABHRRAE  meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares in issue rank equally and in full for all dividends

EREBRERT—F - IBERITEBIRIE  or other distributions declared, made or paid on the shares in respect of a record date.

BREZ M  I2HZELHABRRG AT

Bk ~ fEHSIRT B R ERE M DK ©

(b) E&FESG (b) Treasury Shares
AEBIEISHEEFRD © There are no treasury shares held by the Group.
() EATHER (c) Equity of the Company

FFEERERDRNADBRMBEMRREKR  Details of the equity components of Samsonite International S.A. Company-alone statement
2013512 A31H K20126F12H8318 & A of financial position as included in the consolidated financial statements as of December 31,

BEPBERRNERZR D WFBWT o 2013 and December 31, 2012 are set out below.
f#E
Reserves
REBF
(BEER)
Retained
FEIMAA R A earnings
B Additional Hebf#fE  (accumulated MR
KUFETZ5) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars Share capital  paid-in capital Other reserves deficit) Total Equity
720121818 At January 1, 2012 14,071 962,192 - (25,660) 950,603
BRI E AEHE2IR  Distributions to equity holders = = = (30,000) (30,000)
RIERFE ARLEE Loss attributable to equity holders - = = (2,890) (2,890)
M2012%12B318 K At December 31, 2012 and
2013F181H January 1, 2013 14,071 962,192 - (58,550) 917,713
BIREZEE AEHRZIR  Distributions to equity holders - - — (37,500) (37,500)
BiEEE AELEE Loss attributable to equity holders - - - (7,108) (7,108)
BiEEH Share-based compensation - - 7,036 = 7,036
#20135%12H31H At December 31, 2013 14,071 962,192 7,036 (103,158) 880,141
HEBEBRAERAREZ2013F124 The consolidated profit attributable to the equity holders of Samsonite International

31HK2012F 12831 HIEFENKREREE  S.A. for the years ended December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012 included a loss of
AEEGERFEEEAANEBEFRKZE  US$7.1 milion and US$2.9 million, respectively, which are dealt with in the financial
EW7 1 EBETR2IBEBETEE statements of the Group.

M2013F 128318 » AIESTREELD At December 31, 2013, distributable reserves amounted to approximately US$2.3
B23EERL MHFEEMBRAEMRATEE  bilion as shown in the statutory financial statements of Samsonite International S.A. and
SRR RRARBEAR AT FMALERM  calculated in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Incorporation.

AlIFtESE -
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14. BAERGEE &
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(f) FEimhtE
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15. SEREF

(a) E&
SREARFITIRIEAR D AZER R RES
SaFITEE o

HUFETZF R RERBFIZIELI

14. Share Capital and Reserves continued

(d) Foreign Currency Translation Reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve comprises all foreign currency differences arising
from the translation of the financial statements of foreign operations.

(e) Other Reserves

Other reserves comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value of cash flow hedging
instruments related to hedged transactions that have not yet occurred and the share option
reserve for share-based payments made by the Company.

(f) Non-controlling Interests

The Group currently operates in certain markets by means of majority-owned subsidiaries
that are operated in conjunction with a non-controlling partner in each country. Under these
arrangements, the Group contributes brands through trademark licensing agreements and
international marketing expertise and the partner contributes local market expertise. All
interests acquired were paid in full at the time of the acquisition and each of these
subsidiaries are operated on a self-financing basis. There are no current or future requirements
for the Group to contribute any further investment amount to any of these entities.

The agreements governing certain majority-owned subsidiaries include put and call
options whereby the Group may be required to acquire the respective non-controlling
interests at amounts intended to represent current fair value. As of December 31, 2013 and
December 31, 2012, the financial liabilities recognized related to these put options were
US$52.8 million and US$45.0 million, respectively.

The call options were deemed to have a fair value of nil at each reporting date as the
agreements call for redemption at fair value upon the option being exercised.

15. Earnings Per Share

(a) Basic

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit attributable to ordinary
equity shareholders of the Company.

FHOEBRTEBRN
IREESA AL
BREFBR (UEKETES])
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HZ12A31ALEE
Year ended December 31,
Expressed in thousands of US Dollars, except share and per share data 2013 2012
Issued ordinary shares at the beginning and end of the year 1,407,137,004  1,407,137,004
Profit attributable to the equity holders 176,087 148,439
Basic earnings per share (Expressed in US Dollars per share) 0.125 0.105
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15. Earnings Per Share continued

(b) Diluted

Dilutive earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.
For the year ended December 31, 2013, diluted earnings per share is the same as basic
earnings per share as all potentially dilutive instruments were anti-dilutive. There were no
outstanding potentially dilutive instruments during the year ended December 31, 2012.

(c) Dividends and Distributions

On March 18, 2013, the Board recommended that a cash distribution in the amount of
US$37.5 million, or US$0.02665 per share, be made to the Company’s shareholders of
record on June 20, 2013 from its ad hoc distributable reserve. The shareholders approved
this distribution on June 6, 2013 at the annual general meeting and the distribution was
paid on July 12, 2013.

On March 27, 2012, the Board recommended that a cash distribution in the amount of
US$30.0 million, or US$0.02132 per share, be made to the Company’s shareholders of
record on June 15, 2012 from its ad hoc distributable reserve. The shareholders approved
this distribution on June 7, 2012 at the annual general meeting and the distribution was
paid on July 6, 2012.

No other dividends or distributions were declared or paid during the years ended
December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012.

16. ERRIERK 16. Loans and Borrowings
(a) FEENGEF : (a) Non-current obligations:
128318
December 31,

UFETZ27) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2013 2012
R EHERIE Finance lease obligations 53 97
R BN ER 2 HA 5% Less current installments (16) (33)
FEENEIE R R AE TR Non-current loans and borrowings 37 64

R2007%F - REBERTILAAEES
A EATRMEIB0EBERELNLY -
AEBEETREIBAEETELERE
1R o REBEIRHEHT RS MR R FH
ZE S8 R2013F12H31H k20125
128318 RITERRESEFHRB LT
BEREHRI B AESIEEETRICITEES
=

In 2007, the Group entered into an arrangement with a bank to provide funding in the
amount of US$33.0 million to the Group’s Chilean subsidiary. The Group provided US$33.0
million to the bank to secure the debt. The Group has offset these amounts in the
accompanying consolidated statement of financial position. As of December 31, 2013 and
December 31, 2012 the balance both on deposit with the bank and due on the loan to the
Chilean subsidiary was US$8.3 million and US$16.1 million, respectively.
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16. ERRER =
(b) FENERS

16. Loans and Borrowings continued
(b) Current Obligations

AEBHRBEBMOT ¢ The Group had the following current obligations:
128318
December 31,

UFETZ25) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2013 2012
RREERE Revolving Credit Facility - 25,000
EMENEISHIENH B HA(H R Current installments of non-current obligations 16 33
HitiE REEE Other lines of credit 15,482 10,297
TENEREEE Total current obligations 15,498 35,330
IR RYE A AN Less deferred financing costs (1,858) (3,096)
ENERE TR &R Current loans and borrowings 13,640 32,234

AEEE THEB ARG S EfEi
BNZER=AERATLEERE - 258
EEEANB AT A EEBEEERMEE
Ed BEEX - RITER RESBEU
REERRUEE o hEEEEAID BEA
EHEE o 20138128318 &2012412
B318 EMBMETHREZRLED BB
155BEEBERRIOIEEET  RMEATE
A= AEEER2013F 128318 K 2012512
A3182 515381 2BEEBETRS1.9BEBET

AEEKHBERREERE ([BR
FE]) #3000 BET - pE A FE
EIN100.0EEET » HEHERAHE -
BREENDSFHRBE2012F782BWE
WA AR=F  UERAKEERRE
MAREBIER—F - BREETHERRE
AUTEEMNEN : ()a)mBRTREFRE
(BB TEENER  AABTERT
BEEFE) =R b)ERA K REEF=ERK (i)
BERAEENERLZEENEE - BRE
BREEAARBANESEREREF0.175%
NEHBEZMNAEE - BREEUETHRE
Bl R BUMM B E R AN E B M AR EERA
BEREETESEFNS BN RRIEREL R
BENBMBERE R (HPEE) RKE
EEEEMEK  BHEHEETVEEEKS
BE TGS - B  BEHERBENRE
B E G - M2013F 128310 » A&H
CESTE R - 201386128318 '
RAERETFETEEANREEEHRME
FS6EEXETHME  REREETTFHEH
HEXEA24 4B EXETT° R2012%F 128
31 HRREENERB0BBEETR
AiRETE TEREANKRERESARME A
We.0OEBETAME  REREETTHEH
MEFER269.0FBET
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Certain subsidiaries of the Group maintain credit lines with various third party lenders
in the regions in which they operate. These local credit lines provide working capital for the
day to day business operations of the subsidiaries, including overdraft, bank guarantee, and
trade finance and factoring facilities. The majority of these credit lines are uncommitted
facilities. The total aggregate amount outstanding under the local facilities was US$15.5
million and US$10.3 million at December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively.
The unused available lines of credit amounted to US$81.2 million and US$51.9 million as of
December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively.

The Group maintains a revolving credit facility (the “Revolving Facility”) in the amount
of US$300.0 million. The facility can be increased by an additional US$100.0 million, subject
to lender approval. The Revolving Facility has an initial term of three years from its effective
date of July 2, 2012, with a one year extension at the request of the Group and the option
of the lenders. The interest rate on borrowings under the Revolving Facility is the aggregate
of (i) (a) LIBOR (or EURIBOR in the case of borrowings made in Euro) or (b) the prime rate of
the lender and (ii) a margin to be determined based on the Group’s leverage ratio. The
Revolving Facility carries a commitment fee of 0.175% per annum on any unutilized
amounts, as well as an agency fee. The Revolving Facility is secured by certain assets in the
United States and Europe, as well as the Group’s intellectual property. The Revolving Facility
also contains financial covenants related to interest coverage and leverage ratios, and
operating covenants that, among other things, limit the Group’s ability to incur additional
debt, create liens on its assets, and participate in certain mergers, acquisitions, liquidations,
asset sales or investments. The Group was in compliance with the financial covenants as of
December 31, 2013. At December 31, 2013, US$294.4 million was available to be borrowed
on the Revolving Facility as a result of the utilization of US$5.6 million of the facility for
outstanding letters of credit extended to certain creditors. At December 31, 2012, US$269.0
million was available to be borrowed on the Revolving Facility as a result of US$25.0 million
of outstanding borrowings and the utilization of US$6.0 million of the facility for outstanding
letters of credit extended to certain creditors.
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17. Employee Benefits
Employee benefits expense, which consists of payroll and other benefits, amounted to
US$247.7 million and US$215.0 million for the years ended December 31, 2013 and
December 31, 2012, respectively. Of these amounts, US$22.5 million and US$20.4 million
was included in cost of sales during the years ended December 31, 2013 and December 31,
2012, respectively. Remaining amounts were presented in distribution and general and
administrative expenses.

Average employee headcount worldwide was approximately 7,580 and 6,860 for the
years ending December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively.

(a) Long-Term Incentive Schemes

On September 14, 2012, the Company’ shareholders adopted the Company’s Share Award

Scheme. The purpose of the Share Award Scheme is to attract skilled and experienced

personnel, to incentivize them to remain with the Group and to motivate them to strive for

the future development and expansion of the Group by providing them with the opportunity
to acquire equity interests in the Company. Awards under the Share Award Scheme may
take the form of either share options or restricted share units (“RSUs”), which may be
granted at the discretion of the Board to directors, employees or such other persons as the

Board may determine.

The exercise price of share options is determined at the time of grant by the Board in
its absolute discretion, but in any event shall not be less than the higher of:

a) the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on the date of grant;

b) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by
the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant;
and

) the nominal value of the shares.

As of February 28, 2014 (the “Latest Practicable Date”), the maximum aggregate
number of shares in respect of which awards may be granted pursuant to the Share Award
Scheme is 113,126,934 shares, representing approximately 8.0% of the issued share capital
of the Company. An individual participant may be granted awards pursuant to the Share
Award Scheme in respect of a maximum of 1% of the Company’s total issued shares in any
12-month period. Any grant of awards to an individual participant in excess of this limit is
subject to independent shareholders’ approval.

During 2013, the Company granted share options exercisable for ordinary shares to
certain directors, key management personnel, and other employees of the Group. Such
options are subject to pro rata vesting over a 4 year period, with 25% of the options vesting
on each anniversary of the grant date. The options have a 10 year term.

In accordance with the terms of the share options, holders of vested options are entitled
to buy newly issued ordinary shares of the Company at a purchase price per share equal to
the exercise price of the options.
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17. Employee Benefits continued
(a) Long-Term Incentive Schemes continued

Particulars and movements of share options during the year ended December 31, 2013
were as follows:

hiE

F7 R

BREHE Weighted-

Number of average

Options  exercise price

Er

HKS

1A A ERITE Outstanding at January 1 - -
FRRE Granted during the year 15,404,402 17.37
FRRU Forfeited during the year (59,224) 17.36
M12 8318 & RITE Outstanding at December 31 15,345,178 17.37

fERE R HBERER RN EEREH
AFEDERUA D 7 - SR EEER
ERFRBRENATLETE - ARAER
R ATAENE RS - MR EBRETEN
AP EHRBEERD ©

FRBETEEMBRE - BR2013
F12A31 BB BB RAEREITHE © 72013
F12A318 > MRITEBERENTEEN
F17.368 T E18.688 T MEFHELN
HRA 9.0 o

ETER2013F1 B8 A LR ZAS7E
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REHANAFEE 71387t
RELHBHRE 17.3678 7T
1T1EE 17.36787T
FEHAR B (HIFEF IR ED) 47.3%
BRETE (FEEMETIFEH)  6.25F
FEHARRE 1.0%
ERBRAE (UBFESHEE) 0.4%
A 0.0%
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The fair value of services received in return for share options granted is based on the
fair value of share options granted measured using the Black-Scholes valuation model. The
fair value calculated for share options is inherently subjective due to the assumptions made
and the limitations of the model utilized.

There were no share options exercised during the year and no share options were
exercisable at December 31, 2013. At December 31, 2013, the range of exercise prices for
outstanding share options was HK$17.36 to HK$18.68 with a weighted average contractual
life of 9.0 years.

The following inputs were used in the measurement of the fair value at grant date of
the share-based payment made on January 8, 2013.

Fair value at grant date HK$7.13
Share price at grant date HK$17.36
Exercise price HK$17.36
Expected volatility (weighted average volatility) 47.3%
Option life (expected weighted average life) 6.25 years
Expected dividends 1.0%
Risk-free interest rate (based on government bonds) 0.4%
Forfeiture rate 0.0%
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17. Employee Benefits continued
(a) Long-Term Incentive Schemes continued

The following inputs were used in the measurement of the fair value at grant date of
the share-based payment made on July 1, 2013.

Fair value at grant date HK$7.56
Share price at grant date HK$18.68
Exercise price HK$18.68
Expected volatility (weighted average volatility) 45.46%
Option life (expected weighted average life) 6.25 years
Expected dividends 1.1%
Risk-free interest rate (based on government bonds) 1.4%
Forfeiture rate 0.0%

Expected volatility is estimated taking into account historic average share price volatility
as well as historic average share price volatility of comparable companies given the limited
trading history of the Company’s shares.

The total fair value of share options granted during the year ended December 31, 2013
was US$14.3 million. Share-based compensation expense of US$7.0 million was included as
general and administrative expenses in the consolidated income statement for the year
ended December 31, 2013.

No RSUs had been issued under the Share Award Scheme as of December 31, 2013.

On January 7, 2014, the Group granted an additional 12,266,199 ordinary share
options to certain directors, key management personnel, and other employees. The exercise
price of the options granted is HK$23.30. Such options are subject to pro rata vesting over
a 4 year period, with 25% of the options vesting on each anniversary date of the grant and
have a 10 year term.
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17. Employee Benefits continued

(b) Pension Plans and Defined Benefit Schemes

(i) Plan Descriptions

Certain subsidiaries of the Group have pension plans and post-retirement health benefit
plans which provide retirement benefits for eligible employees, generally measured by
length of service, compensation and other factors. The Group follows the recognition and
disclosure provisions of IAS 19, Employee Benefits (IAS 19). Under IAS 19, remeasurements,
which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and
the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest) are recognized immediately in other
comprehensive income and not subsequently reclassified into profit or loss. The measurement
date for all pension and other employee benefit plans is the Group’s fiscal year end. Details
of the significant plans sponsored by the Group are presented below.

As a result of IAS 19 (2011), the Group has changed its accounting policy with respect
to the basis for determining the income or expense related to defined benefit. Under IAS 19
(2011), the Group determines the net interest expense (income) for the period on the net
defined benefit liability (asset) by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined
benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the net defined benefit liability
(asset) at the beginning of the annual period, taking into account any changes in the net
defined benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of contributions and benefit
payments. Consequently, the net interest cost on the net defined benefit liability (asset) now
comprises:

e Interest cost on the defined benefit obligation;
e Interest income on plan assets; and
e Interest on the effect of asset ceiling.

Previously, the Group determined interest income on plan assets based on their long-
term rate of expected return.

A U.S. subsidiary of the Group sponsors a defined benefit retirement plan, the
Samsonite Employee Retirement Income Plan, that covers certain employee groups.
Retirement benefits are based on a final average pay formula. The Group also maintains a
supplemental retirement plan for certain management employees. These plans were closed
to new entrants effective January 1, 2010. Effective December 31, 2010, both plans were
frozen to future accruals.
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17. Employee Benefits continued
(b) Pension Plans and Defined Benefit Schemes continued
(i) Plan Descriptions continued

A U.S. subsidiary of the Group also provides health care and life insurance benefits to
certain retired employees who meet certain age and years of service eligibility requirements.
The plan was closed to new entrants with regards to life insurance benefits effective January
1, 2009 and closed to new entrants with regards to medical benefits effective December 31,
20009. Eligible retirees are required to contribute to the costs of post-retirement benefits. The
Group's other post-retirement benefits are not vested and the Group has the right to modify
any benefit provision, including contribution requirements, with respect to any current or
former employee, dependent or beneficiary. As of December 31, 2013 and December 31,
2012, the percentage of health insurance cost that the retiree must contribute was 100%.

A Belgium subsidiary of the Group sponsors a pre-pension defined benefit retirement
plan to certain employees who meet certain age and years of service eligibility requirements.
Benefits are calculated based on a final pay formula and are contributed until the employee
reaches the legal retirement age.

The U.S. plans are administered by trustees, which are independent of the Group, with
their assets held separately from those of the Group. These plans are funded by contributions
from the Group in accordance with an independent actuary’s recommendation based on
annual actuarial valuations. The latest independent actuarial valuations of the plans were as
of December 31, 2013 and were prepared by independent qualified actuaries, who are
members of the Society of Actuaries of the United States of America, using the projected
unit credit method. The actuarial valuations indicate that the Group’s obligations under
these defined benefit retirement plans are US$213.4 million and US$243.5 million as of
December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively, which are 93.3% and 77.5%
funded by the plan assets held by the trustees at December 31, 2013 and December 31,
2012, respectively.

(ii) Amounts recognized in the consolidated statements of financial position

12A31H
December 31,

KUFETZ25] Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2013 2012
RBERIERERE Present value of unfunded obligations (17,110) (16,325)
B ERERIENRE Present value of partly funded obligations (211,027)  (240,860)
STEIEENATE Fair value of plan assets 199,102 188,807
BB EFHE Net pension liability (29,035) (68,378)
TEIEEMELENCERAR Experience adjustments arising on plan liabilities (1,084) 7,354

BASEEFEASAGEPHBARRRIE
BREAF - ARAEERE 2 E WP
RIARERR  MAEEYEREIEE
1S o

The net pension liability is recorded in employee benefits in the consolidated statement of
financial position. The Group does not have net unrecognized actuarial losses as the Group
recognizes all actuarial gains and losses in other comprehensive income.
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17. Employee Benefits continued

(b) BARETEIRTEEEFE & (b) Pension Plans and Defined Benefit Schemes continued
(i) REFEMBRRARPEEROAIE & (i) Amounts recognized in the consolidated statements of financial position continued
LM EEERR—FRBEE - R A portion of the above liability is expected to be settled after more than one year.

o ARARRMERERF B EMRMNRTE  However, it is not practicable to segregate the amount from the amounts payable in the
DURBEREETRIAREEME » FHE  next twelve months, as future contributions will also relate to future services rendered,
TEEBZEREEARR T —EAMEMF  future changes in actuarial assumptions and market conditions. The Group estimates that
BHHREE - NEBFEFR2014FHEIK  the benefit payments for the pension and post-retirement benefits will be approximately
SRERERBIGRENR180EEETK  US$18.0 million during 2014 and between US$16.7 million and US$17.5 million each year
#2015F 22018F » EFNF16.7HESX  from 2015 through 2018.

TE175ABET °

BRARSEEFHOTHAT The net pension liability is shown below:
2013%£12A318
December 31, 2013
EERKE PEFIBFB ¢k
EEE*E L &7l
&=F US Post- Belgium
US Pension retirement retirement @zt
KUFETZ5] Expressed in thousands of US Dollars benefits benefits benefits Total
ERERARENRE Present value of the defined benefit obligation (213,419) (1,938) (12,780)  (228,137)
EEEATE Fair value of plan assets 199,102 - - 199,102
EEE Net liability (14,317) (1,938) (12,780) (29,035)
2012%12A31H
December 31, 2012
XEIRAE LEFBF3R AR
EERARE &F &/
B/ US Post- Belgium
US Pension retirement retirement 5t
KUFETZ5] Expressed in thousands of US Dollars benefits benefits benefits Total
ERERAENERE Present value of the defined benefit obligation (243,515) (2,511) (11,159)  (257,185)
FTEIEEAYE Fair value of plan assets 188,807 - - 188,807
EEE Net liability (54,708) (2,511) (11,159) (68,378)

(i) ERBEFRERELD

(iii) Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligations

HZE2013F12A318LFRE
Year ended December 31, 2013

EERIKTE FEFIBRE R

EEBRhE =# =
=7 US Post- Belgium
US Pension retirement retirement @t
KUFETZ5) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars benefits benefits benefits Total
BRREEE Change in benefit obligation:
M1 A1 B EAIEE Benefit obligation at January 1 243,515 2,511 11,159 257,185
AR5 A A Service cost - - 554 554
IS %:N Interest cost 8,174 81 328 8,583
FTEIZEE MR Plan participants’ contributions - 376 - 376
ERe Remeasurements (19,666) (737) 703 (19,700)
21@# Benefits paid (18,604) (293) (465) (19,362)
INEFHE Foreign exchange adjustments - - 501 501
12831 B R FIEE Benefit obligation at December 31 213,419 1,938 12,780 228,137
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(b) BAEEIREREBERGE 2
(i) EREARERELDS &

17. Employee Benefits continued

(b) Pension Plans and Defined Benefit Schemes continued

(iii) Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligations continued

HZE2012F12A8318ILFE
Year ended December 31, 2012

EEEARE LEF B3R AR
ZEIERKRE &F EFI
=R US Post- Belgium
US Pension retirement retirement st
UFETZ27) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars benefits benefits benefits Total
BAIFIESZE) : Change in benefit obligation:
A1 B 1 BEFEE Benefit obligation at January 1 231,157 2,510 8,786 242,453
R A% B A Service cost - - 437 437
FE KA Interest cost 9,838 102 403 10,343
FTEIZEEHE Plan participants’ contributions = 274 = 274
RHEER Actuarial loss 32,102 292 1,890 34,284
[EEbEEE! Benefits paid (29,582) (667) (567) (30,816)
INEFHE Foreign exchange adjustments - - 210 210
M12 831 BBRIEE Benefit obligation at December 31 243,515 2,511 11,159 257,185
(iv) =TEIEEZE) (iv) Movement in Plan Assets
#HE2013F 128318 LEE
Year ended December 31, 2013
EERKE EEFIBS IR 4K
ESEipEYY S =F 1EF
=F US Post- Belgium
US Pension retirement retirement st
UFETZ5] Expressed in thousands of US Dollars benefits benefits benefits Total
FTEIEESE Change in plan assets:
B1BA1EMNETEIEENAFE  Fair value of plan assets at January 1 188,807 - - 188,807
FE U A Interest Income 7,174 - - 7,174
E e Remeasurements (10,598) - - (10,598)
EEHX Employer contributions 33,323 (82) 465 33,706
FTEIZEEE Plan participants’ contributions - 375 - 375
[EEOEER! Benefits paid (18,604) (293) (465) (19,362)
THFAX Administrative expenses (1,000) - - (1,000)
R12A31 BT BIEEMAFE Fair value of plan assets at December 31 199,102 - - 199,102
BZ2012581283181LEE
Year ended December 31, 2012
XERARE LERIBFE AR
ZERARE & &/
&F US Post- Belgium
US Pension retirement retirement st
UFETZ5] Expressed in thousands of US Dollars benefits benefits benefits Total
STEIEESE Change in plan assets:
M1B1BERETEEEMNAFE  Fair value of plan assets at January 1 182,728 = = 182,728
RIS ENTEREIR Expected return on plan assets 9,743 - - 9,743
FSFEIEENRERS Actuarial gain on plan assets 7,384 - = 7,384
EEMHR Employer contributions 18,534 393 567 19,494
sTEIZEE M Plan participants’ contributions - 274 - 274
[EEOEER! Benefits paid (29,582) (667) (567) (30,816)
R12A31 BWETEIEEMAFE  Fair value of plan assets at December 31 188,807 — = 188,807
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17. Employee Benefits continued

(b) BARETEIRTEEEFE & (b) Pension Plans and Defined Benefit Schemes continued
(v) REMEZEREPEZNENFE (v) Remeasurements recognized in other comprehensive income
HBE2013F12A31HILEEE

Year ended December 31, 2013
EER KR EEFIBFR K

EEEBKE =F =F
&7 US Post- Belgium
US Pension retirement retirement st
UFETZ5) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars benefits benefits benefits Total
M1A1ENREF 2 Cumulative amount at January 1 116,297 (2,836) 1,770 115,231
AOBEHREEE N E Effect of changes in
demographic assumptions 1,878 (6) 130 2,002
B R BB 2 Effect of changes in financial assumptions (20,134) (156) 246 (20,044)
BEARENTE Effect of experience adjustments (1.411) (575) 327 (1,659)
EEE (E3R) (Return) on plan assets
(FEFEREWLA) (excluding interest income) 10,298 - - 10,298
M12B31BMNRE &5 Cumulative amount at December 31 106,928 (3,573) 2,473 105,828
BZE2012512A31BLLFE
Year ended December 31, 2012
ZEIRARE LEFBFR AR
ZEIRKE &F BEHI
B/ US Post- Belgium
US Pension retirement retirement “st
LUFETZ7) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars benefits benefits benefits Total
BM1A1ENEFT 25 Cumulative amount at January 1 91,579 (3,129) (48) 88,402
FIEEEE Net actuarial loss 24,718 293 1,818 26,829
M12B31BMEtE&5 Cumulative amount at December 31 116,297 (2,836) 1,770 115,231
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(b) BAEEIREREBERGE 2
(vi) FEWER PR EER

17. Employee Benefits continued

(b) Pension Plans and Defined Benefit Schemes continued

(vi) Costs recognized in the consolidated income statement

HE20135F12A31HILEE
Year ended December 31, 2013
EBRKIE LE RIS R4
XER U E =F =5
=7 US Post- Belgium
US Pension retirement retirement st
HUFETZ25] Expressed in thousands of US Dollars benefits benefits benefits Total
BR A% A AR Service cost - - 554 554
ERERAEENFSHZ Interest expense on defined benefit obligation 8,174 81 328 8,583
SFEIEENRE (WA) Interest (income) on plan assets (7,174) - - (7,174)
T Administrative expenses 1,300 - - 1,300
FEHIE AR AR RE Total net periodic benefit cost 2,300 81 882 3,263
BZE20125 128318 LLEE
Year ended December 31, 2012
ZEERE b BFR AR
EERKS & =R
B/ US Post- Belgium
US Pension retirement retirement et
KUFETZ5) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars benefits benefits benefits Total
PR A% B A Service cost - - 437 437
FERRA Interest cost 9,838 102 403 10,343
FrEIEENTEHIE 3R Expected return on plan assets (9,743) - = (9,743)
AR Amortization of net loss = = 103 103
B EHIE AR A 4R RE Total net periodic benefit cost 95 102 943 1,140

RGaWmRs  FXEUTHEERE

The expense is recognized in the following line items in the consolidated income

B statement:
BZE12A31BLEE
Year ended December 31,
KUFETZ5) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2013 2012
— R RATEE General and administrative expenses 1,490 1,137
Hbpax Other expenses 1,773 3
3,263 1,140

RS BIEEAREE B A EBER
MWELR (HRERKESEFNERLT
(MRAEBRERAA]) 891993 F 5 -
HENESRBHAEEEE) UEEEER
REFMZ BN EAMY AR X - 1993
FA0 0 ZEEBEARGLTE (REERHE

—#7) D e

was a part of, prior to 1993.

Pension expense included in other income and expense relates to the actuarial
determined pension expense associated with the pension plans of two companies unrelated
to the Group’s current operations whose pension obligations were assumed by the Group
as a result of a 1993 agreement with the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation (the
“PBGC"). The plans were part of a controlled company of corporations of which the Group
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17. EEEH =
(b) BASIHEIRTEEBRE &
(vii) BT RS E B

17. Employee Benefits continued
(b) Pension Plans and Defined Benefit Schemes continued
(vii) Actuarial assumptions used

SRR KR EEFIRER 4

EEIRINE BH B/
&F US Post- Belgium
US Pension retirement retirement
benefits benefits benefits
20134 2013
AERER12 831 BHEREER Weighted average assumptions used to
IR RER - B determine benefit obligations
as of December 31:
ARIR = Discount rate 4.42% 4.42% 2.8%
HEEREE Rate of compensation increase THEAN/A TEAN/A -
B ERRE Rate of price inflation TEAN/A  TEAN/A 2.0%
AEREREZ12A31 A LEENFER Weighted average assumptions used to
BRI AR eI Bk - HAp : determine net periodic benefit cost
for the year ended December 31:
ARIR = Discount rate 3.48% 3.48% 3.0%
HEERE Rate of compensation increase - FTBAN/A -
20124 2012
AERER12A31 BERFEER Weighted average assumptions used to
e HIRR - B determine benefit obligations
as of December 31:
ARIR = Discount rate 3.48% 3.48% 3.00%
HELRE Rate of compensation increase TEANA  TEANA =
Bg LRR= Rate of price inflation TEANA  TEANA =
AEREREZ12A31 A LFENFEDR Weighted average assumptions used to
BRI A NI B - B - determine net periodic benefit cost
for the year ended December 31:
ARIR = Discount rate 4.42% 4.42% 4.75%
EENAHRBRERE Expected long-term rate of return on assets 6.40% FEANA FEANA
FEERE Rate of compensation increase TEANA  FEANA -

2013%12831H K2012F 12831 N &
ENBREFREDHIR2)% R11% °
RN ENSTRESRZME B
BEFIRME - BRLULE WA E H kS
T RAE o BRRRABWAEREEMN
ERENEBRIE o
MENRBEFFTEMS  BE20145F
12A31HLEE  REEBERBEAMHA
HRATERTLA8.0% HEFRIBE » IR
R BRI ZEE2028F 128318 1L
FERL5% WHEIRFZIERE
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The actual rate of return on assets for December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012 was
(2)% and 11%, respectively.

The discount rate is based on a high-grade bond yield curve under which benefits were
projected and discounted at spot rates along the curve. The discount rate was then
determined as a single rate yielding the same present value.

For post-retirement benefit measurement purposes, an 8.0% annual rate of increase in
the per capita cost of covered health care benefits was assumed for the year ended
December 31, 2014. The rate was assumed to decrease gradually to 4.5% for the year
ended December 31, 2028 and remain at that level thereafter.



17. BEwRH =
(b) BHREHEIREEEE &
(vii) PR ERR &

RIBEBE  Hh—EiEREE R
SEUASE (EMBRTE) SFERE
ERNEE SREFEERAT o

HUFET25

17. Employee Benefits continued
(b) Pension Plans and Defined Benefit Schemes continued
(vii) Actuarial assumptions used continued

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial
assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit
obligation by the amounts shown below.

2013%12A31H
December 31, 2013
ERREFRIE
Defined benefit obligation

L7 T

Expressed in thousands of US Dollars Increase Decrease

BEIAR (50%hF)
BREMBBLER: (1%E5)
FEETEAIAE (FZEERARFEEE -
Rit 2 B AiEERE R B EEEEENET
BEEE) 252 HR2013F128318 K
201212 A31 BMEHEIEE M A F1E29.0
BEETK6S2AEEBXET °

(vii)) EEI R A EFBIHFFEEN A TEIEE

(10,191)
1,945

11,066
1,931

Discount rate (50 basis points)
Medical cost trend rate (1% movement)

The estimated benefit obligation (the actuarial present value of benefits attributed to
employee service and compensation levels prior to the measurement date without
considering future compensation levels), exceeded the fair value of plan assets as of
December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012 by US$29.0 million and US$68.2 million,
respectively.

(viii) Fair values of the assets held by the U.S. pension plan by major asset category

20134E12H31H
December 31, 2013
BESE
Targeted AFE
allocation Fair value
(FZ7T)
(US$°000)
i rE Equity -%-40% -
B E W Fixed Income -%-100% 132,361
EED Asset allocation 20%-40% 63,500
Hith Other -%-10% 3,241
#ct Total 100% 199,102
20124128318
December 31, 2012
BiEoE

Targeted AE
allocation Fair value
(F%7)
(US$°000)
[ Equity ~%-40% 18,409
B E s Fixed Income ~%-100% 111,566
BED Asset allocation 20%-40% 57,405
Hith Other -%-10% 1,427
st Total 100% 188,807
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17. EERH =
(b) BASEHEIREEEFEE &
(vii) EB R A EHBHEEENATEEE
BREENE &
BEIRNEEDEGHEESOEEEE
RERENTIESEEREESNASM
HE o BEABEZHNESNER - EERE
ERFERRARMREERNBASER
BAEE o
A BB BIR M R AT S ET
REEFFRBIEENREMARERNR
E°MNM$’EMIIEW$EE%M

17. Employee Benefits continued
(b) Pension Plans and Defined Benefit Schemes continued
(viii) Fair values of the assets held by the U.S. pension plan by major asset category
continued
The asset allocation targets are set with the expectation that the plan’s assets will fund the
plan’s expected liabilities with an appropriate level of risk. Expected returns, risk and
correlation among asset classes are based on historical data and input received from our
investment advisors.
The funding policy for the plans is to contribute amounts sufficient to meet minimum
funding requirements as set forth in employee benefit and tax laws. In 2014, there is no
minimum requirement expected to be contributed as the U.S. pension is adequately funded.

IR AR RRER o
(ix) EE&ER (ix) Historical Information
128318
December 31,

KUFETZ5] Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
ERERARIENRE Present value of the defined

benefit obligation (228,137) (257,185) (242,453) (234,748) (234,485)
SFEIEEN AT E Fair value of plan assets 199,102 188,807 182,728 157,624 134,724

FEE Net liability (29,035) (68,378) (59,725) (77,124) (99,761)

“I‘%JETEFE}*EE'J”‘E&‘E%E% Experience adjustments arising

on plan liabilities (1,084) 7,354 (2,660) 9,897 1,332

(c) Samsonite LLCAIERBR A E:TEIEE

%

Samsonite LLC (AEBH —REEBEKE A
7)) ERASENERATNAEEDH =
HF o BIEZGE  RRSEAERAAR
Samsonite LLCR E&E T XBEMBARMNE
TEREE (MBATINTMRER
Samsonite LLC =% H 5 Bl ff & 2 B M E {1 1%
ESEWRREBERIN) - URFFBREEN
MR EERTSEERETHEATRE=
FHLENEERENTAZENEINERT
19.0EEETHN TP ERLAINEERE - R
REBFIERDBDNBEEERBETHEBE
SFEERERANZEEENEEEMS B
F o RIZELG o HER A E AR R I ZEE
EREBXBBREIINERE - N20135F12
B318  AEEEBETFHERE -

BAGE 3G Z!»‘%?ﬁﬁ@ﬁ'ﬁ#ﬁiﬂ%ﬁ
BERESRERTRE  O)ZTENER
W@“l‘zﬂigﬂiﬁfﬁ*h?mﬂﬁfzzﬁ H(aF
SERAEEREKEERESHTANT
EHATK D 2B 0 S(d) T KT
KRikz BER °
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(c) Samsonite LLC's US Pension Plan Settlement Agreement

Samsonite LLC (a U.S. subsidiary of the Group) and the PBGC are party to a Settlement
Agreement under which PBGC was granted an equal and ratable lien in the amount of
US$19.0 million on certain domestic assets of Samsonite LLC and certain of its U.S.
subsidiaries (excluding any equity interests in subsidiaries and any inventory or accounts
receivable of Samsonite LLC or its U.S. subsidiaries), together with Samsonite’s intellectual
property rights in the U.S. and Samsonite’s rights under licenses of such intellectual property
to affiliates or third parties. The PBGC's lien is equal and ratable with the lien granted over
such assets to Samsonite’s senior secured lenders. Other provisions of the agreement restrict
the transfer of U.S. assets outside of the ordinary course of business. The Group is in
compliance with these requirements as of December 31, 2013.

The agreement will expire upon (a) the Group obtaining investment grade status on its
senior unsecured debt, (b) the date the plan has no unfunded benefit liabilities for two
consecutive plan years, (c) the date on which the Group becomes part of a controlled
company whose unsecured debt has investment grade status, or (d) the date the plan is
successfully terminated.



18. it

(a) BEXRERE
AEBR2014FNERBAZTAELN 569.1
BB Xt M2013F128318 K2012F
12A31BEREBITHERRIED B H14.2
BEETRI1IIEEET  ZELERLT
HETEREL » BABAGE M IEARRRF
mRAAE-

(b) BEBEFRE

FAEENEEABETERERLE  AER
TEBENZHRREN T THEEEE - )
2013128318 K2012F 128318 &
AIEE TR EIE T R ARR B AR FRIE T

18. Commitments

(a) Capital Commitments

The Group’s capital expenditures budget for 2014 is approximately US$69.1 million. Capital
commitments outstanding as of December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012 were US$14.2
million and US$11.3 million, respectively, which were not recognized as liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial position as they do not meet the recognition criteria.

(b) Operating Lease Commitments

The Group’s lease obligations primarily consist of non-cancellable leases of office, warehouse
and retail store space and equipment. As of December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012,
future minimum payments under non-cancellable leases were as follows:

128318
December 31,
UFET25) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2013 2012
—FR Within one year 68,558 59,373
1226 1-2 years 55,054 47,743
2ZESF 2-5 years 86,657 78,421
SEME More than 5 years 21,479 21,830
EEHERIEREE Total operating lease commitments 231,748 207,367

REBURBESE THEY - ETHY
TEERERBHNEREFEEMESHAE
& EIRER - HUESERAR TR o

H £20134F K%2012%F 128318 Ik &
B AR T AUHEEERSETNHES
AR A6 EEETKSI2HEEET °
ETTEHERHEENEET D LEEINE
& B E2013F128318 R2012%F
12A31BILEE  WEEIIEMSEES D
A32EEBETR29EES:T  HBERMAE
X -

19. HARERE
RBEEXBREF  AEEEHSERAN
FAREERRF - EAERABREARKHR
REES IR ST GRS EERERENE
BRIRE > M—&HEE 0 BIFEERAE RN
HENRERSEHN - AEEERHBEL
BEREREACHANEER T RTHRE
& o BB NGRS WER P — MR ITH
B R - BERBURIEN B R IR
B BESTHERSHIERRBE
ﬁo
HBZE2013F12A31BLLEE  A&EH
MR AT AT E KRR ©

Certain of the leases are renewable at the Group’s option. Certain of the leases also
contain rent escalation clauses that require additional rents in later years of the lease term,
which are recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Rental expense under cancellable and non-cancellable operating leases amounted to
US$96.6 million and US$83.2 million for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012,
respectively. Certain of the retail leases provide for additional rent payments based on a
percentage of sales. These additional rent payments amounted to US$3.2 million and
US$2.9 million for the years ended December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively,
and are included in rent expense.

19. Contingent Liabilities
In the ordinary course of business, the Group is subject to various forms of litigation and
legal proceedings. The facts and circumstances relating to particular cases are evaluated in
determining whether it is more likely than not that there will be a future outflow of funds
and, once established, whether a provision relating to specific litigation is sufficient. The
Group records provisions based on its past experience and on facts and circumstances
known at each reporting date. The provision charge is recognized within general and
administrative expenses in the consolidated income statement. When the date of the
incurrence of an obligation is not reliably measureable, the provisions are not discounted
and are classified in current liabilities.

The Group did not settle any significant litigation during the year ended December 31,
2013.
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20. FEMTRARRR R BB RRIA

20. Trade and Other Payables

128318
December 31,
UFETZ27) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2013 2012
FEFRIE Accounts payable 282,183 268,588
Hi e FIE R BT E A Other payables and accruals 96,739 85,074
HAeb e HiE Other tax payables 8,317 8,826
ERERR R E RN TRIEARE Total trade and other payables 387,239 362,488

BARAEERMIRS - HRRE A iRE
DT

Included in accounts payable are trade payables with the following aging analysis as of the
reporting dates:

12A31H
December 31,
UFETZ25) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2013 2012
BIHA Current 211,743 200,927
BER Past Due 20,132 24,322
R AR Total trade payables 231,875 225,249

2013512 B31 B WES BRI F R
HEZ HHAESTRY 105 B A RIE] -

21. €T H

(a) FIBMEEER
SRHEENREEERAEERR - RES
B BASEREBEENT

Trade payables as of December 31, 2013 are on average due within 105 days from the
invoice date.

21. Financial Instruments

(a) Exposure to Credit Risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The
maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:

128318
December 31,
UFETZ5) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2013 2012
g5 Rk EMERRIE Trade and other receivables 246,372 222,159
ReRRLEEY Cash and cash equivalents 225,347 151,399
471,719 373,558

RIRE R - ZihEEE SIS BN EER

The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade receivables at the reporting date by

WERAEERKRIER : geographic region was:
128318
December 31,

UFETZ5) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2013 2012
EM Asia 77,856 73,279
BIEY)) North America 69,536 67,462
&M Europe 54,133 49,103
FLTEM Latin America 32,168 21,652
FE R R 4B 5E Total trade receivables 233,693 211,496
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21. &RtTHR & 21. Financial Instruments continved

(b) FEiIERRENESE SR (b) Exposure to Liquidity Risk
PTERFITESRERE (BIEMAFTEMRIE  The following are the contractual maturities of derivative and non-derivative financial
50 HENEIHRREMT o liabilities, including estimated interest payments.
2013%12A31H
December 31, 2013
BREE AURER=E DIE S5EE
Carrying  Contractual Less than 1E2% PELES More than
KUFETZ5) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars amount cash flows one year 1-2 years 2-5 years 5 years
ELTESBER ©  Non-derivative financial
liabilities:
FETBRRR Trade and other
H b 208 payables 387,239 387,239 387,239 - - -
HiEERE Other lines of credit 15,482 15,482 15,482 - - -
RIKEE Minimum operating lease
HEFIE payments - 231,748 68,558 55,054 86,657 21,479
INERBIEH Foreign currency forward
contracts:
afE Liabilities 2,464 94,665 94,665 - - -
20125128318
December 31, 2012
IREE &HRSRE DR SELE
Carrying Contractual Less than 1225 2855 More than
HUFETZS Expressed in thousands of US Dollars amount cash flows one year 1-2 years 2-5 years 5 years
FLTESBMEME ©  Non-derivative financial
liabilities:
IR Trade and other
Hh (SR8 payables 362,488 362,488 362,488 - - -
REREE Revolving Facility 25,000 25,000 25,000 - - -
HitfEERE Other lines of credit 10,297 10,297 10,297 - - -
xREE Minimum operating lease
HERIE payments — 207,367 59,373 47,743 78,421 21,830
INERBIEH Foreign currency forward
contracts:
af& Liabilities 1,694 95,799 95,799 - - -
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21. 2T R 21. Financial Instruments continved
(b) RiBEWRENE SR & (b) Exposure to Liquidity Risk continued
TRETERESREPHWITETES The following table indicates the periods in which the cash flows associated with
BENRSRERHTEBENHE - derivatives that are cash flow hedges, are expected to occur and impact profit or loss.
IREE SHNRER2 DRE SELLE
Carrying Expected Less than 1226 2E55F More than
KUFETZ5) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars amount cash flows one year 1-2 years 2-5 years 5 years
2013%12H31H : December 31, 2013:
=L Liabilities 2,464 94,665 94,665 - - -
2012%12H318 : December 31, 2012:
af& Liabilities 1,694 95,799 95,799 - - -
(o) FRIBHEHEIE (c) Exposure to Currency Risk

AEBERTEEARARNEBEBENEZZSE The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk arising from the currencies that more
B HAEENBREEBLEBRERTEMN  significantly affect the Group’s financial performance was as follows based on notional

E¥MIMNERBEWT amounts of items with largest exposure:
20135 12A31H
December 31, 2013

ENEEEL

5% PN Indian

Euro Renminbi Rupee

(FE) (AR¥TRT) (TENEEL)

(Euro’000)  (RMB "000) (INR "000)

R Cash 31,008 196,853 91,830
FEURBR AR R H A FEURRTE » FEE Trade and other receivables, net 38,913 80,100 1,322,660
AT EREWY () KB Intercompany receivables (payables) (10,289) (64,230) 21,379
FE BRI AT TR Trade and other payables (39,337) (91,903)  (808,149)
B AR R 3R LB Statement of financial position exposure 20,295 120,820 627,720

2012%12A8318
December 31, 2012

ENEELL

BT AR Indian

Euro Renminbi Rupee

(F&x) (AR%®TRr) (FEHEEL)

(Euro '000)  (RMB '000) (INR '000)

/e Cash 40,850 88,563 71,942
FEWBRFR R LMD FE UL FRIE » FHEE Trade and other receivables, net 35,848 90,258 1,019,316
AT (FE) FIE Intercompany receivables (payables) (10,916) (6,731)  (113,147)
R R H A8 Trade and other payables (44,214) (93,841) (1,396,688)
B AR R 3R LB Statement of financial position exposure 21,568 78,249  (418,577)
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21. EMT R
(o) FEEWERER &

21. Financial Instruments continued
(c) Exposure to Currency Risk continued

RERERNEREZNT : The following significant exchange rates applied during the year:
PR s A EER
Average rate Reporting date spot rate
2013 2012 2013 2012
BT Euro 1.3292 1.2912 1.3746 1.3197
AR Renminbi 0.1627 0.1587 0.1652 0.1605
EEEL Indian Rupee 0.0171 0.0187 0.0162 0.0182

(d) IMERBESH
BT RETHEI10% 152 IS EE2013F
12831 8% 2012512 A31 B L FERZEF
Em47EBEETRIZEEET  RABIS
M2013%F12H31H &2012F12A31H #9
ERIBM246ABETR228BEET ° 7%
PMBRAEEMASEERE (RHEEFI=E)
MR o BUTRE10% B HZ B NG
FMRALEREBNEREEESEERN
o

MARMEETFHEI0%  BE2013
F128318 R2012F 128318 L FE W
EAE DB 2 EEETR2IBES
7t & 20135128318 K20125F128
3N AMERFE S RIEM3TABETR2.7
BEERL ZOoOMBRAEEMATSEZE
(RHZRFIZE) #HT7% ARBRE10%
BEZHB R R R SRS BNWERE

LEBEHERMNEE -

WENEELLEETHEIN: BE
2013%12831H K20125F 128318 1k F
EHEFED B0 6EEETROSHE
E 7t RRA2013F128318 k2012812
B31BMEREESRIEM 1 BEETK
18EEER ZAMBRABEHMAIZRE
= (RERAR) #ET% - EELRE
10% #EZHBEEFEREERERN
ERELESEEERNFE -

(d) Foreign Currency Sensitivity Analysis

A strengthening of the Euro by 10% against the US Dollar would have increased profit for
the years ended December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012 by US$4.7 million and US$3.3
million, respectively, and increased equity as of December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012
by US$24.6 million and US$22.8 million, respectively. The analysis assumes that all other
variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant. A 10% weakening in the Euro would
have an equal but opposite impact to profit for the period and equity as of these reporting
dates.

If the Renminbi had strengthened by 10% against the US Dollar profit would have
increased for the years ended December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012 by US$2.2
million and US$2.1 million, respectively, and equity as of December 31, 2013 and December
31, 2012 would have increased by US$3.7 million and US$2.7 million, respectively. The
analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant. A 10%
weakening in the Renminbi would have an equal but opposite impact to profit for the
period and equity as of these reporting dates.

If the Indian Rupee had strengthened by 10% against the US Dollar profit would have
increased for the years ended December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012 by US$0.6
million and US$0.5 million, respectively, and equity as of December 31, 2013 and December
31, 2012 would have increased by US$2.1 million and US$1.8 million, respectively. The
analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant. A 10%
weakening in the Indian Rupee would have an equal but opposite impact to profit for the
period and equity as of these reporting dates.
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21. €T R
(e) FIZARR
AEEGFEERMITANFIRERRMOT

21. Financial Instruments continued
(e) Interest Rate Profile
The interest rate profile of the Group’s interest bearing financial instruments was:

128318
December 31,
HUFETZ25] Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2013 2012
EEIER: Fixed rate instruments:
SREE Financial assets - =
o= =R Financial liabilities - -
FETIR: Variable rate instruments:
SRIEE Financial assets 30,185 40,838
SRIBE Financial liabilities (15,482) (35,394)
14,703 5,444

(f) AFEHARE{ELE
EEREEREEN A TEEEREER

4

Ho

(9) AFEZFHRE
RNFERNFEATESRERERFRS
MHEEEWNNEREEANNE

1o IFRSEY —ENFESREE  22H8

PRSI A LGB A P EN M ET ZRAE R

BEER - ZEREBHETRERT ST

FAEEREBENRAEHAERERS SR (F

—RBIFTE) - URFRERTAEHENE

ABHNFERESR (F=RFIFE) -

DNFPESREBN=ERBNT :

o E—RAMABBAREBHENNTE
B2 RN EERABRNERT
SHERE (CRIAE) -

o FARBWMABIES N BIEE —RBIAIHR

BENEENREN I HiEREEERNE

A -

F=RRBWABBREENEBN T TE

28 A B -
RFEFBEXFESREBHHNER

DEDERY A FEFEREMSBEKRN

RIEERBAHE -
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R ~ EHREBREAXWEIM AHF

R Bt 25 TANREESEATE
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(f) Fair Value Versus Carrying Amounts
All financial assets and liabilities have fair values that approximate carrying amounts.

(g) Fair Value Hierarchy

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in

an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. IFRS

establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to

measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in

active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority

to measurements involving significant unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements). The

three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the Group has the ability to access at the measurement date.

e level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which a fair measurement in its entirety falls
is based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its
entirety.

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, accounts payable,
short-term debt, and accrued expenses approximates fair value because of the short maturity
or duration of these instruments.

The fair value of foreign currency forward contracts is estimated by reference to market
quotations received from banks.



21. &fTR #
(9) AFEFREE =

T & 2 5 R2013F12 A31H &2012
FNABRFEREEUNFETENE
EREE (BFERAEAAFEHEMNER) :

21. Financial Instruments continued
(g) Fair Value Hierarchy continued

The following table presents assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis (including items that are required to be measured at fair value) as of December
31, 2013 and December 31, 2012:

RREHEATIHRIETENATE
Fair value measurements at reporting date using

2R
EENERE
TiSHIERE HipaTHiz
(B—4&5) EXEABR FEEREEKX
Quoted prices (B=4R7) [DN ¢
in active Significant (SE=4RA)
20134 markets for other Significant
12A318 identical observable  unobservable
December 31, assets inputs inputs
LIFETZS Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2013 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
BE: Assets:

ReRkRELEEY Cash and cash equivalents 225,347 225,347 - -
mEE Total assets 225,347 225,347 - -
=N Liabilities:

e IR A2 R B Non-controlling interest put options 52,848 - - 52,848

IMEREIE X Foreign currency forward contracts 2,464 2,464 - -
BEE Total liabilities 55,312 2,464 - 52,848

RE|EBEATISEFENDFE
Fair value measurements at reporting date using
T2HEE
BEENER
5 HIRE Hith s
(E—#&5) EDN PN ¢ FABR
Quoted prices (B4R A1) BREARE
in active Significant (EB=#51)
201245 markets for other Significant
128318 identical observable unobservable
December 31, assets inputs inputs
HUFETZS Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2012 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
BE Assets:

REeRASEED Cash and cash equivalents 151,399 151,399 - -
BEE Total assets 151,399 151,399 - -
afF: Liabilities:

IR RE R LA Non-controlling interest put options 44,950 - -~ 44,950

IMEIRERE R Foreign currency forward contracts 1,694 1,694 = =
mas Total liabilities 46,644 1,694 - 44,950

AEEE T IFEEMNE D REHRT L8
KEFZUEAGENFERRNESRS
X HFEEARSREE T o EHE MM
TRIBIASSE3F 2@ T A - BRI ER
B o $A2013F12H318 K2012512 A 31
B hETANAFESAERE2EE
ETRI17TEEBET °

Certain non-U.S. subsidiaries of the Group periodically enter into forward contracts
related to the purchase of inventory denominated primarily in USD which are designated as
cash flow hedges. The hedging effectiveness was tested in accordance with IAS 39, Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. The fair value of these instruments was a
liability of US$2.5 million and US$1.7 million as of December 31, 2013 and December 31,
2012, respectively.
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21. TR« 21. Financial Instruments continved
(9) AT EEREE 7 (g) Fair Value Hierarchy continued
TRESFEE=RBIA FERERAHN The following table shows the valuation technique used in measuring the Level 3 fair

fRERE  ARFRANEARTABEBAZ  value, as well as the significant unobservable inputs used.
5o

EXATHEHABIRAATE
SFEZEREE
Inter-relationship between
5l fEESE EXFOUTHREARER significant unobservable inputs
Type Valuation Technique Significant unobservable inputs and fair value measurement
Rk ERRE Was 7% — HEENAGEREBITDA o EBTDAEH fist HIRATER - (AESEE M
BHAENPECHERAE S5 « ERE: (2013F : 3%) (Ri2)
BN  RRMISERNHZEDN o KHEREMAIRE o EBITDAREH LEH (TEK) ;
EEEMEY - (20135 : 14.5%) o BRELHA (TE) 3
o KPHERESAEE LA (TEK) o
Put options Income approach — The valuation e EBITDA Multiple The estimated value would increase
model converts future amounts e  Growth Rate: (2013: 3%) (decrease) if:
based on an EBITDA multiple to a e Risk adjusted discount rate: e  The EBITDA multiple were
single current discounted amount (2013: 14.5%) higher (lower);
reflecting current market e The growth rate were higher
expectations about those future (lower); or
amounts. e The risk adjusted discount rate

were lower (higher).

TRESE=HBI A ERE LR The following table shows reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing
HAR ARV EIBR ¢ balances for Level 3 fair values:
K FETkT Expressed in thousands of US Dollars
MA20129F1 B 1 BH4EER Balance at January 1, 2012 29,522
STAERNATFEES Change in fair value included in equity 6,520
FTARERAN AT EZE Change in fair value included in finance costs 8,908
M20125F12A831HKR2013F1B1AKI4ER  Balance at December 31, 2012 and January 1, 2013 44,950
FFARRN AT EEE Change in fair value included in equity 1,586
FTARERAND T EZE Change in fair value included in finance costs 6,312
FA2013F 12831 B4 ER Balance at December 31, 2013 52,848
MIGEEN AT EmMS  EEF—1E For the fair value of put options, reasonably possible changes to one of the significant

BEATUHEMASBELRSEA L2 E unobservable inputs, holding other inputs constant, would have the following effects at
MEME ASIBHETTE > EEMR2013%F  December 31, 2013:
12A31HEEUTHE .

B RERER
Profit or loss Shareholders’ Equity
EF T EFA T
KUFZETHT Expressed in thousands of US Dollars Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
EBITDAfZEL (ZE)0.11%) EBITDA multiple (movement of 0.1x) 1,475 (1,475) 366 (366)
BRZE (50%F) Growth rate (50 basis points) 434 (430) — —
AR RERIR R Risk adjusted discount rate
(100%:F) (100 basis points) (548) 566 — —
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(9) AFEZERRE &
DNFEMFIRE-BERBREEGEH

MEERKR U TENERMEL - Z5 5T

MEFBR SR TRERERAFEHERH

o B EEEREE o RRNEMEE -

HEHhTTBREATE -

22. FAfgH
(a) RESWERPHBIE

21. Financial Instruments continued
(g) Fair Value Hierarchy continued

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time, based on relevant market
information and information about the financial instrument. These estimates are subjective
in nature and involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgment and therefore
cannot be determined with precision. Changes in assumptions could significantly affect the
estimates.

22. Income Taxes
(a) Taxation in the Consolidated Income Statement

BZ12A310LLEE
Year ended December 31,

KUFETZ5) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2013 2012
AEABIER X — BEFIEH Current tax expense — Hong Kong Profits Tax:

N Current period (655) (2,566)

NEABIZERI S — /b ¢ Current tax expense — Foreign:
7R HAHA Current period (69,314) (50,255)
B Adjustment for prior periods 3,396 (5,738)
(65,918) (55,993)

BAEERIE (%) #HK : Deferred tax (expense) benefit:
FREREBEEREE Origination and reversal of temporary differences (9,997) (10,563)
R Change in tax rate 3,655 (222)
RERELEFBEEZE Change in unrecognized deferred tax assets - (606)
ERBAERERNBIERE Recognition of previously unrecognized tax losses - 11,877
(6,342) 486
HBFrSHR Total income tax expense (72,915) (58,073)

REZE2012F12831BILFE » ERHEIE
AREHEIFNTME  AEBESHER B
ARBREERIBEE4/ 2EBEXTET
BR - AEENSMEPEFETHHEEER
FRFUTA 93 HARE 8 DA R HL R SRAERR B
HsEERTEA - W E HEA Al pe AR REF
BHRIBINEEFBEEEL/2BEEET o £
BZEREZEE  AEESHER  BRZE
BEFEEEBEE - BEREZWIELS
HEEL/2ABEREF  123BEERE
BTSRRI RIER - MELRKS 5T
SEENEES BEEE34IBEETAEBR
Hit2ERER ARG R ER o

During the year ended December 31, 2012, based upon an evaluation of both positive and
negative evidence, the Group concluded that US$47.2 million of previously unrecognized
deferred tax assets should be recognized. As part of the Group’s analysis, it evaluated,
among other factors, its recent history of generating taxable income and its near-term
forecasts of future taxable income and determined that it is more likely than not that it will
be able to realize an additional US$47.2 million of its deferred tax assets over the next
several years. After considering these factors, the Group concluded that recognition of
these deferred tax assets was appropriate. Of the US$47.2 million of previously unrecognized
deferred tax assets, US$12.3 million was recognized through income tax expense on the
income statement and US$34.9 million, which relates to deferred tax assets for pension
plans, was recognized through other comprehensive income on the statement of
comprehensive income.
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22. Fhii8Hi =

(a) REFEUWEERPHBIE &

B ZE2013F12H8318 K 2012%128
31 A FENEBESHREBHEREFERME
FERBURFIRBIR16.5% 51 E o FHINBA
AN IEREEREREANRITHEXRE -

(b) HIEFXHERBIAIGFIZEABEE

22. Income Taxes continued
(a) Taxation in the Consolidated Income Statement continued

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the years ended December 31, 2013 and
December 31, 2012 is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated assessable profits for the year.
Taxation for overseas subsidiaries is charged at the appropriate current rates of taxation in

the relevant countries.

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and profit before taxation at applicable

HYETRR tax rates
BZE1283181LFE
Year ended December 31,
KUFETZ5) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2013 2012
F A=A Profit for the year 197,421 166,627
MR Total income tax expense (72,915) (58,073)
FRPT SR AT @ A Profit before income tax 270,336 224,700
R BB ARG EN Income tax expense using the Group’s
FriSfimx applicable tax rate (76,457) (62,406)
BIEEE Tax incentives 19,886 14,514
BRBE Change in tax rates 3,655 (222)
TIBREEE Change in tax reserves (3.632) 2,234
AN ZESE Non-deductible differences (16,443) (9,708)
BRBARERNBIEEE Recognition of previously unrecognized tax losses - 11,877
ARERBIEEEZE) Change in unrecognized tax assets (2,131) (606)
FEHHL Withholding taxes (3,002) (4,708)
Hith Other 1,813 (3,310)
BIEHERERERETR) Over (under) provided in prior periods 3,396 (5,738)
(72,915) (58,073)

HZ 2013512 A31H K2012612 A31H
I FEMHIRRED BIRA S EAYE AR R
283% K27.8% & - BARERIERA
SEVIAEF G EIRBRME

(0 REMZEKRSEZHMER (FAX)

The provision for taxation for the years ended December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012
is calculated using the Group’s applicable tax rate of 28.3% and 27.8%, respectively. The
applicable rate is based on the Group’s weighted average worldwide tax rate.

(c) Income tax (expense) benefit recognized in Other Comprehensive Income

KR
BZ12A31HLEEE
Year ended December 31,
2013 2012
FRig®t Fris®t
(%) #% (Ax%) &R
Income tax Income tax
BB R (expense) BrBiiE BrRELAT (expense) BRBi%
UFET25 Expressed in thousands of US Dollars Before tax benefit Net of tax Before tax benefit Net of tax
HREREBATTE]  Recognition of previously
KB ERER unrecognized deferred tax
IRAER1E on defined benefit plans - - - - 34,899 34,899
BRI &R Remeasurements on
B E benefit plans 7,511 (3,000) 4,511 (26,829) 10,439 (16,390)
BEeREEH Cash flow hedges (2,449) 880 (1,569) (6,267) 1,953 (4,314)
IBINETE RIS Foreign currency translation
EHRER differences for foreign
operations (9,880) - (9,880) 8,134 - 8,134
(4,818) (2,120) (6,938) (24,962) 47,291 22,329
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22. Fii8Hi =
(d) BERESERERE
BETFREEEREE/NT

22. Income Taxes continued
(d) Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following:

128310
December 31,
UFETZ27) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2013 2012
EEMIREE © Deferred tax assets:
RERE Allowance for doubtful accounts 2,110 2,294
FE8 Inventory 5,592 5,969
S Plant and equipment 4,087 3,267
BIREREREREF Pension and post-retirement benefits 11,927 27,064
HIAEE Tax losses 3,107 3,436
& Reserves 20,028 18,229
Hi Other 7,513 5,240
HiIE K8 Set off of tax (9,963) (10,197)
BIREBIREE Total gross deferred tax assets 44,401 55,302
B IEEE ! Deferred tax liabilities:
ME R ERE Plant and equipment (9,728) (14,383)
mLEE Intangible assets (99,825) (101,772)
Hith Other (11,780) (7,851)
BirE K8 Set off of tax 9,963 10,197
HIEERIBE & Total gross deferred tax liabilities (111,370)  (113,809)
FELEBEEE (B86) Net deferred tax asset (liability) (66,969) (58,507)

HZE2013%12 8318 % 20125128

BSTHIEFENEREEET !

December 31, 2012:

Movement in temporary differences for the years ended December 31, 2013 and

20128 REME2E 20134
12H31H 637 12H318
“hek Rigs Recognized in 4R
Balance i other Balance
December 31, Recognized in  comprehensive  December 31,
KUFETZ5) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2012 profit or loss income 2013
REIREME Allowance for doubtful accounts 2,294 (184) - 2,110
=& Inventory 5,969 (377) = 5,592
M2 - BB K& Property, plant and equipment (11,116) 5,475 - (5.641)
B EE Intangible assets (101,772) 1,947 — (99,825)
BRE R BINEER Pension and post-retirement benefits 26,992 (12,065) (3,000) 11,927
BiIEEE Tax losses 3,436 (329) - 3,107
ftfh Reserves 18,229 1,799 - 20,028
Hitb Other (2,539) (2,608) 880 (4,267)
FELEREEE (AF) Net deferred tax asset (liability) (58,507) (6,342) (2,120) (66,969)
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22. Fhii8Hi =
(d) BERESERER &

22. Income Taxes continued
(d) Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities continued

20114 REM2E 20124
128310 e 128318
“EER P =F Recognized in iEER
Balance ®’R other Balance
December 31, Recognized in comprehensive December 31,
UFETZ5) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2011 profit or loss income 2012
REREE Allowance for doubtful accounts 1,224 1,070 - 2,294
7B Inventory 1,342 4,627 - 5,969
M~ BEKREE Property, plant and equipment (13,752) 2,636 = (11,116)
EIEE Intangible assets (103,640) 1,868 - (101,772)
EBREREBINERER Pension and post-retirement benefits 6,821 (25,167) 45,338 26,992
BiIEEs18 Tax losses 951 2,485 = 3,436
E1 ] Reserves 5,192 13,037 = 18,229
Hth Other (4,422) (70) 1,953 (2,539)
FELERBEE (BE) Net deferred tax asset (liability) (106,284) 486 47,291 (58,507)
KREREEHR AL E Unrecognized Deferred Tax Assets
BET YR B MRS IR E E i R Deferred tax assets have not been recognized in respect of the following items:
128310
December 31,
KUFETZ5] Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2013 2012
AR ER Deductible temporary differences 4,164 5,101
BIEEE Tax losses 22,975 53,046
FAREEER Balance at end of year 27,139 58,147
RIBRTHE - AR EREEEE The deductible temporary differences do not expire under current tax legislation.

B BEBIREE AR UL SR B EEHE
A AAEE T AT RER R R AERBUR R
BEZEEENESR

AR ARIEER (EERRARER)

Deferred tax assets have not been recognized in respect of these items because it is not
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the Group can utilize the
benefits from them.

Available tax losses (recognized and unrecognized):

12A318
December 31,
KUFETZ5) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2013 2012
ESEi United States - -
&M Europe 25,418 55,853
M Asia 692 1,875
P T =M Latin America 6,989 7,452
et Total 33,099 65,180

BIABBRIEE th Bl R A BLIE R R E
Hi o BUNES 1878 B 20165 1R o ZEMES
B E2022F EHim - T EMNEETS
Hm o
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Tax losses expire in accordance with local country tax regulations. European losses will
expire beginning in 2016. Asian losses will expire beginning in 2022. Latin American losses
do not expire.



22. Fifed o«

(d) EBEBESERERE &
RERIELEHEE S
AAREEZEH RS HSBAEEREERA
BRRTSHBHRER - R2013F 128318
20125128310 © BB ARREEH
FIEERIBEED Bl A25. 788X T KkG6.1
EEETE T

23. MBI RMEE A
REARERRGEZERSRTREROY
BRARMBRABELIINT :

22. Income Taxes continued

(d) Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities continued

Unrecognized Deferred Tax Liabilities

At December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012 a deferred tax liability of US$25.7 million
and US$6.1 million, respectively, related to investments in subsidiaries is not recognized
because the Group controls whether the liability will be incurred and it is satisfied that it will
not be incurred in the foreseeable future.

23. Finance Income and Finance Costs
The following table presents a summary of finance income and finance costs recognized in
the consolidated income statement and consolidated statement of comprehensive income:

HZ12A318ILEE
Year ended December 31,

UFETZ25] Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2013 2012
RUIAREERER Recognized in income or loss:
RITFERHOREUA Interest income on bank deposits 852 1,187
BRI A Finance income 852 1,187
2RBENFERX Interest expense on financial liabilities (2,929) (3,927)
ROLHEN AL ERE Change in fair value of put options (6.312) (8,908)
INERTEFRE Net foreign exchange loss (456) (3,356)
Hib Bk & H Other finance costs (2,111) (2,038)
B E A Finance costs (11,808) (18,229)
RIERPRERNIEE RSE Net finance costs recognized in profit or loss (10,956) (17,042)

REAf 2 W R ERR
BOEBIIMNEERER

RERSBETH QAT ES
TROELfth F T Wi ok R R Y B B LA
B35 E PR 1S B
REMEEREHERNTEE M
(A) F88 - HIBRTE
THIA LR
RATRESFEA
FFERER

RE b2 Y T RERR RO B 35 B
(A) - HIBRBIIR

Recognized in other comprehensive income:
Foreign currency translation differences for foreign
operations (9,880) 8,134
Changes in fair value of cash flow hedges (2,449) (6,267)
Income tax on finance income and finance costs
recognized in other comprehensive income 880 1,953

Net finance costs (income) recognized in other
comprehensive income, net of tax (11,449) 3,820

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company (7,482) 3,034
Non-controlling interests (3,967) 786

Finance costs (income) recognized in other
comprehensive income, net of tax (11,449) 3,820
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24. fX
HZE2013F12 A31HK&2012%F12 A31H
IEEE - RETERANEANE MR, (5T A)
DAT&E :

24. Expenses

Profit before income tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting) the following for the years

ended December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012:

HZ12A31HILEE
Year ended December 31,

UFETZ27) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2013 2012
EEEETE Depreciation of fixed assets 36,821 31,770
B EE#E Amortization of intangible assets 8,363 8,491
% EH R 35 B Auditors’ remuneration 3,854 3,471
HRRER Research and development 22,386 18,463
BREMENEEREER Operating lease charges in respect of properties 96,573 83,245
BHER Restructuring charges - =

FRAEEIIERBAMKPMGREE
2013F 12 A3 HIEFERRENELR A
BERBHERWT :

The fees in relation to the audit and related services for the year ended December 31,
2013 provided by KPMG, the external auditors of the Group, were as follows:

KUFETZ5] Expressed in thousands of US Dollars

FEEZK P HERHRS Annual audit and interim review services 3,206
FEXEBERE Non-audit related services 648
et Total 3,854
25. FER RS 25. Related Party Transactions

(a) BEEEEABNRS
BRHTESRHthEEEE A S KR
S AEETERERMEIREREH - UK
KL EER R BIER o
FEREHEREAEREERSHER

(a) Transactions with Key Management Personnel
In addition to their cash compensation, the Group also provides non-cash benefits to
Executive Directors and other key management personnel, and contributes to a post-
employment plan on their behalf.

Key management is comprised of the Group’s Directors and Senior Management. Key

FTEEEASNTHESE management personnel compensation comprised:

BE128318LFE

Year ended December 31,

UFETZ27) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2013 2012
EFEWS Director’s fees 530 400
E - FRE R EME YRR Salaries, allowances and other benefits in kind 5,105 4,820
TE4L! Bonus! 2,927 2,271
DU =44 Share-based payments 3,198 -
RINEGH B Contributions to post-employment plans 172 150

11,932 7,641
gz Note

| RARAKEHRRSEE -
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L Bonus is based on the performance of the Group.



25. FEARS 4 25. Related Party Transactions continued

(b) EEHE (b) Directors’ Remuneration
BIEEBARRGIZE1611F - ESMEWE  Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies
W - Ordinance is as follows:
BE2013F12A31HILEE
Year ended December 31, 2013
Fiol - ERER
HihEhFIE BIKTE
Salaries, sHEIHR
allowances Contributions
and other VAR 32 £ to post-
S benefits fe4l Share-based  employment #Et
HFETZ25 Expressed in thousands of US Dollars Directors’ fees in kind Bonus' payments plans Total
HITEE Executive Directors
Timothy Parker Timothy Parker - 971 943 1,090 - 3,004
Kyle Gendreau Kyle Gendreau - 494 286 358 33 1,171
Ramesh Tainwala Ramesh Tainwala - 1,018 274 388 - 1,680
FHTEE Non-Executive Directors
Keith Hamill Keith Hamill 100 - - - - 100
Bruce Hardy McLain  Bruce Hardy McLain 100 - - - - 100
BUHHTEE Independent Non-Executive
Directors
Paul Etchells Paul Etchells 130 - - - - 130
fo)re: Miguel Ko 100 - - - - 100
=R Ying Yeh 100 - - - - 100
st Total 530 2,483 1,503 1,836 33 6,385
B EE Note
1 RBARKEENRRARE o ! Bonus is based on the performance of the Group.
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25. BAERRXS #

25. Related Party Transactions continued

(b) EEE & (b) Directors’ Remuneration continued
BZE2012F128310LFE
Year ended December 31, 2012
- RBR
HBEYFz= EIRE
Salaries, sHEIfS
allowances Contributions
EEHE and other BURAR 3244 to post-
Directors' benefits A Share-based employment st
HUFETZ25 Expressed in thousands of US Dollars fees in kind Bonus' payments plans Total
HITEE Executive Directors
Timothy Parker Timothy Parker - 954 159 - - 1,113
Kyle Gendreau Kyle Gendreau - 433 277 - 28 788
Ramesh Tainwala Ramesh Tainwala - 960 688 - - 1,648
FHTEE Non-Executive Directors
Keith Hamill Keith Hamill 100 - - - - 100
Nicholas Clarry Nicholas Clarry - - - - - -
Bruce Hardy McLain  Bruce Hardy McLain - - - - - -
BUHHTEE Independent Non-Executive
Directors
Paul Etchells Paul Etchells 100 - - - - 100
)¢ Miguel Ko 100 - - = = 100
= Ying Yeh 100 - - - - 100
st Total 400 2,397 1,124 - 28 3,949
B = Note
1 RARAEENRRBEE - ' Bonus is based on the performance of the Group.

BZ 20135128310 R20125 128
3NHIEFE - BIBRESHAEEREEM
B EAERMARMAREBEAIERE - RE
HEE SEEERENESIEEH
& BE20135F12A31H R 20125128
JNHILFE  BBEESHBEAQRTES
A ST M E SRR E SR =R AR
7 W ERAE AT 1 o
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No director received any emoluments from the Group as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group during the years ended December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012. No
director waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during the periods presented. No
director received any compensation during the years ended December 31, 2013 or December
31, 2012 for the loss of office as a director of the Company or of any other office in
connection with the management of the affairs of the Group.



25. FERXS #

() =EHAL
HZE2013%128318K%2012%12 A31H
LFEE AEERERSFATEE=EE
= RENHEESRERE - XA FTAR
EEHBRRSHFATHMESHEBNT ¢

25. Related Party Transactions continued
(c) Individuals with the Highest Emoluments

The five highest paid individuals of the Group include three directors during the years ended
December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, whose emoluments are disclosed above.
Details of remuneration paid to the remaining highest paid individuals of the Group are as

follows:

BZ12A318LLEE
Year ended December 31,

KUFETZ5) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2013 2012
SR - RBER H MBS Salaries, allowances and other benefits in kind 1,030 712
T4 Bonus' 662 819
LARRAR = A5 Share-based payments 708 -
RINEFT B Contributions to post-employment plans 41 32

2,441 1,563
Pyt Note

| RARAKENRRAREE -

REZHRFE @ FRALHENEITEB
250,000 jt o # £2013%F12A31H &
2012F12A31HLEE » EXAZEA
TR AFIBERB B ERERMAMA
REEERRERE o

(d) HAbEAESLRZS

() KB EDEHK B2 7 Samsonite
SouthAsia Pvt. Ltd. @ Abhishri
Packaging Pvt. Ltd (FAASKEHNHITE
F LK EE K R R i & £ & Ramesh
Tainwala %&£ & ([Tainwala £ £ 1) B9
REEREZES) FERHERMT RS
B ©
BREE ~ $HE - BEFERERGKIERAE
BESFEMT ¢

! Bonus is based on the performance of the Group.

The emoluments of each individual exceeded US$250 thousand for each of the years
presented. No amounts have been paid to these individuals as compensation for loss of
office or as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group during the years ended

December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012.

(d) Other Related Party Transactions

(i) The Group’s Indian subsidiary, Samsonite South Asia Pvt. Ltd., purchases raw materials
and finished goods from, and sells certain raw materials and finished goods to, Abhishri

Packaging Pvt. Ltd, which is managed and controlled by the family of Mr. Ramesh
Tainwala, Executive Director and President, Asia-Pacific and Middle East of the Group

(“Mr. Tainwala"”).

Related amounts of purchases, sales, payables and receivables are the following:

BZE12A31HLEE
Year ended December 31,

KUFETZ5] Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2013 2012
e Purchases 4,575 4,005
HE Sales 377 548
12A31H
December 31,
UFETZ25] Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2013 2012
EFRIE Payables 607 483
FEWFRIE Receivables 83 145
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25. FEARD &

(d) HEERRS &

(i) Samsonite South Asia Pvt. Ltd. 7K [&]
Bagzone Lifestyle Private Limited Hj &5
FXfR ° Bagzone Lifestyle Private Limited
HTainwala B E N RIEEE R IZH
Tanwala E £ R E XK N # &
Samsonite South Asia Pvt. Ltd. & 78 &
B Pa FL (A B & B R B O B B A Rl IF 42
IR o

25. Related Party Transactions continued

(d) Other Related Party Transactions continued

(i) Samsonite South Asia Pvt. Ltd. also sells finished goods to Bagzone Lifestyle Private
Limited. Bagzone Lifestyle Private Limited is managed and controlled by the family of
Mr. Tainwala. Mr. Tainwala and his family also own a non-controlling interest in
Samsonite South Asia Pvt. Ltd. and the Group’s United Arab Emirates subsidiary.

BZE12A310LEE
Year ended December 31,

UFETZ25) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2013 2012
PREE Purchases - =
HE Sales 11,799 10,636
e Rent 58 49
12A318
December 31,
UFETZ5 Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2013 2012
ERFRE Payables - -
FEWFRIE Receivables 9,075 6,895

HE2013F128318 K% 20125128
BNHLEFE  E2BIXAHN0IEES
TR10BEEBE T THTanwala EER
HEREEENERE - UMER At 2R
& A2013%F12H31H8 K2012%F12
B318 » B 4 Tainwala £ £ &
HRIRMFRIE - R2013F 128318 K
20125128318 ' 0.1 B & E T R0.1
BEERDBAREBRENAXARS
FEWRFRIE °

(iiiy Samsonite South Asia Pvt. Ltd. & T B
HEBLAK A T Planet Retail Holding Pvt.
Ltd. ([Planet Retaill) ° Tainwala 5& 4
A Planet Retail WEZERRR - HZE2013
128318 K2012F12A318 It &
B mttERELHEENEES IR0
EZTROIEBRT  R20135F128
31HK 2012128318 » 2 5l B
Planet Retail #9 X 103 Jt & 7,0003%
e
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Approximately US$0.9 million and US$1.0 million was paid to entities owned by Mr.
Tainwala and his family, for office space rent for the years ended December 31, 2013
and December 31, 2012, respectively. As of December 31, 2013 and December 31,
2012, no amounts were payable to Mr. Tainwala and his family. As of December 31,
2013 and December 31, 2012, US$0.1 million and US$0.1 million, respectively, were
recorded as a receivable in the form of a security deposit.

(ili) Samsonite South Asia Pvt. Ltd. has from time to time sold finished goods to Planet
Retail Holding Pvt. Ltd. (“Planet Retail”). Mr. Tainwala is the majority shareholder of
Planet Retail. Sales to this entity amounted to US$0 and US$0.1 million for the years
ended December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively. As of December 31,
2013 and December 31, 2012, US$0 and $7 thousand, respectively, were receivable
from Planet Retail.



26. REIERMFAEH 26. Particulars of Group Entities

BEEE%
Ownership%
ERE BT Entity name EIES Country 2013 2012
FEBERERAD ERE Luxembourg BAT [S¥NC|
Samsonite International S.A. Parent Parent
Delilah Europe Investments S.a.r.l. ERE Luxembourg 100 100
Delilah US Investments S.a.r.. EHRE Luxembourg 100 100
Astrum R.E. LLC EJE] United States 100 100
Bypersonal S.A. de C.V. S Mexico 100 100
Direct Marketing Ventures, LLC =& United States 100 100
Equipaje en Movimiento, S.A. de C.V. £ Mexico 100 100
Global Licensing Company, LLC xE United States 100 100
HL Operating LLC =& United States 100 100
Jody Apparel Il, LLC E3E] United States 100 100
Lonberg Express S.A. BE Uruguay 100 100
Limited Liability Company Samsonite (G E Russian Federation 60 60
McGregor I, LLC xE United States 100 100
PT Samsonite Indonesia ENERFEER Indonesia 60 60
Samsonite (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd B2k Malaysia 100 100
Samsonite (Thailand) Co., Ltd. B Thailand 60 60
Samsonite A/S A% Denmark 100 100
Samsonite AB I B Sweden 100 100
Samsonite AG i Switzerland 99 99
Samsonite Argentina S.A. Py AR 3E Argentina 95 95
Samsonite Asia Limited BB Hong Kong 100 100
Samsonite Australia Pty Limited BN Australia 70 70
Samsonite Brasil Ltda. ey Brazil 100 100
Samsonite B.V. PEil: Netherlands 100 100
Samsonite Canada, Inc. nEXR Canada 100 100
Samsonite CES Holding B.V. Gl Netherlands 60 60
Samsonite Chile S.A. BF Chile 85 85
Samsonite China Holdings Limited B Hong Kong 100 100
Samsonite Colombia S.A.S. EHmtt I Colombia 100 100
Samsonite Company Stores, LLC E3E]] United States 100 100
Samsonite Espana S.A. (gl Spain 100 100
Samsonite Europe N.V. [ I]:53 Belgium 100 100
Samsonite Finanziaria S.r.l. BEARF Italy 100 100
Samsonite Finland Oy =Y Finland 100 100
Samsonite Ges.m.b.H. B8 3th R Austria 100 100
Samsonite GmbH = Germany 100 100
Samsonite Hungaria Borond KFT &) 5F F Hungary 100 100
Samsonite International Trading (Ningbo) Co. Ltd. FRE] China 100 100
Samsonite IP Holdings S.a.r.. EHRE Luxembourg 100 100
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

26. EEEEMFANSE &

26. Particulars of Group Entities continued

HEERE%
Ownership%
BB Entity name EIES Country 2013 2012
Samsonite Japan Co., Ltd. =N Japan 100 100
Samsonite Korea Limited RERE Korea, Republic 100 100
Samsonite Latinoamerica, S.A. de C.V. =itk Mexico 100 100
Samsonite Limited e United Kingdom 100 100
Samsonite LLC ESE] United States 100 100
Samsonite Macau Limitada pEd| Macau 100 100
Samsonite Mauritius Limited EERH Mauritius 100 100
Samsonite Mercosur Limited BRE Bahamas 100 100
Samsonite Mexico, S.A. de C.V. =itk Mexico 100 100
Samsonite Middle East FZCO PRI RSB RE United Arab Emirates 60 60
Samsonite Norway AS ML Norway 100 100
Samsonite Pacific LLC ES United States 100 100
Samsonite Panama S.A. BEE5 Panama 100 -
Samsonite Peru S.A.C. we Peru 100 -
Samsonite Philippines, Inc. FEEE Philippines 60 60
Samsonite S.A.S. JEE France 100 100
Samsonite S.p.A. BEARF Italy 100 100
Samsonite Seyahat Uriinleri Sanayi ve Ticaret Anonim Sirketi  +EH Turkey 60 60
Samsonite Singapore Pte Ltd S hn3E Singapore 100 100
Samsonite South Asia Private Limited EE India 60 60
Samsonite Southern Africa Ltd. 3k South Africa 60 60
Samsonite Sp. z 0.0. it ] Poland 100 100
Samsonite Sub Holdings S.a.r.l. EHRE Luxembourg 100 100
SC Chile Uno S.A. =l Chile 100 100
SC Inversiones Chile Limitada EH Chile 100 100

M2013%12 A31 AR 2012512A31HH
HEBERERARSERHEARNERE
M ERIIT °

The particulars of the investment in subsidiaries held directly by Samsonite International S.A.

at December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012 are set out below.

20134 20124

12A31H 12A31H

December 31, December 31,

UFET25) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2013 2012
LR 0 R Unlisted shares, at cost 866,682 866,682

KB QAR ENRR R RN
HREER  REREETERY -

FTEFEAEEEE EERBENM
BABMFREESMT o
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Trade and others payables due to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and have no

fixed terms of repayment.

The particulars of subsidiaries which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities

of the Group are set out below.



26. EEIEEMFANESE &

26. Particulars of Group Entities continued

wEfRA S B HA
BERaE S Date of BRAS FEEK P =
Entity name Country Incorporation Share Capital Principal Activities Note
Delilah Europe Investments S. a.r.l. ERE 2009 21,804,401% 7t 2R *x
Luxembourg UsSD21,804,401 Holding
Delilah US Investments S.a r.l. ERE 2009 78,160,399% 7T 2R *x
Luxembourg uUsD78,160,399 Holding
Samsonite LLC S 1987 0%t =R o
United States uUsD nil Holding
Samsonite Asia Limited BB 1996 20587t ax ! *x
Hong Kong HKD20 Distribution
Samsonite Australia Pty Limited B 1984 20387t k| o
Australia AUD20 Distribution
Samsonite Chile S.A. =l 2007 23,928,441, 7108RLLR  £FE 5 o
Chile CLP23,928,441,710 Production/
Distribution
Samsonite Company Stores, LLC =H 1985 (VEH aK| *x
United States usD nil Distribution
Samsonite Espana S.A. AT 1952 3,122,195 T k| **
Spain EUR3,122,195 Distribution
Samsonite Europe N.V. £l B 1966 OBt £E D e
Belgium EUR nil Production/
Distribution
Samsonite GmbH = 1966 25,5658 7T aK-! *x
Germany EUR25,565 Distribution
Samsonite International Trading FE 2006 AER#25,651,9907T £E D ok ok
(Ningbo) Co. Ltd. China RMB25,651,990 Production/
Distribution
Samsonite IP Holdings S. ar.l. ERE 2009 114,115,900% 7T PR PR AR xx
Luxembourg UsD114,115,900 Holding/Licensing
Samsonite Japan Co., Ltd. =N 2004 500,000,000 A El k| **
Japan JPY500,000,000 Distribution
Samsonite Korea Limited RERE 1997 1,060,000,000%2E k| *x
Korea, Republic of KRW1,060,000,000 Distribution
Samsonite Limited e 1986 20,0005 8% aK-| *x
United Kingdom GPB20,000 Distribution
Samsonite Mexico, S.A. de C.V. B 1986 201,903,387tk & £E D o
Mexico MXN201,903,387 Production/
Distribution
Samsonite S.A.S. 5 1965 720,0008k 7t BaK ! *x
France EUR720,000 Distribution
Samsonite S.p.A. BERA 1980 780,0008k 7T Bax | *x
[taly EUR780,000 Distribution
Samsonite South Asia Private Limited — ENE 1995 354,912,330ENEELL £E D *x
India INR354,912,330 Production/
Distribution
Samsonite Sub Holdings S.a r.l. ERE 2011 55,417,991% 2R *
Luxembourg USD55,417,991 Holding
FEBERARIA 173
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

FEMBRERME &

26. REIERMFAESE « 26. Particulars of Group Entities continved

By =E Note

* ARQAFREEES *  Directly held by the Company.

> ARATEEESE o ** |ndirectly held by the Company.

ok RABRINEREEDARMEREDHE - *** A |imited liability company and wholly-foreign owned enterprise established in the PRC.
B REERHRA SR AES Changes in the Share Capital of Samsonite International S.A.

FEBEBRERATGNBRAREZE2013F  There were no changes in the share capital of Samsonite International S.A. during the years
12831HK%2012F 12 A31 BILFEEMMEE  ended December 31, 2013 or December 31, 2012.
fAIZE o

FEIE AR HERR Non-Controlling Interests

TRBAEEAREBEZEMBARMEME  The following table summarizes the information relating to the Group’s significant
BIREHRI R EAEERES ([FZER  subsidiaries that have material non-controlling interests (“NCI”), before any intra-group
fEm]) HER - eliminations.

BZE2013F12A31BLEE For the year ended December 31, 2013:

Samsonite

Samsonite South Asia

Australia Samsonite Private

HUFETZ25 Expressed in thousands of US Dollars Pty Limited Chile S.A. Limited
IR ST DL NCI percentage 30% 15% 40%
FRBEE Non-current assets 1,058 43,830 10,859
MENE Current assets 19,058 32,578 69,781
FREBERF Non-current liabilities - (32,237) 1,528
mEEE Current liabilities 9,496 21,895 57,927
FEE Net assets 10,620 86,750 21,185
FEREBEENIREE Carrying amount of NCI 3,186 13,013 8,474
MR FRE Net Outside Revenue 42,666 62,577 110,526
YAl Profit 5,044 12,243 5,918
Hih 2wk odl (1,596) (7.814) (2,471)
THERREEE Total comprehensive income 3,448 4,429 3,447
22 FEHE R A 2 R A Profit allocated to NCI 1,513 1,836 2,367
DEE IR R I A E b 2 U 0Cl allocated to NCI (479) (1,172) (989)
EIFERERRE Dividends paid to NCI 3,841 - -
HERBLSEEYHEM ORL) FE  Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 318 (5,023) 178

174 Samsonite International S.A.
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HZE2012F 12831 HILFE :

26. Particulars of Group Entities continued
Non-Controlling Interests continued
For the year ended December 31, 2012:

Samsonite
Samsonite South Asia
Australia Samsonite Private
KUFETZ25] Expressed in thousands of US Dollars Pty Limited Chile S.A. Limited
FEREZBEDL NCI percentage 30% 15% 40%
FREEE Non-current assets 1,050 44,108 13,756
MEEE Current assets 17,791 35,764 68,108
EREEE Non-current liabilities 6 (23,100) (192)
RBAas Current liabilities 7,822 20,651 64,295
FEE Net assets 11,013 82,321 17,761
FERBEB/NIREE Carrying amount of NCI 3,304 12,348 7,104
MR FRE Net Outside Revenue 40,678 54,998 102,329
YAl Profit 5,781 9,469 5,181
Hit2mkas odl 176 5,089 (659)
2 HEWEEEE Total comprehensive income 5,957 14,558 4,522
2 2 IR AE R R T Profit allocated to NCI 1,734 1,420 2,072
PEEFERERNEMEEKE OCl allocated to NCI 53 763 (264)
EEERERRE Dividends paid to NCI 2,113 = -
BERBLEEYAEM C2) FE  Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,954 280 (218)
27. HiEEIE 27. Subsequent Events

AEBESFMER20135F128318 (B8R
xR BH) BE2014F38 188 (R E
PEEESRERTAS) rEESE -
M2014F1 870 ARARFETE
E-FEEBEAERHMESTTME
12,266,199 B A1 HU BB BRAE - X EBRIEN
THEEAESR23.308TT - 2S5 BEREAR

authorized for issue by the Board of Directors.

AFHRIZLLHIRE - BF25% HWERER  the grant.

RENZENEBFASE -

The Group has evaluated events occurring subsequent to December 31, 2013, the statement
of financial position date, through March 18, 2014, the date this financial information was

On January 7, 2014, the Company granted options exercisable for 12,266,199 shares
to certain directors, key management personnel, and other employees. The exercise price of
such options is HK$23.30 per share. Such options are subject to pro rata vesting over a 4
year period, with 25% of the options vesting on each of the first four anniversary dates of

HEBEBRERAT 175
ZO—Z=HE%H



Financial Summary

MHHRE

FEEBERBAMRFENGSXERE
E - B RARFERERNSESIIW

A summary of the consolidated results and assets, liabilities, equity and non-controlling
interests of the Group for the last five financials years is as follows:

T
124318
December 31,

UFZETZ27) Expressed in thousands of US Dollars 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
HEFE Net sales 2,037,812 1,771,726 1,565,147 1,215,307 1,029,374
EA Gross profit 1,088,337 951,005 856,948 689,679 515,550
EFZE Gross profit margin 53.4% 53.7% 54.8% 56.7% 50.1%
SRR (F8) Operating profit / (loss) 281,292 241,742 209,930 543,602 (34,691)
THIALRES Profit for the year

FEER - attributable to:

BEFEEA Equity holders 176,087 148,439 86,748 355,022 1,202,433

FEfE R RS Non-controlling interests 21,334 18,188 16,870 11,792 6,902
EEHZE Total assets 1,934,891 1,813,164 1,544,546 1,665,001 1,139,370
BEH8%E Total liabilities 704,309 727,059 599,346 902,149 730,720
A E AEMER  Equity attributable to equity holders 1,192,756 1,051,593 918,131 740,208 391,537
RS Non-controlling interests 37,826 34,512 27,069 22,644 17,113

176 Samsonite International S.A.
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